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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REVIEW REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidatednbalaheets of Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing
Company Limited and subsidiaries as of March 31,32Mecember 31, 2012, March 31, 2012 and January 1
2012 and the related consolidated statements opransive income, changes in equity and cash flomthe
three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012. Téwmssolidated financial statements are the respititysib

of the Company’s management. Our responsibilittaisissue a report on these consolidated financial
statements based on our reviews.

We conducted our reviews in accordance with Stat¢me Auditing Standards No. 36, “Review of Finahci
Statements,” issued by the Auditing Standards Cdteeniof the Accounting Research and Development
Foundation of the Republic of China. A review detss principally of applying analytical procedures
financial data and making inquiries of persons oesgble for financial and accounting matters. dt i
substantially less in scope than an audit conduat@eedcordance with auditing standards generaltgpied in

the Republic of China, the objective of which i® thxpression of an opinion regarding the consailat
financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingy/do not express such an opinion.

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any mataeodifications that should be made to the cadsted
financial statements referred to above for thembéoin conformity with the Guidelines Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securitiesdssunternational Financial Reporting Standart-irst-time
adoption of International Financial Reporting Stamis,” and International Accounting Standard 3#4fetim
Financial Reporting,” endorsed by the Financial Suigory Commission of the Republic of China.

May 14, 2013

Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statemantsintended only to present the consolidated firen
position, results of operations and cash flows énadance with accounting principles and practigemerally

accepted in the Republic of China and not thosangf other jurisdictions. The standards, proceduses

practices to review such consolidated financialtestaents are those generally accepted and appliethén
Republic of China.

For the convenience of readers, the accountantgere report and the accompanying consolidated fonn
statements have been translated into English frben driginal Chinese version prepared and used i th
Republic of China. If there is any conflict betweélee English version and the original Chinese mgr®r any
difference in the interpretation of the two versipthe Chinese-language accountants’ review repod
consolidated financial statements shall prevail.



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limitedand Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

MARCH 31, 2013, DECEMBER 31, 2012, MARCH 31, 2012 AND JANUARY 1, 2012

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(Note 7)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 8)
Held-to-maturity financial assets (Note 9)
Notes and accounts receivable, net (Note 11)
Receivables from related parties (Note 36)
Other receivables from related parties (Note 36)
Inventories (Notes 5 and 12)
Other current assets (Note 17)
Other financial assets (Note 37)

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 8)
Held-to-maturity financial assets (Note 9)
Hedging derivative financial assets (Note 10)
Financial assets carried at cost (Note 13)
Investments accounted for using equity method

(Notes 5 and 14)

Property, plant and equipment (Notes 5 and 15)
Intangible assets (Notes 5 and 16)
Deferred income tax assets (Notes 5 and 31)
Refundable deposits (Note 36)
Other noncurrent assets (Notes 17 and 36)

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL

March 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

March 31, 2012

January 1, 2012

Amount %

$ 186,028,798 18

18,206
1,162,904
2,044,822

65,472,529
434,306
176,298

37,833,465

3,339,372
1,240,492

S

297,751,192

42,087,667

IS

659,351 -
3,703,593 1

24,252,070 2
666,447,384 63
11,478,437 1
11,610,593 1
2,385,571 -
1,253,868 -

763,878,534 72

$ 1,061,629,726 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the cdasedi financial statements.

Amount %

$ 143,410,588 15

39,554 -
2,410,635
5,056,973

57,777,586
353,811
185,550

37,830,498

2,786,408 -
473,833 -

O

250,325.436 26

38,751,245 4

3,605,077 -

23,360,918 3
617,562,188 64
10,959,569 1
13,128,219 2
2,426,712 -
1,235,144 -

711,029,072 4

Amount

$ 170,819,939

1,658
3,577,801
6,253,618

52,795,666
647,314
1,301,705
27,759,150
3,087,516
571,010

266,815,377

2,030,812
4,180,185

23,580,109
509,953,504
10,969,136
14,210,531
4,527,507
1,228,134

570,679,918
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Amount

$ 143,472,277

15,360
3,308,770
3,825,680

45,830,288
185,764
122,292

24,840,582

2,174,014
617,142

224,392,169

5,243,167
4,315,005

24,886,931
490,422,153
10,861,563
13,604,218
4,518,863
1,306.746

555,158,646

$ 779,550,815

%
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LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short-term loans (Note 18)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit @sk
(Note 7)

Hedging derivative financial liabilities (Note10)

Accounts payable

Payables to related parties (Note 36)

Salary and bonus payable

Accrued profit sharing to employees and bonus to
directors and supervisors (Note 24)

Payables to contractors and equipment suppliers

Income tax payable (Note 31)

Provisions (Notes 5 and 19)

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
(Notes 15 and 22)

Current portion of bonds payable and long-term
bank loans (Notes 20 and 21)

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Bonds payable (Note 20)
Long-term bank loans (Note 21)
Provisions (Note 19)
Other long-term payables (Note 22)
Obligations under finance leases (Note 15)
Accrued pension cost (Note 23)
Guarantee deposits
Others (Note 36)

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE PARENT
Capital stock (Note 24)
Capital surplus (Note 24)
Retained earnings (Note 24)
Appropriated as legal capital reserve
Appropriated as special capital reserve
Unappropriated earnings
Others (Note 24)
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent
NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS (Note 24)
Total equity

TOTAL

March 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

March 31, 2012

January 1, 2012

Amount %

$ 35,842,800 3
4,223 -
12,462,978

793,133
5,075,309

Rooe

13,864,935
48,601,349
20,164,514

6,350,698

RN O

-

14,915,135

131,250

158,206.324 15

125,000,000 12
1,325,000 -
5,199 -
54,000 -
768,935 -
6,904,635
184,780

531,768 -

134,774,317 1

w

00

292,980,641

N
o

259,282,327
55,762,572

‘01

115,820,123 1

7,606,224
324,561,997
447,988,344
3,098,025

w
Sk Pk

N
N}

766,131,268

~
N

2,517,817

‘\‘|
N L

768,649,085
$ 1,061,629,726 1

o

Amount %

$ 34,714,929
15,625
14,490,429
748,613
7,535,296
11,186,591
44,831,798
15,635,594
6,038,003
13,148,944

128,125
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148,473,947

80,000,000
1,359,375
4,891
54,000
748,115
6,921,234
203,890
495,150

89,786,655

E‘Lo |..p—\‘..‘oo

238,260,602

N
N

259,244,357
55,675,340

‘m|

115,820,123
7,606,224
284,985,121
408,411,468
(2,780,485)

720,550,680

N =
© = N

N
N

~
o

2,543,226

‘\‘|
&

723,093,906

=
o
o

$ 961,354,508

Amount %

$ 34,687,716

61,038
135
13,262,122
906,317
4,226,594

11,327,679
34,070,990
13,511,557

5,428,410

14,052,743

93,750
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131,629,051

35,000,000
1,556,250
3,083
59,058
742,931
6,218,052
405,594
436,785

44,421,753

E‘m |..p—\‘.n:-l>

176,050,804

W
=

259,206,046
55,593,052

‘\1|

102,399,995
6,433,874
245,122,092
353,955,961
(9,947,419)

658,807,640

N =
© = N
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2,636,851

s |

661,444,491

[N
o

$ 837,495,295

Amount

$ 25,926,528

13,742
232
10,530,487
1,328,521
6,148,499

9,081,293
35,540,526
10,656,124

5,068,263
13,218,235

4,562,500

122,074,950

18,000,000
1,587,500
2,889
870,993
6,241,024
443,983
400,831

27,547,220

149,622,170

259,162,226
55,471,662

102,399,995
6,433,874
211,630,458
320,464,327
(7,606,219)

627,491,996

2,436,649

629,928,645

$ 779,550,815

%
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013 AND 2012
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)

(Reviewed, Not Audited)

NET REVENUE (Notes 5, 26, 36 and 41)
COST OF REVENUE (Notes 12, 33 and 36)

GROSS PROFIT BEFORE ASSOCIATES
ELIMINATION

REALIZED GROSS PROFIT FROM ASSOCIATES
GROSS PROFIT
OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 5, 33 and 36)
Research and development
General and administrative
Marketing

Total operating expenses

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES, NET (Notes 27
and 33)

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS (Note 41)
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

Share of profits of associates and joint venture

(Note 14)

Other income (Note 28)

Foreign exchange gain (loss), net

Finance costs (Notes 10 and 29)

Other gains and losses (Note 30)

Total non-operating income and expenses

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Note 31)

NET INCOME

2013 2012
Amount % Amount %
$ 132,754,996 100 $ 105,614,831 100
71,988,726 54 55,210,347 52
60,766,270 46 50,404,484 48
3,540 - 74,029 -
60,769,810 46 50,478,513 48
10,650,985 8 9,157,852 9
4,695,520 3 4,657,004 4
1,029,799 1 1,100,435 1
16,376,304 12 14,915,291 14
34,503 - (445,909) -
44,428,009 34 35,117,313 34
654,153 - 22,204 -
346,321 - 501,236 -
(192,914) - 429,743 -
(493,998) - (217,691) -
1,006,343 1 (179,751) -
1,319,905 1 555,741 -
45,747,914 35 35,673,054 34
6,212,371 5 2,290,118 2
39,535,543 30 33,382,936 32
(Continued)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013 AND 2012
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earning Per Share)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

2013 2012
Amount % Amount %
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(Notes 10, 14, 24 and 31)
Exchange differences arising on translation of
foreign operations $ 2,903,753 2 $ (2,624,773) (2)
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale financialess 2,825,692 2 280,172 -
Cash flow hedges - - 97 -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint venture 135,123 - 42,708 -
Income tax benefit (expense) related to components
of other comprehensive income 43,239 - (152) -
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the
period, net of income tax 5,907,807 4 (2,301,948) (2)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
PERIOD $ 45443350 _34 $ 31,080,988 _ 30
NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Shareholders of the parent $ 39,576,876 30 $ 33,491,634 32
Noncontrolling interests (41,333) - (108,698) -
$ 39535543 _30 $ 33,382,936 _ 32

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Shareholders of the parent $ 45,455,386 34 $ 31,150,434 30
Noncontrolling interests (12,036) - (69.,446) -
$ 45,443,350 34 31,080,988 _ 30

2013 2012

Income Attributable to
Shareholders of

Income Attributable to
Shareholders of

the Parent the Parent
EARNINGS PER SHARE (NT$, Note 32)
Basic earnings per share $ 1.53 $ 1.29
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.53 $ 1.29
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdinsolidated financial statements. (Concluded)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013 AND 2012
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

(Reviewed, Not Audited)

Equity Attributable to Shareholders of the Parent

Others
Unrealized
Foreign Gain (loss)
Capital Stock - Common Stock Retained Earnings Currency from Available-
Shares Legal Capital Special Capital  Unappropriated Translation for-sale Cash Flow Noncontrolling Total
(In Thousands) Amount Capital Surplus Reserve Reserve Earnings Total Reserve Financial Assets Hedges Reserve Total Total Interests Equity

BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2013 25,924,435  $ 259,244,357 $ 55,675,340 $ 115,820,123 $ 7,606,224 $ 284,985,121 $ 408,411,468 $ (10,753,806) $ 7,973,321 $ - $ (2,780,485) $ 720,550,680 $ 2,543,226 $ 723,093,906
Net income for the three months ended

March 31, 2013 - - - - - 39,576,876 39,576,876 - - - - 39,576,876 (41,333) 39,535,543
Other comprehensive income for the three

months ended March 31, 2013, net of

income tax - - - - - - - 3,006,684 2,871,826 - 5,878,510 5,878,510 29,297 5,907,807
Total comprehensive income for the three

months ended March 31, 2013 - - - - - 39,576,876 39,576,876 3,006,684 2,871,826 - 5,878,510 45,455,386 (12,036) 45,443,350
Issuance of stock from exercising employee

stock options 3,797 37,970 69,384 - - - - - - - - 107,354 - 107,354
Stock option compensation cost from

subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 2,701 2,701
Adjustments to share of changes in equity of

associates and joint venture - - 14,238 - - - - - - - - 14,238 - 14,238
Adjustments arising from changes in

percentage of ownership in subsidiaries - - 3,610 - - - - - - - - 3,610 (3,610) -
Decrease in noncontrolling interests - - - - - - - - - - - - (12,464) (12,464)
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2013 25,928,232 $ 259,282,327 $ 55,762,572 $ 115,820,123 $ 7,606,224 $ 324,561,997 $ 447,988,344 $ (7,747,122) $ 10,845,147 $ - $ 3,098,025 $ 766,131,268 $ 2,517,817 $ 768,649,085
BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2012 25,916,222  $ 259,162,226 $ 55,471,662 $ 102,399,995 $ 6,433,874 $ 211,630,458 $ 320,464,327 $ (6,433,364) $ (1,172,762) $ (93) $ (7,606,219) $ 627,491,996 $ 2,436,649 $ 629,928,645
Net income for the three months ended

March 31, 2012 - - - - - 33,491,634 33,491,634 - - - - 33,491,634 (108,698) 33,382,936
Other comprehensive income for the three

months ended March 31, 2012, net of

income tax - - - - - - - (2,630,808) 289,569 39 (2,341,200) (2,341,200) 39,252 (2,301,948)
Total comprehensive income for the three

months ended March 31, 2012 - - - - - 33,491,634 33,491,634 (2,630,808) 289,569 39 (2,341,200) 31,150,434 (69,446) 31,080,988
Issuance of stock from exercising employee

stock options 4,382 43,820 92,384 - - - - - - - - 136,204 - 136,204
Adjustments arising from changes in

percentage of ownership in subsidiaries - - 29,006 - - - - - - - - 29,006 (29,006) -
Increase in noncontrolling interests - - - - - - - - - - - - 298,654 298,654
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2012 25,920,604 $ 259,206,046 $ 55,593,052 $ 102,399,995 $ 6,433,874 $ 245,122,092 $ 353,955,961 $ (9,064172) $ (883,193) $ (54) $ (9,947,419) $ 658,807,640 $ 2,636,851 $ 661,444,491

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢insolidated financial statements.




Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013 AND 2012
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

(Reviewed, Not Audited)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Stock option compensation cost from subsidiary
Finance costs
Share of profits of associates and joint venture
Interest income
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and pouent and
intangible assets, net
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss of financial assets
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financiaeds, net
Loss (gain) on disposal of financial assets cariecbst, net
Loss on disposal of investments in associates
Realized gross profit from associates
Loss (gain) on foreign exchange, net
Settlement income from receiving equity securities
Loss arising from changes in fair value of avaiatur-sale
financial assets in hedge effective portion
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Derivative financial instruments
Hedging derivative financial instruments
Receivables from related parties
Notes and accounts receivable
Other receivables from related parties
Inventories
Other current assets
Other financial assets
Accounts payable
Payables to related parties
Salary and bonus payable
Accrued profit sharing to employees and bonus rectivrs and
supervisors
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Provisions
Accrued pension cost
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

Net cash generated by operating activities

2013 2012
$ 45,747,914 $ 35,673,054
35,964,677 27,477,221
531,513 528,186
, 702 -
493,998 217,691
(654,153) (22,204)
(346,321) (501,236)
(28,710) 1,495
- 442,312
- 4,390
(818,315) (82,376)
(2,105) 8,785
4 48 -
(3,540) (74,029)
704,013 (1,688,863)
(8,565) -
759,175 -
9,946 60,998
(649,991) -
(80,495) (461,550)
(7,695,015) (6,965,311)
9,252 (33,996)
(2,967) (2,918,568)
(541,426) (987,853)
66,064 57,572
(2,065,468) 2,731,635
69,794 (422,204)
(2,459,987) (1,921,905)
2,678,344 2,246,386
1,637,627 2,439,334
306,904 363,996
(16,599) (22,972)
73,608,749 56,149,988
(39,077) (48,354)
73,569,672 56,101,634
(Continued)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013 AND 2012
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

(Reviewed, Not Audited)

2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:
Available-for-sale financial assets (4,022) $ (2,477)
Financial assets carried at cost (16,511) -
Property, plant and equipment (80,418,491) (48,570,613)
Intangible assets (951,989) (403,491)
Other assets (11,896) (6,987)
Proceeds from disposal or redemption of:
Available-for-sale financial assets 915,865 89,733
Held-to-maturity financial assets 3,091,725 594,140
Financial assets carried at cost 9,564 45,053
Property, plant and equipment 12,531 13,155
Interest received 315,163 491,549
Refundable deposits paid (5,693) (35,623)
Refundable deposits refunded 30,841 26,979

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(77,032,913)

(47,757,582)

Proceeds from issuance of bonds 45,000,000 17,000,000
Repayment of bonds - (4,500,000)
Increase in short-term loans 230,321 9,452,100
Repayment of long-term bank loans (31,250) -
Repayment of other long-term payables - (1,434,277)
Interest paid (331,695) (235,441)
Guarantee deposits received 3,436 7,544
Guarantee deposits refunded (26,382) (45,933)
Decrease in obligations under finance leases - (81,995)
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options 107,354 136,204
Increase (decrease) in noncontrolling interests (12,464) 298,654
Net cash generated by financing activities 44,939,320 20,596,856
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 1,142,131 (1,593,246)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 42,618,210 27,347,662
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 143,410,588 143,472,277

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdinsolidated financial statements.

-7 -

$ 186,028,798 $ 170,819,939

(Concluded)



Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013 AND 2012
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

1. GENERAL

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company LimiteBSMC), a Republic of China (R.O.C.)
corporation, was incorporated on February 21, 198/SMC is a dedicated foundry in the semiconductor
industry which engages mainly in the manufactursailing, packaging, testing and computer-aidedgdes
of integrated circuits and other semiconductor deviand the manufacturing of masks. Beginning in
2010, TSMC also engages in the researching, dewglopgesigning, manufacturing and selling of solid
state lighting devices and related applicationsipets and systems, and renewable energy and eafficie
related technologies and products.

On September 5, 1994, TSMC's shares were listetth@Taiwan Stock Exchange (TWSE). On October
8, 1997, TSMC listed some of its shares of stockhenNew York Stock Exchange (NYSE) in the form of
American Depositary Shares (ADSS).

The address of its registered office and pringgpate of business is No. 8, Li-Hsin Rd. 6, HsinSuaience
Park, Taiwan. The principal operating activitietk TSMC and its subsidiaries (collectively as the
“Company”) are described in Notes 4 and 41.

2. THE AUTHORIZATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were repadéeide Board of Directors and issued on May 14,320

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FI NANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRSs)

On May 14, 2009, the Financial Supervisory Comrmois¢FSC) announced the roadmap of IFRSs adoption
for R.O.C. companies. Accordingly, starting 20d@npanies with shares listed on the TWSE or traxhed
the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market or Emergingcltlarket should prepare the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Guidelines Gawgtie Preparation of Financial Reports by Seiesrit
Issuers, the IFRSs, International Accounting Stedgl@lASs), interpretations as well as related gook
translated by Accounting Research and Developmeunhdation (ARDF) endorsed by the FSC with the
effective dates (collectively, “Taiwan-IFRSs”.)

The new, revised or amended IFRSs, IASs, interfioetaand related guidance in issue but not yeptdb
by the Company as well as the effective dates dsdyethe International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), are stated as follows; however, the iniloption to the following new, revised or amended
standards and interpretations is still subjecheodffective date to be published by the FSC.



Effective Date Issued b
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretatios IASB (Note)

Endorsed by the FSC but the
effective dates have not yet
been determined by the FSC

Amendments to IFRSs Improvements to IFRSs 2009 - Amendment tanuary 1, 2009 or
IAS 39 January 1, 2010

IFRS 9 (2009) Financial Instruments January 1, 2015

Amendment to IAS 39 Embedded Derivatives Effective in fiscal year

beginning on or after
June 30, 2009

Not vet endorsed by the FSC

Amendments to IFRSs Improvements to IFRSs 2010 - Amendment tuly 1, 2010 or January
IAS 39 1, 2011
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009 - 2011January 1, 2013
Cycle
Amendments to IFRS 1 Limited Exemption from Comparative IFRS Quly 1, 2010
Disclosures for First-time Adopters
Amendments to IFRS 1 Government Loans January 1, 2013
Amendments to IFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of FixedJuly 1, 2011
Dates for First-time Adopters
Amendment to IFRS 7 Disclosures-offsetting Financial Assets and January 1, 2013

Financial Liabilities
Amendments to IFRS 9 and Mandatory Effective Date and Transition  January 1, 2015
IFRS 7 Disclosure

Amendment to IFRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets July 1, 2011
Amendment to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments January 1, 2015
Amendment to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements January 1, 2013
Amendment to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements January 1, 2013
Amendment to IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities January 1, 2013
Amendments to IFRS 10, Consolidated financial Statements, Joint  January 1, 2013
IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 Arrangements, and Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities: Transition Guidance
Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities January 1, 2014
IFRS 12 and IFRS 27
Amendment to IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement January 1, 2013
Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Iltems of Other Comprehensivaly 1, 2012
Income
Amendment to IAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying January 1, 2012
Assets
Amendment to IAS 19 Employee Benefits January 1, 2013
Amendment to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements January 1, 2013
Amendment to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Venture3anuary 1, 2013
Amendment to IAS 32 Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial January 1, 2014
Liabilities

Amendment to IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of AJanuary 1, 2013
Surface Mine

Note: The aforementioned new, revised or amendmttlatds or interpretations are effective afterafisc
year beginning on or after the effective datesessispecified otherwise.



Except for the following items, the Company belieteat the adoption of aforementioned new, revized
amended standards or interpretations will not havagnificant effect on the Company’s the financial
statements in the period of initial application.

a.

IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”

Under IFRS 9, all recognized financial assets aulyen the scope of IAS 39, “Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement,” will be subsequemidasured at either the amortized cost or the fair
value. If the objective of the Company’s businesslel is to hold the financial asset to collect the
contractual cash flows which are solely for paymesftprincipal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, such assets are measured at the zmdortbst. All other financial assets must be
measured at the fair value through profit or Iassfathe balance sheet date.

IFRS 12, “Disclosure of Interests in Other Best

IFRS 12 is a standard that requires a broaderadigd in an entity’s interests in subsidiariesntjoi
arrangements, associates and unconsolidated entifidhe objective of IFRS 12 is to specify the
disclosure information provided by the entity teatibles the users of financial statements in etrafua
the nature of, and risks associated with, its @&y in other entities and the effects of thoserésts on
the entity’s financial assets and liabilities, asllvas the involvement of the owners of nonconingll
interests towards the entity. The Company exp#gwsapplication of IFRS 12 will result in more
extensive disclosures of interests in other estitiethe financial statements

IFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement”

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidancaiovalue measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements.

Amendments to IAS 1, “Presentation of ltems tféd Comprehensive Income”

The amendments to IAS 1 introduce a new disclogen@inology for other comprehensive income,
which require additional disclosures in other coemgnsive income. The items of other
comprehensive income will be grouped into two catieg: (@) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items thifitbe reclassified subsequently to profit or laglsen
specific conditions are met. In addition, incorag bn items of other comprehensive income is also
required to be allocated on the same basis. Thmp@oy expects the aforementioned amendments
will change the Company’s presentation on the state of comprehensive income.

Amendments to IAS 19, “Employee Benefits”

The amendments to IAS 19 change the accountingdéined benefit plans, which require the
Company to recognize changes in defined benefigatidbns or assets, to disclose the components of
the defined benefit costs, to eliminate the corridpproach and to accelerate the recognition of pas
service cost. According to the amendments, alba@l gains and losses will be recognized
immediately through other comprehensive income;ghst service cost, on the other hand, will be
expensed immediately when it incurs and no longeauortized over the average period before vested
on a straight-line basis. In addition, the amenuaso requires a broader disclosure in defined
benefit plans.

Since the FSC has not yet published the effectatesdof the aforementioned new, revised or amended
standards or interpretations issued by the IASB,Gbmpany cannot evaluate the impact on its finci
position, financial performance and cash flows assalt of the initial adoption.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements are the Tiasivan-IFRSs interim consolidated financial stateis

for part of the period covered by the first Taiw&RSs annual consolidated financial statementsapeeb
for the year ended December 31, 2013. The Compatate of transition to Taiwan-IFRSs is January 1,
2012, and the effect of the transition to TaiwaR$s is disclosed in Note 42.

For the convenience of readers, the accompanyingatidated financial statements have been tramslate
into English from the original Chinese version @megal and used in the R.O.C. If there is any coinfli
between the English version and the original Clangsrsion or any difference in the interpretatiérihe
two versions, the Chinese-language consolidateshéial statements shall prevail.

Significant accounting policies are summarizedadiews:
Statement of Compliance

The accompany consolidated financial statemente lh@en prepared in conformity with the Guidelines
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports bgusities Issuers, related laws and regulationd, an
IFRS 1, “First-time adoption of International Fiméad Reporting Standards,” (IFRS 1) and IAS 34,
“Interim Financial Reporting,” endorsed by the FSO.he consolidated financial statements do notgmtes
full disclosures required for a complete set oflai-IFRS annual consolidated financial statements.

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have begmaped on the historical cost basis except for firan
instruments that are measured at revalued amourftdrovalues, as explained in the accounting fedic
below. Historical cost is generally based on taie ¥alue of the consideration given in exchange fo
assets.

The opening balance sheet at the date of transisigorepared with the recognition and measurement
required by IFRS 1. According to IFRS 1, the Conyds required to apply each effective IFRS
retrospectively in its opening balance sheet atddite of transition to Taiwan-IFRSs; except forianmdl
exemptions and mandatory exceptions to such retobise application provided under IFRS 1. The main
optional exemptions the Company adopted are destitbNote 42.

Basis of Consolidation

The basis for the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements incorpofaefinancial statements of TSMC and entities cdiettio
by TSMC (its subsidiaries). Control is achievecewenthe Company has the power to govern the fiahnci
and operating policies of an entity so as to ob@inefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired posksl of are included in the consolidated statemient
comprehensive income from the effective date ofugsitipn and up to the effective date of disposal,
appropriate. Total comprehensive income of subgih is attributed to the owners of the Company an
to the noncontrolling interests even if this resiftthe noncontrolling interests having a detigitance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the falastatements of subsidiaries to bring their actiogn
policies into line with those used by the Company.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income exjgenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Changes in the Company’s ownership interests irsidigries that do not result in the Company losing

control over the subsidiaries are accounted foreguity transactions.

The carrying amounts of the

Company’s interests and the noncontrolling intarest adjusted to reflect the changes in theitivela
Any difference lestwthe amount by which the noncontrolling interese
adjusted and the fair value of the consideratioinl wa received is recognized directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

interests in the subsidiaries.

The subsidiaries in the consolidated financialestants

The detail information of the subsidiaries at thd ef reporting period was as follows:

Name of Investor Name of Investee

TSMC TSMC North America

TSMC Japan Limited (TSMC
Japan)

TSMC Partners, Ltd. (TSMC
Partners)

TSMC Korea Limited (TSMC
Korea)

TSMC Europe B.V. (TSMC
Europe)

TSMC Global, Ltd. (TSMC
Global)

TSMC China Company Limited
(TSMC China)

VentureTech Alliance Fund Il
L.P. (VTAF Ill)

VentureTech Alliance Fund Il,
L.P. (VTAF II)

Emerging Alliance Fund, L.P.
(Emerging Alliance)

Xintec Inc. (Xintec)

TSMC SSL

TSMC Solar

TSMC Guang Neng Investment,
Ltd. (TSMC GN)

TSMC Partners TSMC Design Technology
Canada Inc. (TSMC Canada)

TSMC Technology, Inc. (TSMC
Technology)

TSMC Development, Inc. (TSMC
Development)

InveStar Semiconductor
Development Fund, Inc.
(ISDF)

InveStar Semiconductor
Development Fund, Inc. (Il)

LDC. (ISDF II)
TSMC WaferTech, LLC (WaferTech)
Development
VTAF I Mutual-Pak Technology Co., Ltd.
(Mutual-Pak)
Growth Fund Limited (Growth
Fund)
VTAF Ill, VTAF Il VentureTech Alliance Holdings,
and Emerging LLC (VTA Holdings)
Alliance
TSMC SSL TSMC Lighting North America,

Inc. (TSMC Lighting NA)

Establishment
and Operating
Main Businesses and Products Location
Selling and marketing of integrated San Jose, California,
circuits and semiconductor US.A.
devices
Marketing activities Yokohama, Japan
Investing in companies involved in Tortola, British
the design, manufacture, and Virgin Islands
other related business in the
semiconductor industry
Customer service and technical
supporting activities
Marketing and engineering
supporting activities
Investment activities

Seoul, Korea

Amsterdam, the
Netherlands

Tortola, British
Virgin Islands

Manufacturing and selling of Shanghai, China
integrated circuits at the order of
and pursuant to product design
specifications provided by
customers

Investing in new start-up
technology companies

Investing in new start-up
technology companies

Investing in new start-up
technology companies

Wafer level chip size packaging
service

Engaged in researching,
developing, designing,
manufacturing and selling solid
state lighting devices and related
applications products and
systems

Engaged in researching,
developing, designing,
manufacturing and selling
renewable energy and saving
related technologies and
products

Investment activities

Cayman Islands
Cayman Islands
Cayman Islands
Taoyuan, Taiwan

Hsin-Chu, Taiwan

Tai-Chung, Taiwan

Taipei, Taiwan

Engineering support activities Ontario, Canada

Engineering support activities Delaware, U.S.A.
Investment activities Delaware, U.S.A.

Investing in new start-up
technology companies

Cayman Islands

Investing in new start-up
technology companies

Cayman Islands

Manufacturing, selling, testing and Washington, U.S.A.
computer-aided designing of
integrated circuits and other
semiconductor devices

Manufacturing and selling of
electronic parts and researching,
developing, and testing of RFID

Investing in new start-up
technology companies

Taipei, Taiwan

Cayman Islands

Investing in new start-up
technology companies

Delaware, U.S.A.

Selling and marketing of solid
state lighting related products

Delaware, U.S.A.
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Percentage of Ownership

March 31,

2013

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

50%

98%

99.5%

40%

95%

99%

100%

100%

100%

100%

97%

97%

100%

58%

100%

100%

100%

December 31, March 31, January 1,
2012 2012 2012
100% 100% 100%
100% 100% 100%
100% 100% 100%
100% 100% 100%
100% 100% 100%
100% 100% 100%
100% 100% 100%

50% 53% 53%
98% 98% 98%
99.5% 99.5% 99.5%
40% 40% 40%
95% 95% 100%
99% 99% 100%
100% 100% -
100% 100% 100%
100% 100% 100%
100% 100% 100%
97% 97% 97%
97% 97% 97%
100% 100% 100%
58% 58% 57%
100% 100% 100%
100% 100% 100%
100% 100% 100%
(Continued)



Establishment Percentage of Ownership

and Operating March 31, December 31, March 31, January 1,
Name of Investor Name of Investee Main Businesses and Products Location 2013 2012 2012 2012
TSMC Solar TSMC Solar North America, Inc. Selling and marketing of solar Delaware, U.S.A. 100% 100% 100% 100%
(TSMC Solar NA) related products
TSMC Solar Europe B.V. (TSMC Investing in solar related business Amsterdam, the 100% 100% 100% 100%
Solar Europe) Netherlands
VentureTech Alliance Fund Ill,  Investing in new start-up Cayman Islands 49% 49% 46% 46%
L.P. (VTAF IIl) technology companies
TSMC Solar TSMC Solar Europe GmbH Selling of solar related products ~ Hamburg, Germany 100% 100% 100% 100%
Europe and providing customer service
(Concluded)

Although the Company owns the common shares ofeXitgss than 50% of Xintec's common shares, the
Company has a controlling interest over financial aperating decisions over Xintec. As a resultec
is consolidated.

Foreign Currencies

The financial statements of each individual comsdkd entity were expressed in the currency which
reflected its primary economic environment (funatibcurrency). The functional currency of TSMC and
presentation currency of the consolidated finansiatements are both New Taiwan Dollars (NT$). In
preparing the consolidated financial statement, dperating results and financial positions of each
consolidated entity are translated into NT$.

In preparing the financial statements of each iiddial consolidated entity, transactions in currea@ther
than the entity’s functional currency (foreign @ncies) are recognized at the rates of exchangeaipng

at the dates of the transactions. At the end oh eaporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rategafiing at that date. Non-monetary items cardgedair
value that are denominated in foreign currenciesetranslated at the rates prevailing at the @aen the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items #natmeasured in terms of historical cost in aifore
currency are not retranslated.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated fidustatements, the assets and liabilities of theg2my’s
foreign operations are translated into NT$ usinghexge rates prevailing at the end of each regprtin
period. Income and expense items are translatdétleaaverage exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during tbexiod, in which case the exchange rates at thes drditthe
transactions are used. Exchange differences grigiany, are recognized in other comprehensicerime

and accumulated in equity (attributed to noncohitr@linterests as appropriate).

Classification of Current and Noncurrent Assets and.iabilities

Current assets are assets held for trading purposgsissets expected to be converted to cashpsold
consumed within one year from the balance sheet. dafurrent liabilities are obligations incurred fo
trading purposes and obligations expected to biedetvithin one year from the balance sheet date.
Assets and liabilities that are not classified @sent are noncurrent assets and liabilities, retspady.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid stweents that are readily convertible to known an®woh
cash and which are subject to an insignificant ciskhange in value.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities shall be recoghiaten the Company becomes a party to the consdactu
provisions of the instruments.
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Financial assets and liabilities are initially rgnzed at fair values. Transaction costs thatdarectly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of finaheissets and financial liabilities (other tharafinial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through fiter loss) are added to or deducted from the ¥alue of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, gpeopriate, on initial recognition. Transactiorstodirectly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assmtfinancial liabilities at fair value through (fitcor loss are
recognized immediately in profit or loss. Fairuals determined in the manner described in Note 35

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into the followsmecified categories: Financial assets “at faluea
through profit or loss” (FVTPL), “held-to-maturityfinancial assets, “available-for-sale” financiaisats
and “loans and receivables”. The classificatiopetels on the nature and purpose of the financsgtas
and is determined at the time of initial recogmitio All regular way purchases or sales of finanagdets
are recognized and derecognized on a settlemenbdats. Regular way purchases or sales are pasha
or sales of financial assets that require deliw#rgssets within the time frame established by leggun or
convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit @slo

Derivatives that do not meet the criteria for hedgeounting are stated at fair value, with any gain
losses arising on remeasurement recognized int @rolibss.

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivativeafinial assets with fixed or determinable payments a
fixed maturity dates that the Company has the pesihtent and ability to hold to maturity. Subseqt
to initial recognition, held-to-maturity financialssets are measured at amortized cost using thetiedf
interest method less any impairment.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-deivest that are either designated as available-fier-caare
not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (lm+-teematurity financial assets or (c) financiabeaks at fair
value through profit or loss.

Listed stocks and money market funds held by thengamy that are traded in an active market are
classified as available-for-sale financial assetd are stated at fair value at the end of eachrtiego
period.

Changes in the carrying amount of available-foe-salonetary financial assets relating to changes in
foreign currency rates, interest income calculaisohg the effective interest method and dividends o

available-for-sale equity investments are recoghiire profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying

amount of available-for-sale financial assets aegnized in other comprehensive income. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to beaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously

recognized in other comprehensive income is reifiedso profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instrumeate recognized in profit or loss when the Company'’s
right to receive the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do natdra quoted market price in an active market amalse/
fair value cannot be reliably measured are measatredst less any identified impairment lossesiatend

of each reporting period. Such equity investmameés subsequently remeasured at fair value when thei
fair value can be reliably measured, and the diffee between the carrying amount and fair value is
recognized in profit or loss or other comprehengiceme.
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasakts with fixed or determinable payments thanate
quoted in an active market. Loans and receivablekiding cash and cash equivalents, notes and
accounts receivable and other receivables are mehst amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment, except for those vabées with insignificant discounted effect.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, asesaed for indicators of impairment at the endaghe
reporting period. Financial assets are considerde@ impaired when there is objective evidencg tma
result of one or more events that occurred afterititial recognition of the financial asset, thatimated
future cash flows of the investment have been tdtec

For financial assets carried at amortized costh sisctrade receivables, assets that are assedstdb®
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed ifapairment on a collective basis. The Company
assesses the collectability of receivables by peiftg the account aging analysis and examiningectirr
trends in the credit quality of its customers.

For financial assets carried at amortized costatheunt of the impairment loss is the differencevieen
the asset’s carrying amount and the present vdlastionated future cash flows, discounted at tharfcial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets measured at amortized cqst) & subsequent period, the amount of the impitm
loss decreases and the decrease can be relatetivaiyeto an event occurring after the impairmerats
recognized, the previously recognized impairmeass lis reversed through profit or loss to the exteat
the carrying amount of the financial assets atddie the impairment is reversed does not exceed tivaa
amortized cost would have been had the impairmetnb®&en recognized.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is awreid to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognized in other comprehensive incameereclassified to profit or loss in the period.

In respect of available-for-sale equity securitiegpairment losses previously recognized in profiloss
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any iasesin fair value subsequent to an impairment i®ss
recognized in other comprehensive income and acletetbunder the heading of unrealized gains oekss
from available-for-sale financial assets. In respd available-for-sale debt securities, impairiesses
are subsequently reversed through profit or losmiincrease in the fair value of the investmemt loa
objectively related to an event occurring afterrdgognition of the impairment loss.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amouthie@fmpairment loss is measured as the differbrtgeen

the asset’s carrying amount and the present vdlubeoestimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar finadcsset. Such impairment loss will not be rewtise
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduay the impairment loss directly for all finari@asets
with the exception of trade receivables, where ¢heying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable isidered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amoprgviously written off are credited against the
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset onlynvthe contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financiaétiand substantially all the risks and rewardsvwafership
of the asset to another entity.
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On derecognition of a financial asset in its etyiréhe difference between the asset’s carryinguarhand

the sum of the consideration received and receivalnld the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognized in other comprehensive income and aclatealin equity is recognized in profit or loss.
Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Compaaylassified as either financial liabilities or expuity
in accordance with the substance of the contraetahgements and the definitions of a financaility
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidenaesesidual interest in the assets of an entitgraft
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instrumisnissued by the Company are recognized at theepdsc
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently measureldeeiait amortized cost using effective interest wetbr at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL are deiived that do not meet the criteria for hedge actiogn
and they are stated at fair value, with any gam®sses arising on remeasurement recognized fit pro
loss.

Financial liabilities other than those held fordirey purposes and designed as at FVTPL are sulbsgue
measured at amortized cost at the end of eachtiegp@eriod.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities whand only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The diffeedmetween the carrying amount of the financidlility
derecognized and the consideration paid and pajgbdeognized in profit or loss.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company enters into a variety of derivativaficial instruments to manage its market risk exgosu
foreign exchange rate, interest rate and equityedhuctuation, including forward exchange contsactoss
currency swap contracts, interest rate swaps amaifd stock contracts.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair valaethe date the derivative contracts are entertedaind are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value aetiteof each reporting period. The resulting gaifoss
IS recognized in profit or loss immediately unléiss derivative is designated and effective as ajingd
instrument, in which event the timing of the recitign in profit or loss depends on the nature @& tiedge
relationship.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that asighated and qualify as fair value hedges aregrézed
in profit or loss immediately, together with anyadiges in the fair value of the hedged asset aititiathat
are attributable to the hedged risk.

The effective portion of changes in the fair vatdi@erivatives that are designated and qualifyaeh dlow
hedges is recognized in other comprehensive incantkaccumulated under the heading of cash flow
hedges reserve. Amounts previously recognizedtlmwrocomprehensive income and accumulated in
equity are reclassified to profit or loss in theipg when the hedged item is recognized in prafibss.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orealizable value. Inventories are recorded atdstahcost
and adjusted to approximate weighted-average costhe balance sheet date. Net realizable value
represents the estimated selling price of inveesotiess all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method

Investments accounted for using the equity methotlide investments in associates and interestsinh |
ventures.

An associate is an entity over which the Comparsydignificant influence and that is neither a sdilbsy
nor an interest in a joint venture. Significantiuence is the power to participate in the finahaad
operating policy decisions of the investee butoisaontrol or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement wheréie Company and other parties undertake an
economic activity that is subject to joint cont(@ke. when the strategic financial and operatingjcyo
decisions relating to the activities of the joiinture require the unanimous consent of the pastiasng
control). Joint venture arrangements that invdlve establishment of a separate entity in whictheac
venturer has an interest are referred to as joaahtrolled entities.

The operating results and assets and liabilitiesssbciates and jointly controlled entities areiporated

in these consolidated financial statements usimgy dquity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a jointntrolled entity is initially recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position att @ adjusted thereafter to recognize the Comgany’
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensigeme of the associate and jointly controlleditgnt
The Company also recognized the changes in the sti@quity of associates and jointly controlletitgn

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Canys share of the net fair value of the identiigab
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of associate or an jointly controlled entity recagui at the
date of acquisition is recognized as goodwill, vahis included within the carrying amount of the
investment and cannot be amortized. Any exceshefCompany’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingenbiidies over the cost of acquisition, after reasseent, is
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

When necessary, the entire carrying amount ofrthestment (including goodwill) is tested for impaant

as a single asset by comparing its recoverable angbigher of value in use and fair value less £tstsell)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss rgonized forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment lassecognized to the extent that the recoverableuaimo
of the investment subsequently increases

When the Company subscribes for additional assoapatjointly controlled entity’s new shares at a

percentage different from its existing ownershiprcpatage, the resulting carrying amount of the

investment differs from the amount of the Company’sportionate interest in the associate or jointly

controlled entity. The Company records such aediffice as an adjustment to investments with the
corresponding amount charged or credited to capiigblus. If the Company’s ownership interest is

reduced due to the additional subscription of das®cor joint controlled entity's new shares, the

proportionate amount of the gains or losses prelyovecognized in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or jointly controlledignshall be reclassified to profit or loss on teme basis

as would be required if the investee had direddpalsed of the related assets or liabilities.
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When a consolidated entity transacts with an aas®ar a joint controlled entity, profits and losse

resulting from the transactions with the associatejointly controlled entity are recognized in the

Company’ consolidated financial statements onlythe extent of interests in the associate or jointly
controlled entity that are not related to the Conypa

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at legst accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Costs include any incremental costt #ire directly attributable to the construction or
acquisition of the item of property, plant and ¢upént.

Properties in the course of construction for preidng supply or administrative purposes are caraiedost,
less any recognized impairment loss. Such praserdire classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed aadyréor intended use. Depreciation of these assets
on the same basis as other property assets, corameten the assets are ready for their intended use

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off tbst©f the assets less their residual values dnsr aseful
lives, and it is computed using the straight-linetlmod over the following estimated useful livesand
improvements - 20 years; buildings - 10 to 20 yearachinery and equipment - 3 to 5 years; office
equipment - 3 to 15 years; and leased assets e@®.y The estimated useful lives, residual vaares
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of eapbrting period, with the effect of any changes i
estimates accounted for on a prospective basisnd lsanot depreciated.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciatrdiweir expected useful lives on the same bassvasd
assets. However, when there is no reasonablantgrthat ownership will be obtained by the endloé
lease term, assets are depreciated over the shbtter lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is dereipgd upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continsedofi the assets. Any gain or loss arising ordisigosal

or retirement of an item of property, plant andipment is determined as the difference betweersates
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assetsaredognized in profit or loss.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance lease wheneveéers of the lease transfer substantially allribies and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All otherdease classified as operating leases.

The Company as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognize atraight-line basis over the term of the redtva
lease.

The Company as lessee

Assets held under finance lease are initially reactgyl as assets of the Company at the fair valubeat
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the preseatue of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is includedthe consolidated balance sheet as an obligatideru
finance lease.

Lease payments are apportioned between financenggpmnd reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the rengip@tance of the liability.

Operating lease payments are recognized as ansxpera straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Intangible Assets
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a businessdmied at cost as established at the date ofisitiqn of
the business less accumulated impairment lossasy if

Other intangible assets

Other separately acquired intangible assets withefiuseful lives are carried at cost less accutedla
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. oimation is recognized using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful liveSiechnology license fees - the estimated life of the
technology or the term of the technology transfartiact; software and system design costs - 2yteabs;
patent and others - the economic life or contramigd. The estimated useful life and amortization
method are reviewed at the end of each reportinggewith the effect of any changes in estimatmde
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets
Goodwill

Goodwill is no longer amortized and instead isgddor impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be imghireFor the purpose of impairment testing, goodisill
allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generatmts or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the coaimn. |If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amotne impairment loss is allocated first to resltloe
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to thet amd then to the other assets of the unit pra based

on the carrying amount of each asset in the uny impairment loss for goodwill is recognized ditly

in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognized goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Other tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Companyeres the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there idradigation that those assets have suffered anirmpat
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoviEramount of the asset is estimated in order terdehe

the extent of the impairment loss. When it is possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the reafleramount of the cash-generating unit to whieh th
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consiststdballocation can be identified, corporate tsaee
also allocated to individual cash-generating uritsptherwise they are allocated to the smallestjgrof
cash-generating units for which a reasonable andist@nt allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value éesgs to sell and value in use. In assessingvaluse,
the estimated future cash flows are discountechédr foresent value using a pre-tax discount rat¢ th
reflects current market assessments of the timeevafl money and the risks specific to the asseivfoch
the estimates of future cash flows have not begrstedl.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-géngrunit is estimated to be less than its cagrgimount,
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generatimyg is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in profitoss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reversesatiging amount of the asset or a cash-generatiitg u
Is increased to the revised estimate of its re@bleramount, but so that the increased carryinguamo
does not exceed the carrying amount that would Hmen determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset or cash-generating unprior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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Provision

Provisions are recognized when the Company hassept obligation (legal or constructive) as a tesfuh

past event, it is probable that the Company wilrdguired to settle the obligation, and a relisgdémate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the béshae of the consideration required to settlegiesent
obligation at the end of the reporting period, mngkinto account the risks and uncertainties sudmgnthe

obligation. When a provision is measured usingcégh flows estimated to settle the present oliigat
its carrying amount is the present value of th@ashdlows.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the cereidn received or receivable. Revenue is redémed
estimated customer returns, rebates and othersialibwances.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized wiheigdods are delivered and titles have passediiahw
time all the following conditions are satisfied:

e The Company has transferred to the buyer thefgignt risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e The Company retains neither continuing managéenallvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold

® The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

® |tis probable that the economic benefits assediatith the transaction will flow to the Companygda

® The costs incurred or to be incurred in respeth®@ftransaction can be measured reliably.

Sales agreements typically provide that paymemtuis 30 days from invoice date for a majority of the
customers and 30 to 45 days after the end of th&hrio which revenue from the sale of goods ocour f
some customers. Since the receivables from revieomethe sale of goods are collectible within gear
and such transactions are frequent, fair valudefréceivables is equivalent to the nominal amoéiie

cash to be received.

Rendering of services, royalties, dividend andrageincome

Revenue from a contract to provide services isgeized by reference to the stage of completiorhef t
contract.

Revenue from royalties is recognized on an acdrasis in accordance with the substance of theastev
agreement (provided that it is probable that tleemic benefits will flow to the Company and thecamt
of revenue can be measured reliably).

Dividend income from investments is recognized wtienshareholder’s right to receive payment has bee
established, provided that it is probable thatab@nomic benefits will flow to the Group and thecamt of
income can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recoghizhen it is probable that the economic benefitsflow

to the Company and the amount of income can beuredseliably. Interest income is accrued on atim
basis, by reference to the principal outstandirdyatrthe effective interest rate applicable.
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Retirement Benefits

For defined contribution retirement benefit plapsyments to the benefit plan are recognized axpense
when the employees have rendered service entitliegn to the contribution. For defined benefit
retirement plans, the cost of providing benefiteisognized based on actuarial calculations.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, tbst ©f providing benefits is determined using thejétted
Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations beicayried out at the year end. Actuarial gains lasdes
are recognized in other comprehensive income inpméod which they incur. The cost of providing
benefit at the interim period is determined usimg pension cost rate derived from the actuarialatain at
the end of prior year.

Share-based Payment Arrangements

The Company elected to take the optional exemptiader IFRS 1 for the share-based payment
transactions granted and vested before the datgansition to Taiwan-IFRSs. Please refer to the
description in Note 42 b.

Employee stock option plan that were granted aféeuary 1, 2012 are measured at the fair valubeof t
stock options at the grant date. The fair valuéhefstock option granted determined at the grate df

the stock options is expensed on a straight-lir@sbaver the vesting period, based on the Company’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventualgst, with a corresponding increase in capitaplsisr-
employee stock option. The estimate is revisesuiisequent information indicates that the number of
stock options expected to vest differs from origestimates.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the teently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Interim period income taxes are assessed on anahmasis. Interim period income tax expense is
calculated by applying to an interim period’s pa®-tncome the tax rate that would be applicableotal
annual earnings.

Income tax on unappropriated earnings (excludimgiegs from foreign consolidated subsidiaries) edta

of 10% is expensed in the year of shareholder apprahich is the year subsequent to the year the
earnings are generated.

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are adicdto or deducted from the current year’s tax [@iowi.
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differeruetsveen the carrying amounts of assets and hiasili

in the consolidated financial statements and tlieesponding tax bases used in the computationxabta
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally ogmized for all taxable temporary differences. ddefd
tax assets are generally recognized for all dellgctiemporary differences, net operating loss

carryforwards and unused tax credits to the exteattit is probable that taxable profits will beadable
against which those deductible temporary differerzan be utilized.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxabdenporary differences associated with investmants
subsidiaries and associates, and interests inyeimtures, except where the Company is able taadtie
reversal of the temporary difference and it is pilib that the temporary difference will not revers¢éhe
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arisomg ffeductible temporary differences associated svitth
investments are only recognized to the extentithiatprobable that there will be sufficient taxalgrofits
against which to utilize the benefits of the tengpgrdifferences and they are expected to reversben
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is vadeat the end of each reporting period and redteed
the extent that it is no longer probable that sidfit taxable profits will be available to allow at part of
the asset to be recovered. The deferred tax asbeth originally not recognized is also reviewedtse
end of each reporting period and increased tosttenethat it is probable that sufficient taxabiefiis will
be available to allow all or part of the asseteadcovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measurébeatax rates that are expected to apply in thmgen
which the liability is settled or the asset realizeased on tax rates (and tax laws) that have é&m&eted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reportegpod. The measurement of deferred tax liabilites
assets reflects the tax consequences that woutavfddlom the manner in which the Company expedts, a
the end of the reporting period, to recover ofedlie carrying amount of its assets and liabditie

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in pradfiloss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or dientequity, in which case, the current and defibtex
are also recognized in other comprehensive incan&ectly in equity, respectively.

. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES O F ESTIMATION AND
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Company’s accounting geB, which are described in Note 4, the directwes
required to make judgments, estimates and assumspdilbout the carrying amounts of assets and liakili
that are not readily apparent from other sourc8he estimates and associated assumptions are tased
historical experience and other factors that aresiciered to be relevant. Actual results may diffem
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are redem an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in whiclestenate is revised if the revision affects ohigttperiod,
or in the period of the revision and future periddbe revision affects both current and futureipds.

The following are the critical judgments, apartnfrahose involving estimations, that the directoaseh
made in the process of applying the Company’s adouy policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the consoliifitencial statements.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when the conditiessribed in Note 4 are satisfied. The Company
also records a provision for estimated future reduand other allowances in the same period théetela
revenue is recorded. Provision for estimated sadagns and other allowances is generally made and
adjusted at a specific percentage based on histoexperience and any known factors that would
significantly affect the allowance, and our managetperiodically reviews the adequacy of the pewagpn
used.

As of March 31, 2013, December 31, 2012, March2812 and January 1, 2012, the Company recognized

provisions for estimated sales returns and othlewahces of NT$6,350,698 thousand, NT$6,038,003
thousand, NT$5,428,410 thousand and NT$5,068,268#nd, respectively.
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Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets Otherthan Goodwiill

In the process of evaluating the potential impantred tangible and intangible assets other thardgilh

the Company is required to make subjective judgmentietermining the independent cash flows, useful
lives, expected future revenue and expenses reiatheé specific asset groups with the considematicthe
nature of semiconductor industry. Any change$ésé estimates based on changed economic conditions
or business strategies could result in significaipairment charges in future periods.

For the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2B&2Company recognized the impairment loss at an
amount of nil and NT$442,312 thousand, respectively

Impairment of Goodwiill

The assessment of impairment of goodwill requines@Gompany to make subjective judgment to determine
the identified cash-generating units, allocateghedwill to relevant cash-generating units andnesté the
recoverable amount of relevant cash-generating.unit

For the three month ended March 31, 2013 and 20&2Company did not recognize any impairment loss
on goodwiill.

Impairment Assessment on Investment Using Equity Mi&od

The Company assesses the impairment of investnaectsunted for using the equity method whenever
triggering events or changes in circumstances atelithat an investment may be impaired and carrying
value may not be recoverable. The Company measheeisnpairment based on a projected future cash
flow of the investees, including the underlyinguaagtions of sales growth rate and capacity utiliratate
formulated by such investees’ internal managemeant The Company also takes into account market
conditions and the relevant industry trends to enthe reasonableness of such assumptions.

For the three month then ended March 31, 2013 8t&,2he Company did not recognize any impairment
loss.

Realizable of Deferred Income Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extentithis probable that future taxable profits wiié
available against which those deferred tax assmtsbe utilized. Assessment of the realizationhef t
deferred tax assets requires the Company’s sugegtdgment and estimate, including the future meree
growth and profitability, tax holidays, the amowittax credits can be utilized and feasible taxhpiag
strategies. Any changes in the global economidgrenment, the industry trends and relevant laws and
regulations could result in significant adjustmentshe deferred tax assets.

As of March 31, 2013, December 31, 2012, March281,2 and January 1, 2012, the deferred tax assets
were NT$11,610,593 thousand, NT$13,128,219 thoysi$14,210,531 thousand and NT$13,604,218
thousand, respectively.

Valuation of Inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orreatizable value, and the Company use judgment and
estimate to determine the net realizable valuewdntory at the end of each reporting period.

Due to the rapid technological changes, the Commatiynates the net realizable value of inventory fo
obsolescence and unmarketable items at the endpofting period and then writes down the cost of
inventories to net realizable value. The net radlie value of the inventory is mainly determinedédx

on assumptions of future demand within a spedifie thorizon.
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As of March 31, 2013, December 31, 2012, March2B12 and January 1, 2012, the balance of invesstorie
were NT$37,833,465 thousand, NT$37,830,498 thoysHin&27,759,150 thousand and NT$24,840,582
thousand, respectively.

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012

Cash and deposits in bal $ 182,657,22 $ 140,072,29 $ 168,044,81 $ 139,637,36
Repurchase agreements collaterali

by corporate bonds 2,361,274 2,691,042 1,938,014 -
Repurchase agreements collaterali

by government bonds 510,476 297,911 837,115 3,834,914
Repurchase agreements collateral

by short-term commercial paper 499,825 349,341 - -

$ 186,028,79 $ 143,410,58 $ 170,819,93 $ 143,472,27

. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012
Derivative financial asse
Forward exchange contra $ 9,59: $ 38,60° $ 1,37¢ $ 15,36(
Cross currency swap contré 8,61 947 282 -

$ 18,20¢ $ 39,55¢ $ 1,65¢ $ 15,36(

Derivative financial liabilitie:

Forward exchange contra $ 3,80¢ $ 12,17 $ 60,20° $ 13,62:
Cross currency swap contre 41° 3.45] 831 11¢

$ 4,22 $ 15,62t $ 61,03¢ $ 13,74.

The Company entered into derivative contracts taaga exposures due to fluctuations of foreign
exchange rates. The derivative contracts entetecbly the Company did not meet the criteria faldee
accounting. Therefore, the Company did not appljge accounting treatment for derivative contracts.
Outstanding forward exchange contracts consistéldeofollowing:

Contract Amount

Maturity Date (In Thousands)
March 31, 2013
Sell NT$/Buy US$ April 2013 NT$810,124/US$27,200
Sell NT$/Buy JPY April 2013 NT$14,261/JPY45,000
Sell US$/Buy JPY April 2013 US$73,191/JPY6,893,306
Sell US$/Buy NT$ April 2013 to June 2013 US$14,340/NT$424,772
Sell US$/Buy RMB April 2013 to May 2013 US$64,000/RMB399,375
(Continued)
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December 31, 2012

Sell NT$/Buy EUR
Sell NT$/Buy US$
Sell NT$/Buy JPY
Sell US$/Buy NT$
Sell US$/Buy RMB

March 31, 2012

Sell NT$/Buy JPY
Sell NT$/Buy US$
Sell RMB/Buy US$
Sell US$/Buy EUR
Sell US$/Buy JPY
Sell US$/Buy NT$

January 1, 2012

Sell EUR/Buy NT$
Sell NT$/Buy US$
Sell RMB/Buy US$
Sell US$/Buy EUR
Sell US$/Buy JPY
Sell US$/Buy NT$

Maturity Date

January 2013
January 2013
January 2013
January 2013 to March 2013
January 2013

April 2012
April 2012 to May 2012
April 2012
April 2012
April 2012
April 2012 to May 2012

January 2012

January 2012
January 2012
January 2012

Outstanding cross currency swap contracts consigteu following:

Maturity Date

March 31, 2013

April 2013
April 2013

December 31, 2012

January 2013
January 2013

March 31, 2012

April 2012

January 1, 2012

January 2012

Contract Amount
(In Thousands)

NT$1,448,327/US$48,580
US$252,000/NT$7,525,120 0.50%-0.60% -

Contract Amount
(In Thousands)

NT$9,417,062/EUR246,000
NT$590,403/US$20,400
NT$44,110/JPY130,000
US$13,700/NT$398,239
US$20,000/RMB124,735

NT$869,791/IPY2,362,000
NT$187,420/US$6,350
RMB1,230,782/US$195,000
US$1,565/EUR1,200
US$42,327/IPY3,403,622
US$10,800/NT$318,434

EUR38,600/NT$1,528,206

January 2012 to February 2012NT$163,491/US$5,400

RMB1,118,705/US$177,000
US$2,082/EUR1,591
US$3,335/JPY259,830

January 2012 to February 2012US$16,900/NT$510,122

(Concluded)

Range of Range of
Interest Rates  Interest Rates

Paid Received

- 0.20%-0.57%

NT$1,083,139/US$37,280
US$275,000/NT$7,986,190 0.14%-0.17%

NT$604,165/US$20,450 -

NT$420,431/US$13,880 -
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8. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

10.

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012
Publicly traded stocl $ 43,248,32 $ 41,160,43 $ 3,573,87. $ 3,306,24
Money market funds 2,24¢ 1,44 3,92¢ 2,522

$ 4325057 ¢ 4116188 ¢$ 357780 $ 3,308, 77

Current portio $ 1,16290. $ 2,41063 $ 357780 $ 3,308, 77
Noncurrent portion 42,087,66 38,751,24 - -

$ 43,25057 ¢$ 41,161,883 $ 3577,80 $ 3,308,77!

In October 2012, the Company invested in ASML HaoddN.V. (ASML) for EUR837,816 thousand to
acquire 5% of equity with a lock-up period of 2éays starting from the acquisition date. (Notg 39f

In the second quarter of 2012, the Company recegnan impairment loss on some of the overseas
publicly traded stocks in the amount of NT$2,679,8®usand due to the significant decline in failue.

. HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS
March 31, December 31, March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012
Corporate bonc $ 2,044,822 $ 5,056,97. $ 7,841,49 $ 8,614,52
Government bonc - - 442,93! 454,32(
$ 2,044,82. $ 5,056,97. $ 8,284,43 $ 9,068,84"
Current portio $ 2,044,82. $ 5,056,97 $ 6,253,61 $ 3,825,68
Noncurrent portio - - 2,030,81. 5,243,16
$ 2,044,82. $ 5,056,97. $ 8,284,43 $ 9,068,84
HEDGING DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012
Financial assel- noncurren
Fair value hedgt
Stock forward contrac $ 659,35 $ - $ - $ -
Financid liabilities - curren
Cash flow hedge
Interest rate swap contra $ - $ - $ 13¢ $ 232

The Company’s investments in publicly traded stomies exposed to the risk of market price fluctuetio
Accordingly, the Company entered into stock forwaahtracts to sell shares at a contracted prica in
specific future period in order to hedge the failue risk caused by floating equity prices.
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11.

The outstanding stock forward contracts consistatieofollowing:

Contract Shares (In Thousands) Maturity Date Contract Price

March 31, 2013

5,500 May 2015 to June 2015 Determined by the specific percentage of
spot price on the trade date

The Company’s long-term bank loans bear floatirtgrest rates; therefore, changes in the marketesite
rate may cause future cash flows to be volatileccoddingly, the Company entered into an interet ra
swap contract in order to hedge cash flow risk edusy floating interest rates.

The outstanding interest rate swap contract catst the following:

Contract Amount Range of Interest  Range of Interest
(In Thousands) Maturity Date Rates Paid Rates Received

March 31, 2012

NT$68,000 August 31, 2012 1.38% 0.86%

January 1, 2012
NT$80,000 August 31, 2012 1.38% 0.63%-0.86%

For the three months ended March 31, 2012, thesadgnt to shareholders’ equity and the amount
removed from shareholders’ equity and recognizea ésss from the above interest rate swap contract
amounted to a net loss of NT$1 thousand and NTB88sand, respectively, which were included under
finance costs in the consolidated statement of cengmsive income.

NOTES AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

March 31, December 1, March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012
Notes and accounts receive $ 65,962,27 $ 58,257,79 $ 53,286,54 $ 46,321,24
Allowance for doubtful receivabl (489,749 (480,21) (490,88) (490,95)

Notes and accounts receivable,1 $ 65,47259 $ 5777758 $ 52,79566 $ 45,830,28

The Company’s sales agreements typically provide tthe payment is due 30 days from the invoice date
for a majority of the costumers and 30 to 45 ddier ghe end of the month in which sales occursimme
customers. The allowance for doubtful receivabikesassessed by reference to the collectability of
receivables by performing the account aging anslysstorical experience and current financial ol

of customers.

Except for those impaired, for the rest of the a@ad accounts receivable, the account aging asalys
the end of the reporting period is summarized ia fbllowing table. Notes and accounts receivable
include amounts that are past due but for whichGbmpany has not recognized an allowance for daoubtf
receivables after the assessment since there hdsean a significant change in the credit qualityt®
customers and the amounts are still considered/eeable.
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Aging analysis of notes and accounts receivable, ne

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012
Neither past due nor impait $ 56,618,89¢ $ 47528,95. $ 46,174,10 $ 39,362,39
Past due but not impair
Past duewithin 30 day 8,79363C 10.248,63 6,621,56. 6,467,89:

$ 6547259 $ 5777758 $ 52,795,66 $ 45,830,28

Movements of the allowance for doubtful receivables

Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
Balance, beginning of the period $ 480,212 $ 490,952
Provision (reversal) 9,464 3
Effect of exchange rate changes 72 (67)
Balance, end of the period $ 489,748 $ 490,882

Aging analysis of accounts receivable that is irthiglly determined to be impaired

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,

2013 2012 2012 2012
Not past du $ 97,405 $ 160,354 $ 87,99¢ $ 81,017
Past du¢l-30 day: 1,867 2,86% 22,17¢ 24,351
Past due31-60 day: 521 - - 4,68¢
Past due61-120 day 78¢ - - -
Past ducover 120 day 3,157 3,15 3,15 9,76¢

$ 103,73 $ 166,37: $ 113,33 $ 119,82

The Company held bank guarantees as collateraiefidain impaired accounts receivables. As of March
31, 2013, December 31, 2012, March 31, 2012 andadgri, 2012, the amount of the bank guarantee were
nil, US$1,000 thousand, US$5,462 thousand and @822housand, respectively.

. INVENTORIES
March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012
Finished gooc $ 6,95390. $ 6,24482 $ 4381500 $ 3,347,84
Work in proces 25,517,54 25,713,21 19,414,01 17,94096(
Raw material 3,320,05! 3,864,10: 2,270,36. 1,808,61!
Supplies and spare pz 2,041,97. 2,008,35. 1,693,27 1,743,15

$ 3783346 $ 37,830,49 $ 27,759,15 $ 24,840,58

The reserve for inventory write-downs in the amooinNT$94,941 thousand was reversed in the cost of
revenue for the three months ended March 31, 20iénvihe related inventory items were scrapped or
sold. Write-down of inventories to net realizabl@lue in the amount of NT$642,307 thousand was
included in the cost of revenue for the three memthded March 31, 2012.
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13. FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT COST

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012

Non-publicly traded stocl $ 3,408,947 $ 3,314,71. $ 3,873,28 $ 4,004,31
Mutual fund: 294,641 290,36+ 306,89¢ 310,69:

$ 3,703,59 $ 3,605,07 $ 4,180,18! $ 4,315,00:

Since there is a wide range of estimated fair vahfethe Company’s investments in non-publicly égd
stocks, the Company concludes that the fair vahrmnet be reliably measured and therefore should be
measured at the cost less any impairment.

For the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 26&2Company recognized impairment on financial
assets carried at cost of nil and NT$4,390 thousasgectively.

14. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD
Investments accounted for using the equity metlodisted of the following:

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012

Investments in associa $ 21,075,72 $ 20,325,27 $ 20,732,119 $ 22,033,56
Investments in jointly controlle
entities 3,176,342 3,035,641 2,847,918 2,853,364

$ 2425207 $ 2336091 $ 23580,10 $ 24,886,93
a. Investments in associates

Associates consisted of the following:

Place of Carrying Amount % of Ownership and Voting Rights Held by the Compay
Incorporation and March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1, March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
Name of Associate Principal Activities Operation 2013 2012 2012 2012 2013 2012 2012 2012
Vanguard Internationi Research, esign, Hsinchu, Taiwa $ 9,783,16 $ 9,406,59 $ 8,942,40 $ 8,985,334 40% 40% 41% 39%
Semiconductor development,
Corporation (VIS) manufacture,
packaging, testing and
sale of memory
integrated circuits, LSI,
VLSI and related parts
Systems on Silico Fabrication and supply «  Singapor 7,292,69 6,710,95 5,388,36 6,289,42' 39% 39% 39% 39%
Manufacturing integrated circuits
Company Pte Ltd.
(SSMC)
Motech Industries, Inc ~ Manufacturing and sal¢ Taipei, Taiwal 2,752,39 2,992,89 5,217,55 5,609,00 20% 20% 20% 20%
(Motech) of solar cells,
crystalline silicon solar
cell, and test and
measurement
instruments and design
and construction of
solar power systems
Global Unichip Researching, developin Hsinchu, Taiwa 1,247,47 1,214,82 1,183,86 1,149,79 35% 35% 35% 35%
Corporation (GUC) manufacturing, testing
and marketing of
integrated circuits
Mcube Inc. (Mcube Research, developme! Delaware, U.S.£ - - - - 25% 25% 25% 25%
and sale of
micro-semiconductor
device
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In February 2010, the Company subscribed to 75tBbGsand shares of Motech through a private
placement for NT$6,228,661 thousand; after the gyti®on, the Company’s percentage of ownership
in Motech was 20%. Transfer of the aforementionetchmon shares within three years from the
acquisition date is prohibited unless permittedther related regulations.

In the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company recogmizan impairment loss in the amount of
NT$1,186,674 thousand, due to the lower estimagedverable amount compared with the carrying
amount of its investments in stocks traded on tevdn GreTai Securities Market.

Financial information of the Company’s associates summarized as follows:

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012
Total asse $ 77,433,868 $ 76889,28 $ 79,605,81 $ 79,721,04:
Total liabilities (20,149,405) (21,683,50) (25,059,42) (20,948,85%)
Net asse $ 5728446 $ 55,20579 $ 54546,39 $ 58,772,18
The Company’ shareof net
assets of associates $ 21,075,728 $ 20,325,277 $ 20,732,191 $ 22,033,567

Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
Net revenue $ 11,913,062 $ 12,006,044
Net income $ 1215637 $ 66,170
The Company’s share of profits of associates $ 531,617 $ 18,107
The Company’s share of other comprehensive incdme o
associates $ 204,595 $ (19,650)

The market prices of the investment accounted §imguthe equity method in publicly traded stocks
calculated by the closing price at the balancetdiesie are summarized as follows:

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
Name of Associate 2013 2012 2012 2012
VIS $ 1752743 $ 1265870 $ 8,00985 $ 6,627,75
Motect $ 275123 $ 2383824 $ 4304005 $ 4,64517¢
GUC $ 429061 $ 4,692,131 $ 5,18235 $ 4,645,44

Investments in jointly controlled entities

Place of Carrying Amount % of Ownership and Voting Rights Held by the Compay
Name of Jointly Incorporation and March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1, March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
Controlled Entity Principal Activities Operation 2013 2012 2012 2012 2013 2012 2012 2012

VisEra Holding Investing in companie Cayman Islanc $ 3176,34 $ 3,03564 $ 2,847,91 $ 2,853,36 49% 49% 49% 49%
Company (VisEra involved in the design,
Holding) manufacturing and
other related businesses
in the semiconductor
industry
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Financial information of the Company’s jointly cooited entities was summarized as follows:

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012

Current asse $ 2,06156¢ $ 1,883,127 $ 1,552,724 $ 161691¢
Noncurrent asse $ 1,78€,60C $ 1,780,203 $ 1,724,092 $ 1,732,247
Current liabiliies $ 67431C $ 63180¢° $ 42¢€15¢ $  49E06¢€
Noncurrent liabilitie $ 516 $ 581 $ 74C $ 73z

Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012

Net revenue $ 467,857 $ 223,539
Cost of revenue $ 287,232 $ 207,540
Operating expenses $ 32,262 $ 28517
Non-operating income, net $ 4536 $ 6,520
Income tax benefit (expense) $ (30,363) $ 10,095
The Company’s share of profits of joint venture $ 122,536 $ 4,097
The Company’s share of other comprehensive incdoss)(of

joint venture $ (69,472) $ 62,358

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012
Land and land improvemel $ 4,376,04 $ 1,159,75 $ 1,182,42 $ 1,185,557
Buildings 84,537,30 85,610,10 83,550,44 71,915,74
Machinery and equipme 382,285,31 404382,29¢ 359,751,99 294,814,38
Office equipmer 7,504,55; 6,907,37 6,091,69 5,148,53
Assets under finance leas 437,89 438,66 471,58¢ 493,94!
Advance payments and constructior
progress 187,306,277 119,063,976 58,905,293 116,863,976
$ 666,447,38 $ 617,562,18 $ 509,953,50 $ 490,4:2,15:
Three Months Ended March 31, 201
Balance, Beginning Effect of Exchange Balance,
of Period Additions Disposals Impairment Reclassification Rate Changes End of Period
Cos
Land and land improvemel $ 1,527,12. $ 3,212,001 $ - $ - $ - $ 21,60¢ $ 4,760,73
Buildings 197,411,85 1,653,20 - - - 492,28! 199,557,34
Machinery and equipme 1,27989:,177 10145672 (1,054277) - - 1,632,861 1,29(,615,43:
Office equipmer 20,067,94 1,157,52 (287361) - - 35,1€8 20,973,27
Assets under finance lea 766,73: - - - - 16,49¢ 783,23(
1,49966¢€,827 $ 6.16¢€,4¢ $ (1,341,63¢) $ - $ - $ 2,19¢,421 1,516,690,01
Accumulated depreciatiiand impairmer
Land improvemen 367,36¢ $ 6,71 $ - $ - $ - $ 10,60¢ 384,69:
Buildings 111,801731 2,930,30 - - - 288,001 115,020,03
Machinery and equipme 87551(,879 32,44904C (1,052,47) - - 1,422,714 908,330,11
Office equipmer 13,160,56 568,49 (287,121) - - 26,78 13,468,72
Assets under nance leas: 328,06¢ 10,11¢ - - - 7.14¢ 345,33
1,00116¢,61¢ $ 35964677 $ (1,339,60) $ $ $ 1,75E,216 1,037,548,90
Advance payments and construction in prog 119065,97€ $ 68,236,002 $ - $ $ $ 4,29¢ 187,306,27
$ 617,562,18 $ 666,447,38
Three Months Ended March 31, 201
Balance, Beginning Additions Effect of Exchange Balance,
of Period (Deductions) Disposals Impairment Reclassification Rate Changes End of Period
Cos
Land and land improvemel $ 1,541,12: $ 14,47( $ - $ - $ - $ (19,737) $ 1,535,86
Buildings 172,997,39 14,567,59 (40,26:) - - (520,:57) 187,004,46
Machinery and equipme 1,057,926,52 90,006,94 (389,96:) - - (1,622,05') 1,145,921,45
Office equipmer 17,041,30 1,361,50 (290,821) - - (57,23:) 18,054,75
Assets uncr finance least 791,48( - - - - (19,74¢) 771,73
1,250,297,83 $ 105,950,50 $ (721,05;) $ = $ - $ (2,239,02)) 1,353,288,26
Accumulated depreciation and impairr
Land improvemen 355,55! $ 6,77t $ - $ - $ - $ (8,951) 353,37¢
Buildings 101,081,65 2,667,68 (31,15¢) - - (264,16:) 103,454,01
Machinery and equipme 763,112,14 24,384,98 (386,021) 442,31 - (1,383,96) 786,169,45
Office equipmer 11,892,76 407,69 (290,37!) - - (47,03:) 11,963,05
Assets under finance lea 297,53! 10,077 - - (7.467) 300,14!
876,739,65 $  27,477,22 $ (707,56:) $ 442,31; $ - $ (1,711,57.) 902,240,05
Advance payments and construction in prog 116.863,97 $ (57,851,47) $ - $ - $ (24¢) $ (106,95¢) 58,905,29
$ 490,422,15 $ 500,953,50

-31 -



The significant part of the Company’s buildingslimtes main plants, mechanical and electrical power
equipment and clean rooms, and the related degigetia calculated using the estimated useful li@e20
years, 10 years and 10 years, respectively.

In March 2012, the Company recognized impairmessds of NT$442,312 thousand related to property,
plant and equipment of the foundry reportable segmsence the carrying amount of some of property,
plant and equipment is expected to be unrecoverable

The Company entered into agreements to lease bgddhat qualify as finance leases. The term ef th
leases is from December 2003 to November 2018.

Future minimum lease gross payments were as follows

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012
Minimum lease paymer
Not later than yeal $ 27,62 $ 27,04 $  27,21¢ $ -
Later than 1 year and not later tf
5 years 110,488 108,168 108,864 223,296
Later thal five year: 745,22. 729,56t 761,47 780,96.
883,32 864,77t 897,55 1,004,25:
Less: Future finance expense 105,£7¢ 108471 125,14 133,26!
Present value of minimum lea
payments $ 777353 $ 756,305 $ 772,414 $ 870,993
Present value of minimum le:
payments
Not later than 1 ye $  26,94¢ $ 26,38z $ 26,552 $ -
Later than 1 year and not later tf
5 years 107,803 100,821 104,685 213,411
Later than five yea 642,60: 629,102 641,177 657,58.
$ 777,35 $ 756,30¢ $ 772,41« $ 870,99
Current portio $ 8,41¢ $ 8,19( $ 29,48 $ -
Noncurrent portin 768,93! 748,11t 742.93: 870,99

$ 777,35 $ 756,30 $ 77241 $ 870,99

There was no capitalization of interest for thee¢hmonths ended March 31, 2013. During the three
months ended March 31, 2012, the Company capithlize borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of property, plant agiipment. As such, capitalized interest was NI%8,
thousand with capitalized rates ranged from 1.08%20% for the three months ended March 31, 2012.
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012
Goodwiill $ 563691 $ 552370 $ 559059 $ 5,693,99
Technology license fe 1,364,71. 1,461,89: 1,90¢5,72¢ 1,682,89:
Software and system design ¢ 3,419,13 2,968,94. 2,234,73 2,366,48:
Patent and othe 1,057,67! 1,005,02 1,238,07. 1,118,18

$ 11,478,43 $ 10,959,56 $ 10,969,413 $ 10,86156<

Three Months Ended March 31, 2013

Balance, Effect of
Beginning of Exchange Rate Balance,
Period Additions Disposals Reclassification Changes End of Period
Cost
Goodwill $ 5,523,707 $ - $ - $ - $ 113,210 $ 5,636,917
Technology license fees 4,590,548 - - (29,565) 442 4,561,425
Software and system design
costs 15,095,421 763,917 (700) - 2,400 15,861,038
Patent and others 3,094,664 200,815 - - 2,442 3,297,921
28,304,340 $ 964,732 $ (700) $ (29,565) $ 118,494 29,357,301
Accumulated amortization and
impairment
Technology license fees 3,128,655 $ 67,617 $ - $ - $ 441 3,196,713
Software and system design
costs 12,126,479 313,690 (428) - 2,164 12,441,905
Patent and others 2,089,637 150,206 - - 403 2,240,246
17,344,771 $ 531,513 $ (428) $ - $ 3.008 17,878,864
$ 10,959,569 $ 11,478,437
Three Months Ended March 31, 2012
Balance, Effect of
Beginning of Exchange Rate Balance,
Period Additions Disposals Reclassification Changes End of Period
Cost
Goodwill $ 5693999 $ - $ - $ - $ (103,402) $ 5,590,597
Technology license fees 4,370,173 147,825 - 191,580 (1,179) 4,708,399
Software and system design
costs 13,438,579 144,206 (26,939) 248 (3,635) 13,552,459
Patent and others 2,670,031 259,285 (2,932) 2,926,384

26,172,782 $ 551,316 $ (26,939) $ 191,828 $  (111,148) 26,777,839

Accumulated amortization and

impairment
Technology license fees 2,687,281 % 115452 % - $ - $ (62) 2,802,671
Software and system design
costs 11,072,096 275,841 (26,939) - (3,278) 11,317,720
Patent and others 1,551,842 136,893 - - (423) 1,688,312
15,311,219 $ 528,186 $ (26,939) $ - $ (3,763) 15,808,703
$ 10,861,563 $ 10,969,136

The recoverable amount of the Company’s goodwal Ieen tested for impairment at the end of theannu
reporting period and was determined based on thewa use. The value in use was calculated based
the cash flow forecast from the financial budgetgecing future five-year period, and the Compangadus
annual discount rate of 9.00% and 9.68% in its eésmpairment as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, to reflect the relevant specific liskhe cash-generating unit.

For the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2B&Z ompany did not recognize any impairment loss
on goodwiill.
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17.

18.

19.

OTHER ASSETS

Prepaid expens
Tax receivabl
Long-term receivabl
Other:

Currentportior
Noncurrent portio

SHORT-TERM LOANS

Unsecured loai
Amount
USS$ (in thousand:
Annual interet rate
Maturity date

PROVISIONS

Sales returns and allowan
Warrantie

Curren portion
Noncurren portion

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012

$ 1,855,31 $ 1,080,23 $ 1,245,32! $ 1,436,41

1,397,89: 1,565,10. 1,689,69. 708,89:

764,20! 767,80( 785,20( 785,40(

575,83! 608,41, 595,43: 550,05:

$ 4,593,24 $ 4,021,55 $ 4,315,65! $ 3,480,76!

$ 3,339,37. $ 2,786,40: $ 3,087,51 $ 2,174,01

1,253,86 1,235,14. 1,228,13 1,306,74

4,593,24 4,021,55; 4,315,65! 3,480,76!

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012

$ 3584280 $ 34,71492 $ 34,687,71 $ 25,926,52

$ 1,200,000 $ 1,195500 $ 1,174,700 $ 856,00(

0.41%-0.4%  0.39%-0.58%  0.41%-0.74%  0.45%-1.00%
Duein April Due ir Januar  Due in April Due by

2013 2013 2012 February 2012

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012

$ 6,35069¢ $ 6,038,00: $ 542641C $ 5,068,26:

5,19¢ 4,891 3,08: 2,88¢

$ 6,355,897 $ 6,042,89 $ 5431,49: $ 5,071,15

$ 6,35069¢ $ 6,038,00: $ 5,428,41( $ 5,068,26:

5,19¢ 4,891 3,08: 2,88¢

$ 6,355897 $ 6,042,89. $ 5431,49: $ 5,071,15.
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20.

Sales Returns

and Allowances  Warranties Total

Three months ended March 31, 2013

Balance, beginning of period $ 6,038,003 $ 4,891 $ 6,042,894
Provision 1,746,905 323 1,747,228
Payment (1,440,324) - (1,440,324)
Effect of exchange rate changes 6,114 (15) 6,099
Balance, end of period $ 6,350,698 $ 5,199 $ 6,355,897
Three months ended March 31, 2012

Balance, beginning of period $ 5,068,263 $ 2,889 $ 5,071,152
Provision 1,369,394 193 1,369,587
Payment (1,005,591) - (1,005,591)
Effect of exchange rate changes (3,656) 1 (3,655)
Balance, end of period $ 5,428,410 $ 3,083 $ 5,431,493

Provisions for sales returns and allowances arenatstd based on historical experience, management
judgment, and any known factors that would sigaifity affect the returns and allowances, and are
recognized as a reduction of revenue in the samedpef the related product sales.

The provision for warranties represents the presahte of the Company’s best estimate of the future
outflow of the economic benefits that will be remui under the Company’s obligations for warranties.
The estimate has been made on the basis of hatar&rranty trends of business and may vary asutre
of new materials, altered manufacturing processesher events affecting product quality.

BONDS PAYABLE

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012

Domestic unsecured bon

Issted in September 2011 a

repayable in September 2016,

1.40% interest payable annually $ 10,500,000 $ 10,500,000 $ 10,500,000 $ 10,500,000
Issued in September 2011 ¢

repayable in September 2018,

1.63% interest payable annually 7,500,000 7,500,000 7,500,000 7,500,000
Issued in January 2012 a

repayable in January 2017, 1.29%

interest payable annually 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 -
Issued in January 2012 a

repayable in January 2019, 1.46%

interest payable annually 7,000,000 7,000,000 7,000,000 -
Issued in August 2012 and repaya

in August 2017, 1.28% interest

payable annually 9,900,000 9,900,000 - -

(Continued)
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March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012

Issued in August 2012 and repaya

in August 2019, 1.40% interest

payable annually $ 9,000,000 $ 9,000,000 $ - $ -
Issued in September 2012 ¢

repayable in September 2017,

1.28% interest payable annually 12,700,000 12,700,000 - -
Issued in September 2012 ¢

repayable in September 2019,

1.39% interest payable annually 9,000,000 9,000,000 - -
Issued in October 2012 a

repayable in October 2022, 1.53%

interest payable annually 4,400,000 4,400,000 - -
Issued in January 2013 a

repayable in January 2018, 1.23%

interest payable annually 10,600,000 - - -
Issued in January 2013 a

repayable in January 2020, 1.35%

interest payable annually 10,000,000 - - -
Issued in January 2013 a

repayable in January 2023, 1.49%

interest payable annually 3,000,000 - - -
Issued in Feluary 2013 anc

repayable in February 2018,

1.23% interest payable annually 6,200,000 - - -
Issued in Feluary 2013 anc

repayable in February 2020,

1.38% interest payable annually 11,600,000 - - -
Issued in Fetuary 2013 anc

repayable in February 2023,

1.50% interest payable annually 3,600,000 - - -
Issued il January 2002 an

repayable in January 2012, 3.00%

interest payable annually - - - 4,500,000

$ 125,000,00 $ 80,000,00 $ 35,000,00 $ 22,500,00

$ - $ 4,500,00

$ -
80,000,00 35,000,00 18,000,00

Current portio $ -
Noncurrent portiot 125,000,00

$ 125,000,00 $ 80,000,00 $ 35,000,00 $ 22,500,00
(Concluded)

The Company issued overseas unsecured corporatks oo total amount of US$1,500,000 thousand in
April 2013.

On May 14, 2013, TSMC's Board of Director approtteel issuance of unsecured straight corporate bonds
in the domestic market for an amount not to exd¢€$45,000,000 thousand.
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21. LONG-TERM BANK LOANS

March 31, December31, March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012

Bank loans for working capit:

Repayable in full in one lum

sum payment in June 2016 but

repaid earlier of NT$100,000

thousand in September 2012,

annual interest at 1.21% in

2013 and 1.08%-1.21% in

2012 $ 550,000 $ 550,000 $ 650,000 $ 650,000
Repayable in full in one lum

sum payment in March 2015

but repaid earlier of

NT$50,000 thousand in

August 2012, annual interest

at 1.18%-1.37% in 2013 and

1.16%-1.18% in 2012 450,000 450,000 500,000 500,000
Repayable from July 2012 in :

guarterly installments, annual

interest at 1.24% in 2013 and

1.21%-1.24% in 2012 243,750 262,500 300,000 300,000
Repayable from September 2C

in 16 quarterly installments,

annual interest at 1.24% in

2013 and 1.21%-1.24% in

2012 162,500 175,000 200,000 200,000
Repayable from October 2013

16 quarterly installments,

annual interest at

1.24%-1.25% in 2013 and

1.23%-1.24% in 2012 50,000 50,000 - -

$ 1,456,25 $ 1,487,501 $ 1,650,001 $ 1,650,001

Current portio $ 131,25 $ 128,12 $ 93,75( $ 62,50(
Noncurrent portio 1,325,00! 1,359,37! 1,556,25! 1,587,50!
1,456,25! 1,487,501 1,650,00! 1,650,00!

Pursuant to the loan agreements, financial ratadsutated based on semi-annual and annual financial
statements of Xintec must comply with predetermifieaincial covenants.
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22. OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012

Payables for acquisition
property, plant and equipment $ 843,160 $ 825,447 $ 1,762,363 $ 3,399,855
Payables for software and syst
design costs 113,000 113,000 -
Payables for technology trans - 29,03¢ 147,64! -

$ 956,160 $ 967.48! $ 1,910,00: $ 3,399,85

Current portion (classified und

accrued expenses and other

current liabilities) $ 902,160 $ 913,485 $ 1,850,950 $ 3,399,855
Noncurrent portio 54,00( 54.,00( 59,05¢ -

$ 956,160 $ 967.48! $ 1,910,00: $ 3,399,85

TSMC entered into an agreement with a counterpat003 whereby TSMC China is obligated to
purchase certain property, plant and equipmerteatigreed-upon price within the contract period.thé
purchase is not completed, TSMC China is obligatecompensate the counterparty for the loss indurre
The property, plant and equipment have been irbySESMC China since 2004 and are being depreciated
over their estimated service lives.

23. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
a. Defined contribution plans

The pension mechanism under the Labor Pension thet “@ct”) is deemed a defined contribution
plan. Pursuant to the Act, TSMC, Xintec, MutuakPaSMC SSL and TSMC Solar have made
monthly contributions equal to 6% of each emplogerbnthly salary to employees’ pension accounts.
Furthermore, TSMC North America, TSMC China, TSMGr&pe, TSMC Canada, TSMC Solar NA
and TSMC Solar Europe GmbH are required by locguletions to make monthly contributions at
certain percentages of the basic salary of thepleysges. Pursuant to the aforementioned Act and
local regulations, the Company recognized expergedNT$384,458 thousand and NT$330,541
thousand in the consolidated statements of compséle income for the three months ended March
31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

b. Defined benefit plans

TSMC, Xintec, TSMC SSL and TSMC Solar have defibedefit plans under the Labor Standards Law
that provide benefits based on an employee’s lepfithervice and average monthly salary for the
six-month period prior to retirement. The aforetimrmed companies contribute an amount equal to
2% of salaries paid each month to their respeg@resion funds (the Funds), which are administeyed b
the Labor Pension Fund Supervisory Committee (tbeni@ittee) and deposited in the Committee’s
name in the Bank of Taiwan.

The Company adopted projected unit credit methade¢asure the present value of the defined benefit
obligation, current service costs and prior serciogs.
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The Company adopted the pension cost rate fronad¢herial valuation as of December 31, 2012 and
January 1, 2012 to determine and recognize pemsipanses of NT$60,690 thousand and NT$54,659
thousand in the consolidated statements of compsileincome for the three months ended March 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

The major assumptions of the actuarial valuatioreves follow:

December 31, January 1,
2012 2012
Discount rate used in determining present values 1.50%-1.75% 1.75%
Future salary increase rate 2.00%-3.00%  2.50%-3.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 1.75%-2.00% 2.00%

The pension costs for the three months ended MakrcR013 and 2012 were as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
Cost of revenue $ 38,699 $ 32,518
Research and development expenses 15,438 14,591
General and administrative expenses 5,421 6,408
Marketing expenses 1,132 1,142

60,690 54,659

The amounts arising from the defined benefit obliga of the Company under the consolidated
statements of financial position were as follows:

December 31, January 1,
2012 2012
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation $ 10,133,361 $ 9,214,125
Fair value of plan assets (3,352,567) (3,120,665)
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligatio 6,780,794 6,093,460
Unrecognized prior service cost 140,440 147,564
Accrued pension cost $ 6,921,234 $ 6,241,024

The percentage of the fair value of the plan agsetsajor categories at the end of reporting peviad

as follows:
Fair Value of Plan Assets (%)

December 31, January 1,
2012 2012
Cash 25 24
Equity instruments 38 41
Debt instruments 37 35
100 100

The overall expected rate of return on plan assets based on the historical return trends, analysts
predictions of the market over the life of relatdaigation, reference to the performance of thedsun
operated by the Committee and the consideratigheokffect that the minimum return should not be
less than the average interest rate on a two-yreardeposit published by the local banks.
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The Company elects to disclose the historical mtdron of experience adjustments from the adoption
of Taiwan-IFRSs, which is as follows:

December 31, January 1,
2012 2012
Present value of defined benefit obligation $ 10,133,361 $ 9,214,125
Fair value of plan assets (3.352,567) (3,120,665)
Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligatio $ 6,780,794 $ 6,093,460
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities $ 396,616 $ -
Experience adjustments on plan assets $ (30,000) $ -

The Company expects to make contributions of NT$22¥F thousand to the defined benefit plans in
the next year starting from March 31, 2013.

24. EQUITY
a. Capital stock
March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012
Authorizec $ 280,050,00 $ 280,050,00 $ 280,050,00 $ 280,050,00
Issuet $ 259,282,32 $ 259,244,35 $ 259,206,04 $ 259,1¢2,22¢

As of March 31, 2013, December 31, 2012, March2B12 and January 1, 2012, the authorized capital
shares are 28,050,000 thousand shares, with pae val$10 per share entitled the right to vote tand
receive dividends; issued and paid capital sharesew25,928,232 thousand shares, 25,924,435
thousand shares, 25,920,604 thousand shares &6 222 thousand shares, respectively.

The authorized shares include 500,000 thousandceshaserved for the exercise of employee stock
options.

As of March 31, 2013, 1,091,468 thousand ADSs dfiTSvere traded on the NYSE. The number of
common shares represented by the ADSs was 5,45th88%and (one ADS represents five common
shares).

b. Capital surplus

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012
Additional paic-in capita $ 24,003,999 $ 23,934,660 $ 23,866,63 $ 23,774,25
From merge 22,804,51 22,804,51 22,804,51 22,804,51
From convertible bont 8,892,84 8,892,84 8,892,84 8,892,84

From differencebetweer

equity purchase price and

carrying amount arising from

acquisition or disposal of

subsidiaries 44,343 40,733 29,006 -
From share ochanges it

equities of associates and

joint venture 16,826 2,588 - -
Donation: 55 55 55 55

$ 5576257 $ 55,675,34 $ 55,593,05 $ 55,471,66
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Under the Company Law, the capital surplus generfxten donations and the excess of the issuance
price over the par value of capital stock (inclugihe stock issued for new capital, mergers, cdibler
bonds and the surplus from treasury stock trarmagjtimay be used to offset a deficit; in addition,
when the Company has no deficit, such capital ssrplay be appropriated as cash dividends or stock
dividends, which are limited to a certain perceatafTSMC'’s paid-in capital.

Retained earnings and dividend policy

TSMC'’s Articles of Incorporation provide that, whatocating the net profits for each fiscal year,
TSMC shall first offset its losses in previous yeand then set aside the following items accorglingl

1) Legal capital reserve at 10% of the profits kefer, until the accumulated legal capital reserve
equals TSMC's paid-in capital,

2) Special capital reserve in accordance with eeieMaws or regulations or as requested by the
authorities in charge;

3) Bonus to directors and profit sharing to empésyef TSMC of not more than 0.3% and not less
than 1% of the remainder, respectively. Directoh® also serve as executive officers of TSMC
are not entitled to receive the bonus to directo®SMC may issue profit sharing to employees in
stock of an affiliated company meeting the condsicet by the Board of Directors or, by the
person duly authorized by the Board of Directors;

4) Any balance left over shall be allocated acaaydo the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.

TSMC'’s Articles of Incorporation also provide thabfits of TSMC may be distributed by way of cash
dividend and/or stock dividend. However, distribatof profits shall be made preferably by way of
cash dividend. Distribution of profits may also fnade by way of stock dividend; provided that the
ratio for stock dividend shall not exceed 50% @ tbtal distribution.

Any appropriations of the profits are subject targimolders’ approval in the following year.

TSMC accrued profit sharing to employees basedeoiaio percentage of net income during the period,
which amounted to NT$2,660,482 thousand and NT&553 thousand for the three months ended
March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Bonusesdirectors were expensed based on estimated
amount of payment. If the actual amounts subseatyusssolved by the shareholders differ from the
estimated amounts, the differences are recordéigeiryear of shareholders’ resolution as a change in
accounting estimate. If profit sharing is resolvede distributed to employees in stock, the numbe
of shares is determined by dividing the amountrofipsharing by the closing price (after consideri
the effect of dividends) of the shares on the dagegding the shareholders’ meeting.

The appropriation for legal capital reserve shalhimde until the reserve equals the Company’sipaid-
capital. The reserve may be used to offset aitigficbe distributed as dividends in cash or ssdck
the portion in excess of 25% of the paid-in capfttie Company incurs no loss.

Pursuant to existing regulations, the Company dsiired to set aside additional special capital riase
equivalent to the net debit balance of the othenpmnents of stockholders’ equity, such as the
accumulated balance of foreign currency translatieserve, unrealized valuation gain/loss on
available-for-sale financial assets, gain/loss frdmanges in fair value of hedging instruments ishca
flow hedges, etc. For the subsequent decreadseiddduction amount to stockholders’ equity, any
special reserve appropriated may be reversed textleat that the net debit balance reverses.
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The appropriations of earnings for 2012 and 201d been approved in TSMC’s Board of Directors’
meeting held on February 5, 2013 and TSMC's shdder® meetings held on June 12, 2012,
respectively. The appropriations and dividendssbare were as follows:

Dividends Per Share

Appropriation of Earnings (NT$)
For Fiscal For Fiscal For Fiscal For Fiscal
Year 2012 Year 2011 Year 2012 Year 2011
Legal capital reserve $ 16,615,880 $ 13,420,128
Special capital reserve (4,820,483) 1,172,350
Cash dividends to shareholders 77,773,307 77,748,668 $3.00 $3.00

$ 89,568,704 $ 92,341,146

The Board of Directors of TSMC also resolved onrkaly 5, 2013 to appropriate profit sharing to
employees and bonus to directors in the amountT®fL 1,115,240 thousand and NT$71,351 thousand
in cash for 2012, respectively. There is no sigaift difference between the aforementioned resolve
amounts and the amount charged against earnir2{s1af

The appropriations of earnings, profit sharingrngp®yees and bonus to directors for 2012 resolyed b
the Board of Directors of TSMC were based on tharftial statements for the year ended December
31, 2012 prepared under R.O.C. GAAP and in acceelanith the Guidelines Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securitiesdssissued by the FSC before amendment, which are
to be resolved in the TSMC's shareholders’ medtielg on June 11, 2013 (expected).

TSMC's profit sharing to employees and bonus teators in the amounts of NT$8,990,026 thousand
and NT$62,324 thousand in cash for 2011, respégtivead been approved in the shareholders’
meeting held on June 12, 2012. The resolved amairihe profit sharing to employees and bonus to
directors were consistent with the resolutions etting of the Board of Directors held on Februaty 1
2012 and same amount had been charged againsigsaafi2011.

The information about the appropriations of TSM@¥sfit sharing to employees and bonus to directors
is available at the Market Observation Post Systefosite.

Under the Integrated Income Tax System that beadfeetive on January 1, 1998, the R.O.C. resident
shareholders are allowed a tax credit for theipprtionate share of the income tax paid by TSMC on
earnings generated since January 1, 1998.

Others
Changes in others were as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31, 201

Unrealized
Foreign Gain/Loss from
Currency Available-for-
Translation sale Financial Cash Flow
Reserve Assets Hedges Reserve Total
Balance, beginning of peri $(10,753,80) $ 7,973,32 $ - $ (2,780,48)
Foreign currency translatic
reserve 2,871,521 - - 2,871,521
Changes in unrealized gain frc
available-for-sale financial
assets - 3,644,263 - 3,644,263

(Continued)
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Three Months Ended March 31, 201

Unrealized
Foreign Gain/Loss from
Currency Available-for-
Translation sale Financial Cash Flow
Reserve Assets Hedges Reserve Total
Cumulative(gair)/loss
reclassified to profit or loss
upon disposal of
available-for-sale financial
assets $ - $ (815,636) $ - $ (815,636)
Share of other comprehensi
income of associates and joint
venture 134,653 (14) - 134,639
The proportionate share cther
comprehensive income/losses
reclassified to profit or loss
upon partial disposal of
associates 510 (26) - 484
Income tax effe: - 43,23¢ - 43,23¢
Balance, nd of periot $ (7,747,12) $10,845,14 $ - $ 3,098,02
(Concluded)
Three Months Ended March 31, 201
Unrealized
Foreign Gain/Loss from
Currency Available-for-
Translation sale Financial Cash Flow
Reserve Assets Hedges Reserve Total
Balance, beginning of peri $ (6,433,36) $ (1,172,76) $ (93 $ (7,606,21)
Foreign currency translatic
reserve (2,658,504) - - (2,658,504)
Changes in fair value of hedgil
instruments for cash flow
hedgegeclassified to profit c
loss - - 39 39
Changes in unrealized gefrom
available-for-sale financial
assets - 354,686 - 354,686
Cumulative(gair)/loss
reclassified to profit or loss
upon disposal of
available-for-sale financial
assets - (79,977) - (79,977)
Share of other comprehensi
income of associates and joint
venture 27,696 15,012 - 42,708
Income tax effe: - (152) - (152)
Balance, end of peri $ (9,064,17) $ (883,19) $ (549) $ (9,947,41)

The exchange differences arising from the trarsfaf foreign operation’s net assets from its
functional currency to TSMC's presentation curreacg recognized directly in other comprehensive
income and also accumulated in the foreign currérasslation reserve.

-43 -



Unrealized gain/loss on available-for-sale finaheissets represents the cumulative gains or losses
arising from the fair value measurement on avadgtdbi-sale financial assets that are recognized in
other comprehensive income, excluding the amouetegnized in profit or loss for the effective
portion from changes in fair value of the hedgdrumeent. When those available-for-sale financial
assets have been disposed of or are determined tmpmired subsequently, the related cumulative
gains or losses in other comprehensive incomeeatassified to profit or loss.

The cash flow hedges reserve represents the cuweutHfective portion of gains or losses arising on

changes in fair value of the hedging instrumentgred into for cash flow hedges. The cumulative
gain or loss arising on changes in fair value @& tredging instruments that are recognized and
accumulated in cash flow hedges reserve will béassdied to profit or loss only when the hedge

transaction affects profit or loss.

e. Noncontrolling interests
Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
Balance, beginning of period $ 2,543,226 $ 2,436,649
Share of noncontrolling interests
Net loss (41,333) (108,698)
Changes in fair value of hedging instruments fahddow
hedges - (D)
Changes in fair value of hedging instruments fahddow
hedges reclassified to profit or loss - 59
Adjustments arising from changes in percentage of
ownership in subsidiaries (3,610) (29,006)
Changes in unrealized gain/(loss) from availablestie
financial assets (256) 7,862
Cumulative (gain)/loss reclassified to profit osscupon
disposal of available-for-sale financial assets (2,679) (2,399)
Stock option compensation cost from subsidiary 2,701 -
Foreign currency translation reserve 32,232 33,731
Increase (decrease) in noncontrolling interests (12,464) 298,654
Balance, end of period $ 2517817 $ 2,636,851

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
a. Optional exemption from applying IFRS 2 “Shaesdd Payment” (IFRS 2)

The Company elected to take the optional exempitiom applying IFRS 2 retrospectively for the
shared-based payment transactions granted anddvesfere January 1, 2012. The plans are
described as follows.

TSMC’s Employee Stock Option Plans, consisting hed TSMC 2004 Plan, TSMC 2003 Plan and
TSMC 2002 Plan, were approved by the Securities Futdres Bureau (SFB) on January 6, 2005,
October 29, 2003 and June 25, 2002, respectiv@ifie maximum number of options authorized to be
granted under the TSMC 2004 Plan, TSMC 2003 Plah@MC 2002 Plan was 11,000 thousand,
120,000 thousand and 100,000 thousand, respectiwily each option eligible to subscribe for one
common share of TSMC when exercised. The optioag be granted to qualified employees of
TSMC or any of its domestic or foreign subsidiariasvhich TSMC’s shareholding with voting rights,
directly or indirectly, is more than fifty perce(80%). The options of all the plans are valid tiem
years and exercisable at certain percentages subdetp the second anniversary of the grant date.
Under the terms of the plans, the options are gdaat an exercise price equal to the closing pfce
TSMC’s common shares listed on the TWSE on thetgtate.
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Options of the plans that had never been grantdthdrbeen granted but subsequently canceled had
expired as of March 31, 2013.

Information about TSMC'’s outstanding options foe tihiree months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012
was as follows:

Weighted-
Number of average
Options Exercise Price
(In Thousands) (NT$)
Three months ended March 31, 2013
Balance, beginning of period 5,945 $34.6
Options exercised (3,797) 28.3
Balance, end of period 2,148 45.7
Three months ended March 31, 2012
Balance, beginning of period 14,293 $32.1
Options exercised (4,382) 31.1
Balance, end of period 9,911 32.6

The numbers of outstanding options and exercisepiave been adjusted to reflect the distribudfon
earnings by TSMC in accordance with the plans.

Information about TSMC's outstanding options wasodlews:

March 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Weighted-average Weighted-average
Range of Exercise Remaining Range of Exercise Remaining
Price Contractual Life Price Contractual Life
(NT$) (Years) (NT$) (Years)
$20.2-$28.3 0.2 $20.2-$28.3 0.4
$38.0-$50.1 1.8 $38.0-$50.1 2.0
March 31, 2012 January 1, 2012
Weighted-average Weighted-average
Range of Exercise Remaining Range of Exercise Remaining
Price Contractual Life Price Contractual Life
(NTS) (Years) (NTS) (Years)
$20.9-$29.3 11 $20.9-$29.3 1.2
$38.0-$50.1 2.7 $38.0-$50.1 2.9

As of March 31, 2013, all of the above outstandiptons were exercisable.
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Xintec’s Employee Stock Option Plans, consistinghef Xintec 2007 Plan and Xintec 2006 Plan, were
approved by the SFB on June 26, 2007 and July @6,2@spectively. The maximum number of
options authorized to be granted under the Xin@@72Plan and Xintec 2006 Plan was 6,000 thousand
each, with each option eligible to subscribe foe @@mmon share of Xintec when exercised. The
options may be granted to qualified employees afteG or any of its subsidiaries. The options of
Xintec 2007 Plan and Xintec 2006 Plan are validtéor years and exercisable at certain percentages
subsequent to the second anniversary of the gedet d

Information about Xintec’'s outstanding options fbe three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012
was as follows:

Weighted-
Number of average
Options Exercise Price
(In Thousands) (NT$)
Three months ended March 31, 2013
Balance, beginning of period 515 $13.8
Options exercised (58) 14.7
Balance, end of period 457 13.7
Three months ended March 31, 2012
Balance, beginning of period 825 $15.1
Options exercised (203) 17.6
Balance, end of period 622 14.3

The exercise prices have been adjusted to refiectlistribution of earnings by Xintec in accordance
with the plans.

Information about Xintec’s outstanding options easollows:

March 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

Weighted-average

Range of Exercise Remaining
Price Contractual Life
(NT$) (Years)

$10.7-$12.5 3.5
$14.8-$18.6 4.4

March 31, 2012

Weighted-average

Range of Exercise Remaining
Price Contractual Life
(NTS) (Years)

$10.7-$12.5 3.7
$14.8-$18.6 4.6

January 1, 2012

Weighted-average

Range of Exercise Remaining
Price Contractual Life
(NTS) (Years)

$10.9-$12.7 4.5
$14.9-$18.8 5.4
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Range of Exercise Remaining
Price Contractual Life
(NTS) (Years)

$10.9-$12.7 4.8
$14.9-$18.8 5.7



b. Application of IFRS 2

The Company applied IFRS 2 for the following plassthe shared-based payment transactions were
granted and vested on or after January 1, 2012.

The Board of Directors of TSMC SSL and TSMC Soksalved on November 21, 2011 to issue new
shares for cash and reserved 17,175 thousand dratel?,341 thousand shares, respectively, for thei
employees to subscribe to, according to the Company. The aforementioned shares were fully
vested on the grant date.

Information about TSMC SSL's and TSMC Solar's empl® stock options related to the
aforementioned new shares issued was as follows:

TSMC SSL TSMC Solar
Weighted- Weighted-
Number of average Number of average
Options Exercise Options Exercise

(In Thousands) Price (NT$) (In Thousands) Price (NT$)

Three months ended
March 31, 2012

Balance, beginning of period - $ - - $ -
Options granted 17,175 10.0 12,341 10.0
Options exercised (17,175) 10.0 (12,341) 10.0

Balance, end of period - - - - -

The grant date of aforementioned stock options Jeamiary 9, 2012. TSMC SSL and TSMC Solar
used the Black-Scholes model to determine thevidire of the options. The valuation assumptions
were as follows:

TSMC SSL TSMC Solar
Valuation assumptions:
Stock price on grant date (NT$/share) $ 8.9 $ 9.0
Exercise price (NT$/share) 10.0 10.0
Expected volatility 40.32% 40.32%
Expected life 40 days 40 days
Risk free interest rate 0.76% 0.76%

The stock price on grant date was determined baseélde cost approach. The expected volatility was
calculated using the historical rate of return dasethe TWSE Optoelectronic Index.

The fair value of the aforementioned stock opticaswlose to nil, and accordingly, no compensation
cost was recognized.

Xintec’'s Employee Stock Option Plan was approvedheySFB on January 10, 2012 (the “Xintec 2011
Plan”). The maximum number of options authorizedé granted under the Xintec 2011 Plan was
6,000 thousand, with each option eligible to subscior one common share of Xintec when exercised.
The options may be granted to qualified employdeéec or any of its subsidiaries. The optioffis 0
Xintec 2011 Plan are valid for five years and eisatfole at certain percentages subsequent to the
second anniversary of the grant date.
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Information about Xintec’s outstanding options tbe three months ended March 31, 2013 was as

follows:
Weighted-
Number of average
Options Exercise
(In Thousands)  Price (NT$)
Three months ended March 31, 2013
Balance, beginning of period 5,528 $221
Options forfeited (262) 22.1
Balance, end of period 5,266 22.1
Weighted-average fair value of options granted (Nfi&re) $ 5.82

The exercise prices have been adjusted to refiectlistribution of earnings by Xintec in accordance
with the plan.

Information about the outstanding options of Xink®d 1 Plan was as follows:

March 31, 2013
Weighted-average

December 31, 2012
Weighted-average

Range of Exercise Remaining Range of Exercise Remaining
Price Contractual Life Price Contractual Life
(NT$) (Years) (NT$) (Years)
$22.1 4.2 $22.1 4.5

The grant date of Xintec 2011 Plan was June 14220Xintec used the Black-Scholes model to
determine the fair value of the option. The vabhrmassumptions were as follow:

Xintec
Valuation assumptions:

Stock price on grant date (NT$/share) $19.42
Exercise price (NT$/share) $22.30
Expected volatility 43.73%
Expected life 3.875 years
Expected dividend yield -

Risk free interest rate 0.96%

The stock price on grant date was determined basdtle market approach. The expected volatility
was calculated based on the historical stock potése comparative companies of Xintec.

For the three months ended March 31, 2013, Xirteognized compensation cost of the above stock
option in the amount of NT$2,701 thousand.
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26.

27.

28.

29.

REVENUE

The analysis of the Company’s revenue was as fatlow

Revenue from the sale of goods
Revenue from the royalties

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES, NET

Income (expenses) of rental assets
Rental income
Depreciation of rental assets

Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant and popgint and
intangible assets, net

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Settlement income from receiving equity securities

OTHER INCOME

Interest income
Bank deposits
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial assets

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense
Corporate bonds
Bank loans
Finance leases
Others

Loss reclassified to profit or loss arising fronfeetive portion for

cash flow hedges
Capitalized interest
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Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012

$ 132,632,563 $ 105,507,675
122,433 107,156

$ 132,754,996 $ 105,614,831

Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
$ 3,683 $ 254
(6,455) (2,356)
(2,772) (2,102)
28,710 (1,495)
- (442,312)
8,565 -
$ 34,503 $ (445,909)

Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
$ 334,077 $ 462,101
1,520 1,477
10,724 37,658
346,321 501,236

Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
$ 441,694 $ 141,422
42,438 54,938
4,788 24,051
5,078 356
493,998 220,767
- 98
- (3,174)
$ 493,998 $ 217,691



30.

31.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Gain/(loss) on disposal of financial assets, net
Available-for-sale financial assets
Financial assets carried at cost
Other gains
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at FVTPL
Held for trading
Impairment loss of financial assets
Financial assets carried at cost
Fair value hedges
Gain from hedging instruments
Loss arising from changes in fair value of avaiafur-sale
financial assets in hedge effective portion
Other losses

INCOME TAX
a. Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss

Income tax expense consisted of the following:

Current income tax expense (benefit)
Current tax expense recognized for the currenbpgeri
Income tax adjustments on prior years
Other income tax adjustments

Deferred income tax expense (benefit)
Temporary differences
Income tax credits

Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss

b. Income tax expense recognized in other compsi#®income

Deferred income tax expense (benefit)
Related to unrealized gain/loss on available-fée-§aancial
assets
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Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
$ 818315 $ 82,376
2,105 (8,785)
92,587 67,038
258,437 (245,005)
- (4,390)
649,991 -
(759,175) -
(55,917) (70,985)
$ 1,006,343 $ (179,751)

Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
$ 4,988,326 $ 2,871,246
(409,743) -
3,798 34,132
4,582,381 2,905,378
1,008,473 146,668
621,517 (761,928)
1,629,990 (615,260)

$ 6,212,371 $ 2,290,118

Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
$ (43,239) $ 152



c. Integrated income tax information

March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012
Balance of thdmputatiot
CreditAccount- TSMC $ 8,130,06! $ 8,130,06! $ 4,003,22 $ 4,003,22

The actual creditable ratio for distribution of TEM earnings of 2011 was 6.69%.

The estimated creditable ratio for distributionTMC'’s earnings of 2012 was approximately 7.98%,
which is calculated based on draft amendment ofrtbeme Tax Law not yet passed by the Legislative
Yuan of the Republic of China as of the date thatdonsolidated financial statements were approved
and authorized for issue. The imputation creddcalted to shareholders is based on its balanoé as
the date of the dividend distribution. The estmdatreditable ratio may change when the actual
distribution of the imputation credit is made.

All of TSMC'’s earnings generated prior to Decem®&r1997 have been appropriated.

d. Income tax examination

The tax authorities have examined income tax ret@TSMC through 2009. All investment tax
credit adjustments assessed by the tax authdnigies been recognized accordingly.

32. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
Basic EPS $1.53 $1.29
Diluted EPS $1.53 $1.29
EPS is computed as follows:
Number of
Shares
Amounts (Denominator)

(Numerator)  (In Thousands) EPS (NT$)

Three months ended March 31, 2013

Basic EPS
Net income available to common shareholders
of the parent $ 39,576,876 25,925,949 $1.53
Effect of dilutive potential common shares - 3,469
Diluted EPS

Net income available to common shareholders
of the parent (including effect of dilutive

potential common shares) $ 39,576,876 25,929,418 $1.53
(Continued)
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33.

Number of
Shares
Amounts (Denominator)
(Numerator)  (In Thousands) EPS (NT$)

Three months ended March 31, 2012

Basic EPS
Net income available to common shareholders
of the parent $ 33,491,634 25,917,646 $1.29
Effect of dilutive potential common shares - 8,800
Diluted EPS

Net income available to common shareholders
of the parent (including effect of dilutive

potential common shares) $ 33,491,634 25,926,446 $1.29
(Concluded)

If the Company may settle the obligation by cashjdsuing shares, or in combination of both casth an
shares, profit sharing to employees which will le¢tled in shares should be included in the weighted
average number of shares outstanding in calculatfadiluted EPS, if the shares have a dilutive affe
The number of shares is estimated by dividing timeunt of profit sharing to employees in stock bg th
closing price (after considering the dilutive effet dividends) of the common shares on the balaheet
date. Such dilutive effect of the potential shamesds to be included in the calculation of diluEiS
until the shares of profit sharing to employeesraswlved in the shareholders’ meeting in the fuithgy
year.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OF EXPENSES BY NATURE
Net income included the following items:

Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
a. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Recognized in cost of revenue $ 33,042,653 $ 24,845,297
Recognized in operating expenses 2,915,569 2,629,568
Recognized in other income and expenses 6,455 2,356

$ 35,964,677 $ 27,477,221

b. Amortization of intangible assets

Recognized in cost of revenue $ 295132 $ 323,428
Recognized in operating expenses 236,381 204,758

$ 531,513 $ 528,186

c. Research and development costs expensed ageighcur $ 10,650,985 $ 9,157,852
(Continued)
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Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
d. Employee benefits expenses

Post-employment benefits (Note 23)

Defined contribution plans $ 384,458 $ 330,541

Defined benefit plans 60,690 54,659

445,148 385,200

Share-based payments (Note 25)

Equity-settled share-based payments 2,701 -
Other employee benefits 15,016,003 13,066,642

$ 15,463,852 $ 13,451,842

Employee benefits expense summarized by function
Recognized in cost of revenue $ 9,349,424 $ 7,480,848
Recognized in operating expenses 6,114,428 5,970,994

$ 15,463,852 $ 13,451,842
(Concluded)

34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company requires significant amounts of capitabuild and expand its production facilities and
equipment. In consideration of the industry dyreanthe Company manages its capital in a manner to
ensure that it has sufficient and necessary fimdunesources to fund its working capital needsitahpsset
purchases, research and development activitiegjedisl payments, debt service requirements and other
business requirements associated with its exisijiggations over the next 12 months.

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

March 31, December 31, March 31, January 1,
2013 2012 2012 2012
Financial asse

FVTPL

Held for trading derivatives $ 18,20¢ $ 39,55 $ 1,65¢ $ 15,36(
Derivative instruments in designatt

hedge accounting relationships 659,351
Available-for-sale financial asse

(Note) 46,954,164 44,766,957 7,757,986 7,623,775
Held-to-maturity financial asset: 2,044,82 5,056,97. 8,284,433l 9,068,84
Loans and receivabl

Cash andash equivalen 186,028,79 143,410,58 170,819,93 143,472,27

Notes and accounts receivab

(including related parties) 65,906,335 58,131,397 53,442,980 46,016,052
Other receivables 2,058,13; 1,307,47. 2,539,61 1,403,69
Refundable deposit 2,385,57. 2,426,71. 4,527,50 4,518,86.

$ 306,055,87 $ 255,139,65 $ 247,374,11 $ 212,118,86
(Continued)
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March 31, December 31 March 31, January 1,

2013 2012 2012 2012
Financial liabilitie:
FVTPL
Held for trading derivatives $ 4,22: $ 15,62¢ $ 61,03¢ $ 13,74:
Derivative instruments in designat
hedge accounting relationships - - 135 232
Amortized cos
Shor-term loan 35,842,80 34,714,92 34,687,71 25,926,52
Accounts payable (includir
related parties) 13,256,111 15,239,042 14,168,439 11,859,008
Payables to contactors a
equipment suppliers 48,601,349 44,831,798 34,070,990 35,540,526
Accrued expenses and ot}
current liabilities 10,608,820 9,316,232 9,198,531 7,796,538
Bonds payabl 125,000,00 80,000,00 35,000,00 22,500,00
Long-term bank lan: 1,456,25! 1,487,50! 1,650,00! 1,650,00!
Other lon¢term payable 956,16( 967,48! 1,910,00: 3,399,85!
Guarantee depos 184,78( 203,89( 405,59: 443,98:

$ 235,910,49 $ 186,776,50 $ 131,152,45 $ 109,130,41
(Concluded)

Note: Including financial assets carried at cost.
Financial risk management objectives

The Company seeks to ensure sufficient cost-efficiending readily available when needed. The
Company manages its exposure to foreign currersgy imterest rate risk, equity price risk, credkr
and liquidity risk with the objective to reduce thetentially adverse effects the market uncertaanti
may have on its financial performance.

The plans for material treasury activities are easad by Audit Committees and/or Board of Directors
in accordance with procedures required by relevagulations or internal controls. During the

implementation of such plans, Corporate Treasumyction must comply with certain treasury

procedures that provide guiding principles for @#efinancial risk management and segregation of
duties.

Market risk
The Company is exposed to the market risks arisimg changes in foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and the prices in equity investments, arizegi some derivative financial instruments to elu

the related risks.

Foreign currency risk

Most of the Company’s operating activities are aemated in foreign currencies. Consequently, the
Company is exposed to foreign currency risk. Tatqmt against reductions in value and the volstilit
of future cash flows caused by changes in foreigghange rates, the Company utilizes derivative
financial instruments, including currency forwardntracts and cross currency swaps, to hedge its
currency exposure. These instruments help to eedoet do not eliminate, the impact of foreign
currency exchange rate movements.

The Company also holds short-term borrowings ireifpr currencies in proportion to its expected

future cash flows. This allows foreign-currencyrmowings to be serviced with expected future cash
flows and provides a partial hedge against traiwattanslation exposure.
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The Company’s sensitivity analysis to foreign cooe risk mainly focuses on the foreign currency
monetary items at the end of the reporting periofissuming an unfavorable 10% movement in the
levels of foreign exchanges against the New Taidaltar, the net income for the three months ended
March 31, 2013 and 2012 would have decreased by $82 thousand and NT$318,674 thousand,
respectively, after taking into consideration @ tledge contracts and the hedged items.

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk ayifiom borrowing at both fixed and floating interes
rates. All of the Company’s long-term bonds haxed interest rates and are measured at amortized
cost. As such, changes in interest rates wouldaffett the future cash flows. On the other hand,
because interest rates on the Company’s long-temk lbans are floating, changes in interest rates
would affect the future cash flows but not the faue. To reduce the cash flow risk caused by
floating interest rates, the Company utilized aterest rate swap contract to partially hedge its
exposure.

Assuming the amount of floating interest rate bldas at the end of the reporting period had been
outstanding for the entire period and all otheraldes were held constant, a hypothetical incréase
interest rates of 100 basis point (1%) would hasulted in an increase in the interest expensegfnet
tax, by approximately NT$3,022 thousand and NT$3,2®usand for the three months ended March
31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Other price risk

The Company is exposed to equity price risk arignogn available-for-sale equity investments. To
reduce the price risk, the Company utilized someckstforward contracts to partially hedge its
exposure.

Assuming a hypothetical decrease of 5% in equitgegrof the equity investments at the end of the
reporting period, the net income for the three mesminded March 31, 2013 and 2012 would have been
unaffected as they were classified as availablesd#te; however, the other comprehensive income for
the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012dnmaNe decreased by NT$1,784,693 thousand
and NT$360,531 thousand, respectively.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterpantlf default on its contractual obligations resngiin
financial loss to the Company. The Company is egpgoto credit risk from operating activities,
primarily trade receivables, and from financinghaties, primarily deposits, fixed-income investnten
and other financial instruments with banks. Credhi is managed separately for business relatdd an
financial related exposures. As of the balanceetshiate, the Company’'s maximum credit risk
exposure is mainly from the carrying amount of ficial assets recognized in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Business related credit risk

The Company has considerable trade receivablestaodiag with its hundreds of customers
worldwide. A substantial majority of the Compangiststanding trade receivables are not covered by
collateral or credit insurance. While the Compdiag procedures to monitor and limit exposure to
credit risk on trade receivables, there can be gsurance such procedures will effectively limit its
credit risk and avoid losses. This risk is heigbt&during periods when economic conditions worsen.

As of March 31, 2013, December 31, 2012, March281,2 and January 1, 2012, the Company’s ten

largest customers accounted for 69%, 68%, 66% 4Pl & accounts receivable, respectively. The
Company believes the concentration of credit gsksignificant for the remaining accounts receleab
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Financial credit risk

The Company regularly monitors and reviews thesation limit applied to counterparties and adjusts
the concentration limit according to market comais and the credit standing of the counterparties.
The Company mitigates its exposure by selectingnaparties with investment-grade credit ratings.

Liquidity risk management

The objective of liquidity risk management is tsere the Company has sufficient liquidity to futsl i
business requirements associated with existingatipes over the next 12 months. The Company
manages its liquidity risk by maintaining adequadsh and banking facilities.

As of March 31, 2013, December 31, 2012, March Z112 and January 1, 2012, the unused of
financing facilities of the Company amounted to B&®79,550 thousand, NT$53,422,331 thousand,
NT$47,460,143 thousand and NT$63,708,014 thousasfectively.

The table below summarizes the maturity profiletloé Company’s financial liabilities based on
contractual undiscounted payments.

Less Than
1 Year 2-3 Years 4to5 Years 5+ Years Total
March 31, 2013
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Short-term loans $ 35,849,740 3 - $ - $ - $ 35,849,740
Accounts payable (including related
parties) 13,256,111 - - - 13,256,111
Payables to contactors and
equipment suppliers 48,601,349 - - - 48,601,349
Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities 10,608,820 - - - 10,608,820
Bonds payable 1,708,570 3,417,140 62,727,592 66,906,447 134,759,749
Long-term bank loans 149,638 749,650 601,313 - 1,500,601
Other long-term payables 902,160 36,000 18,000 - 956,160
Obligations under finance leases 27,622 55,244 55,244 745,222 883,332
Guarantee deposits - 184,780 - - 184,780
111,104,010 4,442,814 63,402,149 67,651,669 246,600,642
Derivative financial instruments
Forward exchange contracts
Outflows 5,350,454 - - - 5,350,454
Inflows (5,333,513) - - - (5,333,513)
16,941 - - - 16,941
Cross currency swap contracts
Outflows 8,975,315 - - - 8,975,315
Inflows (8,976,156) - - - (8,976,156)
(841) - - - (841)
Stock forward contracts
Outflows - 11,707,678 - - 11,707,678
Inflows - (11,707,678) - - (11,707,678)
$ 111,120,110 $ 4,442,814 $ 63402149 $ 67,651,669 $ 246,616,742
December 31, 2012
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Short-term loans $ 34,721,003 $ - $ - $ - $ 34,721,003
Accounts payable (including related
parties) 15,239,042 - - - 15,239,042
Payables to contactors and
equipment suppliers 44,831,798 - - - 44,831,798
(Continued)
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Less Than

1 Year 2-3 Years 4105 Years 5+ Years Total
Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities $ 9,316,232 $ - $ - $ - $ 9,316,232
Bonds payable 1,108,150 2,216,300 44,911,191 37,834,474 86,070,115
Long-term bank loans 146,571 745,174 637,580 - 1,529,325
Other long-term payables 913,485 36,000 18,000 - 967,485
Obligations under finance leases 27,042 54,084 54,084 729,566 864,776
Guarantee deposits - 203,890 - - 203,890
106,303,323 3,255,448 45,620,855 38,564,040 193,743,666
Derivative financial instruments
Forward exchange contracts
Outflows 11,030,154 - - - 11,030,154
Inflows (11,059,396) - - - (11,059,396)
(29,242) - - - (29,242)
Cross currency swap contracts
Outflows 9,068,589 - - - 9,068,589
Inflows (9.068,727) - - - (9.068,727)
(138) - - - (138)
$ 106,273,943 $ 3255448 $ 45620855 $ 38,564,040 $ 193,714,286
March 31, 2012
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Short-term loans $ 34695555 % - $ - $ - $ 34,695,555
Accounts payable (including related
parties) 14,168,439 - - - 14,168,439
Payables to contactors and
equipment suppliers 34,070,990 - - - 34,070,990
Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities 9,198,531 - - - 9,198,531
Bonds payable 500,450 1,000,900 21,398,148 14,864,568 37,764,066
Long-term bank loans 112,272 776,006 815,517 - 1,703,795
Other long-term payables 1,850,950 59,058 - - 1,910,008
Obligations under finance leases 27,216 54,432 54,432 761,477 897,557
Guarantee deposits - 405,594 - - 405,594
94,624,403 2,295,990 22,268,097 15,626,045 134,814,535
Derivative financial instruments
Forward exchange contracts
Outflows 8,444,579 - - - 8,444,579
Inflows (8.374,726) - - - (8.374,726)
69,853 - - - 69,853
Cross currency swap contracts
Outflows 604,165 - - - 604,165
Inflows (603,868) - - - (603.868)
297 - - - 297
Interest rate swap contracts
Outflows 434 - - - 434
Inflows (272) - - - (272)
162 - - - 162
$ 94,694,715 $ 2,295,990 $ 22,268,097 $ 15,626,045 $ 134,884,847
January 1, 2012
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Short-term loans $ 25,933,177 $ - $ - $ - $ 25,933,177
Accounts payable (including related
parties) 11,859,008 - - - 11,859,008
Payables to contactors and
equipment suppliers 35,540,526 - - - 35,540,526
Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities 7,796,538 - - - 7,796,538
Bonds payable 4,775,081 538,500 11,000,933 7,713,258 24,027,772
Long-term bank loans 79,558 778,190 849,021 - 1,706,769
(Continued)
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Less Than

1 Year 2-3 Years 4105 Years 5+ Years Total
Other long-term payables $ 3399855 % - $ - $ - $ 3,399,855
Obligations under finance leases - 167,472 55,824 780,962 1,004,258
Guarantee deposits - 443,983 - - 443,983
89,383,743 1,928,145 11,905,778 8,494,220 111,711,886
Derivative financial instruments
Forward exchange contracts
Outflows 7,736,197 - - - 7,736,197
Inflows (7,726,584) - - - (7,726,584)
9,613 - - - 9,613
Cross currency swap contracts
Outflows 420,431 - - - 420,431
Inflows (420,397) - - - (420,397)
34 - - - 34
Interest rate swap contracts
Outflows 706 - - - 706
Inflows (442) - - - (442)
264 - - - 264

$ 89,393,654 $ 1928145 $ 11905778 $ 8,494,220 $ 111,721,797
(Concluded)

Fair value of financial instruments
1) Fair value of financial instruments carried @ioatized cost
Except as detailed in the following table, the Camp considers that the carrying amounts of

financial assets and financial liabilities recogmizin the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

March 31, 2010 December 31, 201 March 31, 2012 January 1, 201.
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Financial asse
Held-to-maturity financia

assets

Corporate bont $ 2,044,82 $ 2,053,75 $ 5,056,97 $ 5,066,36 $ 7,841,49 $ 7,88523 $ 8,614,52 $ 8,674,01

Government bont - - - - 442,93 443,03 454,32 454,04
Financial liabilitie:
Measured at amortized co

Bonds payabl 125,000,00 125,232,89C 80,000,00 80,343,41 35,000,00 35,248,22 22,500,00 22,597,11

2) Fair value measurements recognized in the colaget statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of finaanstruments that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into ledg 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable:

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those derfin@d quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

® Level 2 fair value measurements are those defrosd inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the assetiahility, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

* Level 3 fair value measurements are those defrosd valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based oseoiable market data (unobservable inputs).
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Financial assets at FVTI

March 31, 201z

Derivative financial instrumer

Hedgng derivative financii

assets

Stock brward contrac

Available-for-sale financial asse

Publicly traded stocl
Money market fund

Financialliabilities at FVTPL

Derivative financial instrumer

Financial assets at FVTPL

Derivative financial instruments

Available-for-sale financial assets

Publicly traded stocks
Money market funds

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Derivative financial instruments

Financial assets at FVTPL

Derivative financial instruments

Available-for-sale financial assets

Publicly traded stocks
Money market funds

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Derivative financial instruments

Hedging derivative financial

liabilities

Interest rate swap contract

Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 Total
$ - $ 18,20¢ $ - $ 18,20¢
$ - $ 659,35 $ - $ 659,35
$ 43,248,32 $ - $ - $ 43,248,32
2,24¢ - - 2,24¢
43,250,57 $ - $ - $ 43,250,57
$ - $ 4,22: $ 000 - $ 4,22
December 312012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ - $ 39,554 $ - $ 39,554
$ 41,160,437 $ - $ - $ 41,160,437
1,443 - - 1,443
$ 41,161,880 $ - $ - $ 41,161,880
$ - 15,625 $ 0 - 15,625
March 31, 2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 2 Total
$ - $ 1,658 $ - $ 1,658
$ 3,573,873 $ - $ - $ 3,573,873
3,928 - - 3,928
$ 3,577,801 $ - $ - $ 3,577,801
$ 0 - 61,038 $ - 61,038
$ - $ 135 $ - $ 135
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3)

January 1,201Z2

Level 1 Level 2 Level @ Total

Financial assets at FVTPL
Derivative financial instruments $ - $ 15,360 $ - $ 15,360
Available-for-sale financial assets
Publicly traded stocks $ 3,306,248 $ - $ - $ 3,306,248
Money market funds 2,522 - - 2,522

$ 3,308,770 $ - $ - $ 3,308,770
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Derivative financial instruments $ - $ 13,742 $ - $ 13,742
Hedging derivative financial

liabilities

Interest rate swap contract $ - $ 232 $ - $ 232

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2hertliree months ended March 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

There were no purchases and disposals for assetsveh 3 for the three months ended March 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

Valuation techniques and assumptions appliethipurposes of measuring fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financailities are determined as follows:

The fair values of financial assets and finant&ilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded on active liquid markets are determiwéd reference to quoted market prices
(includes publicly traded stocks and money markeds).

Forward exchange contracts and cross currency swapracts are measured using quoted
forward exchange rates and yield curves deriveth fgooted interest rates matching maturities
of the contracts; interest rate swaps are measatrdde present value of future cash flows
estimated and discounted based on the applicabld gurves derived from quoted interest
rates; and stock forward contracts are measurédieatifference between the present value of
stock forward price discounted based on the aggcgeld curve derived from quoted interest
rates and the stock spot price.

The fair values of other financial assets andrfoi liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based ocodisted cash flow analysis.
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Intercompany balances and transactions between T&MICits subsidiaries, which are related parties of
TSMC, have been eliminated upon consolidation;ettoge those items are not disclosed in this nofehe
following is a summary of transactions betweenGoenpany and other related parties:

a. Operating transactions

Revenue from Sale of Goods Purchases
Three Months Ended March 31 Three Months Ended March 31
2013 2012 2013 2012
Associates $ 684,786 $ 1,146,694 $ 2,096,554 $ 1,605,546
Joint venture 528 1,182 - -

$ 685,314 $ 1,147,876 $ 2,096,554 $ 1,605,546

Revenue from Royalties
Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
Associates $ 120,416 $ 107,155
Research and
Manufacturing Expenses Development Expenses
Three Months Ended March 31 Three Months Ended March 31
2013 2012 2013 2012
Associates $ 6,372 $ - $ - $ -
Joint venture 857 4,70 1,19 1,814
$ 7,229 $ 4,703 $ 1,191 $ 1,814
Sales of Property, Plant and Gain from Sales of Property,
Equipment Plant and Equipment, Net
Three Months Ended March 31 Three Months Ended March 31
2013 2012 2013 2012
Associates $ 11,418 $ - $ 2,963 $ -
Joint venture - 9,00 58 39
11,418 $ 9,000 $ 3,021 $ 39

The following balances were outstanding at theaéporting period:

Receivables from Related Parties
December 31,

March 31, 2013 2012 March 31, 2012 January 1, 2012
Associates $ 433,950 $ 353,652 $ 646,935 $ 185,552
Joint venture 356 159 379 212

$ 434,306 $ 353,811 $ 647,314 $ 185,764
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Other Receivables from Related Parties
December 31,

March 31, 2013 2012 March 31, 2012 January 1, 2012
Associates $ 176,298 $ 185,550 $ 1,292,255 $ 121,767
Joint venture - - 9,450 525

$ 176,298 $ 185,550 $ 1,301,705 $ 122,292

Refundable Deposits
December 31,

March 31, 2013 2012 March 31, 2012 January 1, 2012
Associates $ 5,813 $ 5,813 $ - $ -
Joint venture 4 4 - -
$ 5817 $ 5817 $ - $ -

Payables to Related Parties
December 31,

March 31, 2013 2012 March 31, 2012 January 1, 2012
Associates $ 791,504 $ 746,532 $ 901,674 $ 1,325,791
Joint venture 1,629 2,081 4,643 2,730

$ 793,133 $ 748,613 $ 906,317 $ 1,328,521

Deferred Gains (Losses) from Disposal of Machinersind Equipment
December 31,

March 31, 2013 2012 March 31, 2012 January 1, 2012
Associates $ (7,410) $ (7,806) $ - $ -
Joint venture 890 948 1,122 -

$ (6,520) $ (6.858) $ 1,122 $ -

The sales prices and payment terms to relatecepaxtere not significantly different from those afes
to third parties. For other related party transast price and terms were determined in accordance
with mutual agreements.

The Company deferred the disposal gain/loss (¢iedsunder other noncurrent assets and other
noncurrent liabilities) derived from sales of prdge plant and equipment to related parties
(transactions with associates and joint ventuma],then recognized such gain/loss over the defrecia
lives of the disposed assets.
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b. Compensation of key management personnel:
The compensation to directors and other key managepersonnel were as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
Short-term employee benefits $ 167,580 $ 174,985
Post-employment benefits 1,171 861

$ 168,751 $ 175,846

The compensation to directors and other key manegerpersonnel were determined by the
Compensation Committee of TSMC in accordance whth individual performance and the market
trends.

37. PLEDGED ASSETS

The Company provided certificate of deposits reedrih other financial assets as collateral maioly f
building lease agreements. As of March 31, 201&;dnber 31, 2012, March 31, 2012 and January 1,
2012, the aforementioned other financial assetaated to NT$122,858 thousand, NT$119,710 thousand,
NT$118,296 thousand and NT$121,140 thousand, réeglgc

38. SIGNIFICANT OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Company leases several parcels of land, factony office premises from the Science Park
Administration and Jhongli Industrial Park Servieenter. These operating leases expire on variatesd
from May 2013 to December 2032 and can be renewed axpiration.

The Company entered into lease agreements foffit® @remises and certain office equipment located
the United States, Europe, Japan, Shanghai andamaiwThese operating leases expire between May 2013
and November 2020 and can be renewed upon expiratio

The Company expensed the lease payments as follows:
Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
Minimum lease payments $ 202,144 $ 166,030
Sublease income (4,173) (4,348)
Others 2,162 3,104

$ 200,133 $ 164,786

Future minimum lease payments under the above anocetlable operating leases are as follows:

December 31,

March 31, 2013 2012 March 31, 2012 January 1, 2012
Not later than 1 year $ 617,235 $ 693,758 $ 504,100 $ 627,882
Later than 1 year and not later
than 5 years 2,917,307 2,478,443 2,390,178 2,258,302
Later than 5 years 5,075,559 4,221,524 3,903,243 3,870,728

$ 8,610,101 $ 7,393,725 $ 6,797,521 $ 6,756,912

-63 -



39. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGN IZED COMMITMENTS

Significant contingent liabilities and unrecognizedmmitments of the Company as of the end of the
reporting period, excluding those disclosed in otiaes, were as follows:

a. Under a technical cooperation agreement witludtréhl Technology Research Institute, the R.O.C.
Government or its designee approved by TSMC canupst® 35% of TSMC's capacity if TSMC'’s
outstanding commitments to its customers are ngjugiced. The term of this agreement is for five
years beginning from January 1, 1987 and is autoaibtrenewed for successive periods of five years
unless otherwise terminated by either party with g@ar prior notice.

b. Under a Shareholders Agreement entered intoMithps and EDB Investments Pte Ltd. on March 30,
1999, the parties formed a joint venture compar§M6S, which is an integrated circuit foundry in
Singapore. TSMC's equity interest in SSMC was 32%levertheless, Philips parted with its
semiconductor company which was renamed as NXP iB.Beptember 2006. TSMC and NXP B.V.
purchased all the SSMC shares owned by EDB InvegtmPte Ltd. pro rata according to the
Shareholders Agreement on November 15, 2006. Aitepurchase, TSMC and NXP B.V. currently
own approximately 39% and 61% of the SSMC sharsgeatively. TSMC and Philips (now NXP
B.V.) are required, in the aggregate, to purchadeaat 70% of SSMC'’s capacity, but TSMC alone is
not required to purchase more than 28% of the dypadf any party defaults on the commitment and
the capacity utilization of SSMC fall below a sgiecpercentage of its capacity, the defaulting pést
required to compensate SSMC for all related unalelcosts.

c. In August 2006, TSMC filed a lawsuit against 88mductor Manufacturing International Corporation,
SMIC (Shanghai) and SMIC Americas (aggregatelyrreteto as “SMIC”) in the Superior Court of
California for Alameda County for breach of a 208eement that settled an earlier trade secret
misappropriation and patent infringement litigatibetween the parties, as well as for trade secret
misappropriation, seeking injunctive relief and mtamy damages. In September 2006, SMIC filed a
cross-complaint against TSMC in the same courigalte breach of settlement agreement, implied
covenant of good faith and fair dealing. SMIC diéed a civil action against TSMC in November
2006 with the Beijing People’s High Court allegitgfamation and breach of good faith. On June 10,
2009, the Beijing People’s High Court ruled in faxad TSMC and dismissed SMIC’s lawsuit. On
November 4, 2009, after a two-month trial, a jumytlhie California action found SMIC to have both
breached the 2005 settlement agreement and migajgienl TSMC's trade secrets. TSMC has
subsequently settled both lawsuits with SMIC. Bang to the new settlement agreement, the parties
have agreed to the entry of a stipulated judgmefévor of TSMC in the California action, and t@th
dismissal of SMIC’s appeal against the Beijing Higburt's finding in favor of TSMC. Under the
new settlement agreement and the related stipyladigghent, SMIC has agreed to make cash payments
by installments to TSMC totaling US$200 million, ih are in addition to the US$135 million
previously paid to TSMC under the 2005 settlemegte@ment, and, conditional upon relevant
government regulatory approvals, to issue to TSM@tal of 1,789,493,218 common shares of
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corpanatiand a three-year warrant to purchase
695,914,030 common shares (subject to adjustmén§emiconductor Manufacturing International
Corporation at HK$1.30 per share (subject to adjest). TSMC has acquired the above mentioned
common shares in July 2010, which are recordedmwittailable for sale financial assets, and obthine
the subsequent cash settlement income in accoradaticéhe agreement.
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d. In June 2010, Keranos, LLC. filed a lawsuithe 1J.S. District Court for the Eastern DistrictTaxas
alleging that TSMC, TSMC North America, and seveater leading technology companies infringe
three expired U.S. patents. In response, TSMC, C®brth America, and several co-defendants in
the Texas case filed a lawsuit against KeranosienU.S. District Court for the Northern District of
California in November 2010, seeking a judgmentlatéry that they did not infringe the asserted
patents, and that those patents are invalid. Ttvesditigations have been consolidated into a lsing
case in the U.S. District Court for the Easterntiisof Texas. The outcome cannot be determirted a
this time.

e. In December 2010, Ziptronix, Inc. filed a coniplan the U.S. District Court for the Northern Dist
of California accusing TSMC, TSMC North America amme other company of infringing several U.S.
patents. The outcome cannot be determined dtiirtigs

f. TSMC joined the Customer Co-Investment ProgramA8ML and entered into the investment
agreement in August 2012. The agreement includesneestment of EUR837,816 thousand by
TSMC Global to acquire 5% of ASML’s equity with @ck-up period of 2.5 years. TSMC Global has
acquired the aforementioned equity on October 8122 Both parties also signed the research and
development funding agreement and TSMC shall ppp@EdR276,000 thousand to ASML'’s research
and development programs from 2013 to 2017.

g.- Amounts available under unused letters of crasliof March 31, 2013, December 31, 2012, March 31,

2012 and January 1, 2012 were NT$89,607 thousahfio®671 thousand, NT$95,244 thousand and
NT$263,880 thousand, respectively.

40. EXCHANGE RATE INFORMATION OF FOREIGN-CURRENCY F INANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

The significant financial assets and liabilitiesdminated in foreign currencies were as follows:

March 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 March 31, 2012 January 1, 2012
Foreign Foreign Foreign Foreign
Currencies Exchange Rate Currencies Exchange Rate Currencies Exchange Rate Currencies Exchange Rate
(In Thousands) (Note) (In Thousands) (Note) (In Thousands) (Note) (In Thousands) (Note)

Financial assets
Monetary items

usbD $ 3,701,047 29.869 $ 3,437,165 29.038 $ 4,147,426 29.529 $ 3,744,817 30.288

EUR 280,590 38.21-38.23 125,973 38.39-38.49 186,593 39.26-39.41 135,857 39.18-39.27

JPY 37,073,092  0.3164-0.3172 35,734,874  0.3352-0.3364 23,809,395  0.3579-0.3592 37,276,671  0.3897-0.3906

RMB 325,467 4.76 102,995 4.66 208,023 4.69 201,385 4.81
Non-monetary items

usbD 1,684,322 29.869 1,611,474 29.038 152,073 29.529 141,498 30.288

HKD 195,871 3.85 492,014 3.75 688,955 3.80 671,060 3.90
Investments accounted for

using equity method

uUsbD 343,334 29.869 328,281 29.038 271,675 29.529 294,797 30.288
Einancial liabilities
Monetary items

usD 2,232,666 29.869 2,193,343 29.038 2,044,403 29.529 1,744,746 30.288

EUR 287,147 38.21-38.23 247,052 38.39-38.49 186,260 39.26-39.41 111,750 39.18-39.27

JPY 45,744,585 0.3164-0.3172 43,311,360 0.3352-0.3364 30,848,324 0.3579-0.3592 35,349,169 0.3897-0.3906

RMB 197,662 4.76 205,930 4.66 226,981 4.69 278,877 4.81

Note: Exchange rate represents the number of Nolfard for which one foreign currency could be
exchanged.
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41. OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION
a. Operating segments

The Company’s only reportable segment is the foprslrgment. The foundry segment engages
mainly in the manufacturing, selling, packagingstiey and computer-aided design of integrated
circuits and other semiconductor devices and theufaaturing of masks. The Company also had
other operating segments that did not exceed thatgative threshold for separate reporting. These
segments mainly engage in the researching, devgjodesigning, manufacturing and selling of solid
state lighting devices and renewable energy andesity related technologies and products.

The Company uses the operating profit as the meamnt for segment profit and the basis of
performance assessment. There was no materiaisistency between the accounting policies of the
operating segment and the accounting policies ezt Note 4.

b. Segment sales and operating results

Foundry Others Elimination Total

Three months ended March 31, 2013

Sales from external customers $ 132,681,536 $ 73,460 $ - $ 132,754,996
Sales among intersegments - 238 (238) -
Operating profit (loss) 45,111,317 (683,308) - 44,428,009
Three months ended March 31, 2012

Sales from external customers 105,568,832 45,999 - 105,614,831
Sales among intersegments - - - -
Operating profit (loss) 35,658,112 (540,799) - 35,117,313

42. FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF TAIWAN-IFRSs
a. Basis of preparation for financial informatiamder Taiwan-IFRSs

The Company prepares the first interim consolidditeaincial statements for the three months ended
March 31, 2013 under Taiwan-IFRSs. As the basth@fpreparation, the Company not only follows
the significant accounting policies stated in Ndteut also applies to the regulations under IFRS 1.

b. Exemptions from IFRS 1

IFRS 1 establishes the procedures for the Compdingtsconsolidated financial statements prepared i
accordance with Taiwan-IFRSs. According to IFRStHE Company is required to determine the
accounting policies under Taiwan-IFRSs and retrosgely apply those accounting policies in its
opening balance sheet at the date of transitiohatwan-IFRSs; except for optional exemptions and
mandatory exceptions to such retrospective appmcgtrovided under IFRS 1. The main optional
exemptions the Company adopted are summarizedlas$o

1) Business combinations. The Company electedtmatpply IFRS 3, “Business Combinations,”
retrospectively to business combinations occurretbre January 1, 2012. Therefore, in the
opening balance sheet, the amount of goodwill ggadrfrom past business combinations remains
the same compared with the one under R.O.C. GAA#® Becember 31, 2011.
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2) Employee benefits. The Company elected to r@zegnll cumulative actuarial gains and losses in
retained earnings as of January 1, 2012. In auhgithe Company elected to apply the exemption
disclosure requirement provided by IFRS 1, in whibk amounts of present value of defined
benefit obligations, the fair value of plan ass#ts,surplus or deficit in the plan and the experge
adjustments are determined for each accountinggeriospectively from the transition date.

3) Share-based payment. The Company elected¢dliekoptional exemption from applying IFRS 2
retrospectively for the shared-based payment tciioss granted and vested before January 1,
2012.

Effect of transition to Taiwan-IFRSs

After transition to Taiwan-IFRSs, the effect on tBempany’s consolidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2012, March 31, 2012 and January 12 Zthe transition date) as well as the
consolidated statements of comprehensive incoméhéthree months ended March 31, 2012 and for
the year ended December 31, 2012, is stated asvkll

1) Reconciliation of consolidated balance sheeif &3ecember 31, 2012

Effect of Transition to

Taiwan-IFRSs
Recognition and
R.O.C. GAAP Measurement Presentation Taiwan-IFRSs
Item Amount Difference Difference Amount Item Note
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 143,410,588 $ - $ $ 143,410,588 Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair 39,554 - 39,554 Financial assets at fair
value through profit or value through profit or
loss loss
Available-for-sale 2,410,635 2,410,635 Available-for-sale
financial assets financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial 5,056,973 5,056,973 Held-to-maturity financia
assets assets
Notes and accounts 58,257,798 (480,212) 57,777,586 Notes and accounts
receivable receivable, net
Receivables from related 353,811 353,811 Receivables from related
parties parties
Allowance for doubtful (480,212) 480,212
receivables
Allowance for sales (6,038,003) 6,038,003 - - a)
returns and others
Other receivables from 185,550 185,550 Other receivables from
related parties related parties
Other financial assets 473,833 473,833  Other financial assets
Inventories 37,830,498 - 37,830,498 Inventories
Deferred income tax 8,001,202 (8,001,202) - - b)
assets
Prepaid expenses and 2,786,408 2,786,408 Other current assets
other current assets
Total current assets 252,288,635 (1,963,199) 250,325,436 Total current assets
Long-term investments
Investments accounted 23,430,020 (69,102) 23,360,918 Investments accounted e)
for using equity for using equity
method method
Available-for-sale 38,751,245 38,751,245 Available-for-sale
financial assets financial assets
Financial assets carried 3,605,077 3,605,077 Financial assets carried
at cost at cost
Total long-term 65,786,342 (69,102) 65,717,240
investments
Net property, plant and 617,529,446 32,742 617,562,188 Property, plant and c)
equipment equipment
Intangible assets 10,959,569 10,959,569 Intangible assets
Other assets
Deferred income tax 4,776,015 351,002 8,001,202 13,128,219 Deferred income tax b), d)
assets assets
Refundable deposits 2,426,712 - 2,426,712 Refundable deposits
Others 1,267,886 - (32,742) 1,235,144  Other noncurrent assets c)
Total other assets 8,470,613 351,002 7,968,460 16,790,075 Total other assets
Total $ 955,034,605 $ 281,900 $ 6,038,003 $ 961,354,508 Total
(Continued)
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Effect of Transition to

Taiwan-IFRSs
Recognition and
R.O.C. GAAP Measurement Presentation Taiwan-IFRSs
Item Amount Difference Difference Amount Item Note
Current liabilities
Short-term loans $ 34714929 $ - $ - $ 34,714,929 Short-term loans
Financial liabilities at 15,625 - - 15,625 Financial liabilities at
fair value through fair value through
profit or loss profit or loss
Accounts payable 14,490,429 - - 14,490,429 Accounts payable
Payables to related parties 748,613 - - 748,613 Payables to related parties
Income tax payable 15,635,594 - - 15,635,594 Income tax payable
Salary and bonus payable 7,535,296 - - 7,535,296  Salary and bonus payable
Accrued profit sharing to 11,186,591 - - 11,186,591 Accrued profit sharing to
employees and bonus employees and bonus
to directors and to directors and
supervisors supervisors
Payables to contractors 44,831,798 - - 44,831,798 Payables to contractors
and equipment and equipment
suppliers suppliers
Accrued expenses and 13,148,944 - - 13,148,944  Accrued expenses and
other current liabilities other current liabilities
Current portion of bonds 128,125 - - 128,125 Current portion of bonds
payable and long-term payable and long-term
bank loans bank loans
- - - 6,038,003 6,038,003 Provisions a)
Total current liabilities 142,435,944 - 6,038,003 148,473,947 Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Bonds payable 80,000,000 - - 80,000,000 Bonds payable
Long-term bank loans 1,359,375 - - 1,359,375 Long-term bank loans
Other long-term payables 54,000 - - 54,000 Other long-term payables
Obligations under capital 748,115 - - 748,115 Obligations under financ
leases leases
Total long-term liabilities 82,161,490 - - 82,161,490
Other liabilities
Accrued pension cost 3,979,541 2,941,693 - 6,921,234  Accrued pension cost d)
Guarantee deposits 203,890 - - 203,890 Guarantee deposits
- - - 4,891 4,891  Provisions
Others 500,041 - (4,891) 495,150 Others
Total other liabilities 4,683,472 2,941,693 - 7,625,165
Total liabilities 229,280,906 2,941,693 6,038,003 238,260,602 Total liabilities
Equity attributable to
shareholders of the parent
Capital stock 259,244,357 - - 259,244,357 Capital stock
Capital surplus 56,137,809 (462,469) - 55,675,340 Capital surplus e)
Retained earnings Retained earnings
Appropriated as legal 115,820,123 - - 115,820,123 Appropriated as legal
capital reserve capital reserve
Appropriated as 7,606,224 - - 7,606,224  Appropriated as
special capital special capital
reserve Reserve
Unappropriated 287,174,942 (2,189,821) - 284,985,121 Unappropriated earnings d), e)
earnings
410,601,289 (2,189,821) - 408,411,468
Others
Cumulative translation (10,753,763) (43) - (10,753,806) Foreign currency e)
adjustments translation reserve
Net loss not recognized (5,299) 5,299 - - - d), e)
as pension cost
Unrealized gain/loss 7,973,321 - - 7,973,321 Unrealized gain/loss
on financial from available-for-
instruments sale financial assets
(2,785,741) 5,256 - (2,780,485)
Equity attributable to 723,197,714 (2,647,034) - 720,550,680 Equity attributable to
shareholders of the shareholders of the
parent parent
Minority interests 2,555,985 (12,759) - 2,543,226  Noncontrolling interests d)
Total shareholders’ equity 725,753,699 (2,659,793) - 723,093,906 Total equity
Total $ 955,034,605 $ 281,900 $ 6,038,003 $ 961,354,508 Total
(Concluded)
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2)

Reconciliation of consolidated balance sheeif &darch 31, 2012

Effect of Transition to

Taiwan-IFRSs
Recognition and
R.O.C. GAAP Measurement Presentation Taiwan-IFRSs
Item Amount Difference Difference Amount Item Note
Current assets
Cash and cash $ 170,819,939 $ - $ - $ 170,819,939 Cash and cash
equivalents equivalents
Financial assets at fair 1,658 - - 1,658 Financial assets at
value through profit or fair value through
loss profit or loss
Available-for-sale 3,577,801 - - 3,577,801 Available-for-sale
financial assets financial assets
Held-to-maturity 6,253,618 - - 6,253,618 Held-to-maturity
financial assets financial assets
Notes and accounts 53,286,548 - (490,882) 52,795,666 Notes and accounts
receivable receivable, net
Receivables from related 647,314 - - 647,314 Receivables from
parties related parties
Allowance for doubtful (490,882) - 490,882 - -
receivables
Allowance for sales (5,428,410) - 5,428,410 - - a)
returns and others
Other receivables from 1,301,705 - - 1,301,705 Other receivables
related parties from related parties
Other financial assets 571,010 - - 571,010 Other financial assets
Inventories 27,759,150 - - 27,759,150 Inventories
Deferred income tax 6,736,065 - (6,736,065) - - b)
assets
Prepaid expenses and 3,087,516 - - 3,087,516 Other current assets
other current assets
Total current assets 268,123,032 - (1,307,655) 266,815,377 Total current assets
Long-term investments
Investments accounted 23,632,874 (52,765) - 23,580,109 Investments e)
for using equity accounted for using
method equity method
Held-to-maturity 2,030,812 - - 2,030,812 Held-to-maturity
financial assets financial assets
Financial assets carried 4,180,185 - - 4,180,185 Financial assets
at cost carried at cost
Total long-term 29,843,871 (52,765) - 29,791,106
investments
Net property, plant and 509,916,462 - 37,042 509,953,504  Property, plant and c)
equipment equipment
Intangible assets 10,969,136 - - 10,969,136 Intangible assets
Other assets
Deferred income tax 7,245,201 229,265 6,736,065 14,210,531 Deferred income tax b), d)
assets assets
Refundable deposits 4,527,507 - - 4,527,507 Refundable deposits
Others 1,265,176 - (37,042) 1,228,134  Other noncurrent assets c)
Total other assets 13,037,884 229,265 6,699,023 19,966,172 Total other assets
Total $ 831,890,385 $ 176,500 $ 5,428,410 $ 837,495,295 Total
Current liabilities
Short-term loans $ 34,687,716 $ - $ - $ 34,687,716 Short-term loans
Financial liabilities at 61,038 - - 61,038 Financial liabilities at
fair value through fair value through
profit or loss profit or loss
Hedging derivative 135 - - 135 Hedging derivative
financial liabilities financial liabilities
Accounts payable 13,262,122 - - 13,262,122 Accounts payable
Payables to related 906,317 - - 906,317 Payables to related
parties parties
Income tax payable 13,511,557 - - 13,511,557 Income tax payable
Salary and bonus payable 4,226,594 - - 4,226,594 Salary and bonus payable
Accrued profit sharing to 11,327,679 - - 11,327,679 Accrued profit
employees and bonus sharing to employees
to directors and and bonus to directors
supervisors and supervisors
Payables to contractors 34,070,990 - - 34,070,990 Payables to contractors
and equipment and equipment
suppliers suppliers
Accrued expenses and 14,052,743 - - 14,052,743 Accrued expenses
other current liabilities and other current
liabilities
Current portion of bonds 93,750 - - 93,750  Current portion of bonds
payable and long-term payable and long-term
bank loans bank loans
- - - 5,428,410 5,428,410 Provisions a)
Total current liabilities 126,200,641 - 5,428,410 131,629,051 Total current liabilities
(Continued)
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3)

Effect of Transition to

Taiwan-IFRSs
Recognition and
R.O.C. GAAP Measurement Presentation Taiwan-IFRSs
Item Amount Difference Difference Amount Item Note
Long-term liabilities
Bonds payable $ 35,000,000 $ - $ - $ 35,000,000 Bonds payable
Long-term bank loans 1,556,250 - - 1,556,250 Long-term bank loans
Other long-term payables 59,058 - - 59,058 Other long-term
payables
Obligations under capital 742,931 - - 742,931  Obligations under
leases finance leases
Total long-term liabilities 37,358,239 - - 37,358,239
Other liabilities
Accrued pension cost 3,903,634 2,314,418 - 6,218,052 Accrued pension cost d)
Guarantee deposits 405,594 - - 405,594  Guarantee deposits
- - - 3,083 3,083 Provisions
Others 439,868 - (3.083) 436,785 Others
Total other liabilities 4,749,096 2,314,418 - 7,063,514
Total liabilities 168,307,976 2,314,418 5,428,410 176,050,804 Total liabilities
Equity attributable
to shareholders of the
parent
Capital stock 259,206,046 - - 259,206,046 Capital stock
Capital surplus 56,008,374 (415,322) - 55,593,052 Capital surplus e)
Retained earnings Retained earnings
Appropriated as legal 102,399,995 - - 102,399,995 Appropriated as legal
capital reserve capital reserve
Appropriated as 6,433,874 - - 6,433,874  Appropriated as
special capital special capital
reserve reserve
Unappropriated 246,831,473 (1,709,381) - 245,122,092 Unappropriated earnings d), e)
earnings
355,665,342 (1,709,381) - 353,955,961
Others
Cumulative translation (9,064,188) 16 - (9,064,172) Foreign currency e)
adjustments translation reserve
Unrealized gain (loss) (883,247) - 54 (883,193) Unrealized gain (loss)
on financial from available-for-
instruments sale financial
assets
- - - (54) (54) Cash flow hedges
reserve
(9,947,435) 16 - (9,947,419)
Equity attributable 660,932,327 (2,124,687) - 658,807,640 Equity attributable to
to shareholders shareholders of the
of the parent parent
Minority interests 2,650,082 (13,231) - 2,636,851 Noncontrolling interests d)
Total shareholders’ equity 663,582,409 (2,137,918) - 661,444,491 Total equity
Total $ 831,890,385 $ 176,500 $ 5,428,410 $ 837,495,295 Total
(Concluded)
Reconciliation of consolidated balance sheetffdanuary 1, 2012
Effect of Transition to
Taiwan-IFRSs
Recognition and
R.O.C. GAAP Measurement Presentation Taiwan-IFRSs
Item Amount Difference Difference Amount Item Note
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 143,472,277  $ - $ - $ 143,472,277 Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair 15,360 - - 15,360 Financial assets at fair
value through profit or value through profit or
loss loss
Available-for-sale 3,308,770 - - 3,308,770 Available-for-sale
financial assets financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial 3,825,680 - - 3,825,680 Held-to-maturity financia
assets assets
Notes and accounts 46,321,240 - (490,952) 45,830,288 Notes and accounts
receivable receivable, net
Receivables from related 185,764 - - 185,764 Receivables from related
parties Parties
Allowance for doubtful (490,952) - 490,952 - -
receivables
Allowance for sales (5,068,263) - 5,068,263 - - a)
returns and others
(Continued)
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Effect of Transition to

Taiwan-IFRSs
Recognition and
R.O.C. GAAP Measurement Presentation Taiwan-IFRSs
Item Amount Difference Difference Amount Item Note
Other receivables from $ 122,292 $ - $ - 122,292  Other receivables from
related parties related parties
Other financial assets 617,142 - - 617,142 Other financial assets
Inventories 24,840,582 - - 24,840,582 Inventories
Deferred income tax 5,936,490 - (5,936,490) - - b)
assets
Prepaid expenses and 2,174,014 - - 2,174,014  Other current asset
other current assets
Total current assets 225,260,396 - (868,227) 224,392,169 Total current assets
Long-term investments
Investments accounted 24,900,332 (13,401) - 24,886,931 Investments accounted e)
for using equity for using equity
method method
Held-to-maturity financial 5,243,167 - - 5,243,167 Held-to-maturity financial
assets assets
Financial assets carried 4,315,005 - - 4,315,005 Financial assets carried
at cost at cost
Total long-term 34,458,504 (13,401) - 34,445,103
investments
Net property, plant and 490,374,916 - 47,237 490,422,153 Property, plant and c)
equipment equipment
Intangible assets 10,861,563 - - 10,861,563 Intangible assets
Other assets
Deferred income tax 7,436,717 231,011 5,936,490 13,604,218 Deferred income tax b), d)
assets assets
Refundable deposits 4,518,863 - - 4,518,863 Refundable deposits
Others 1,353,983 - (47,237) 1,306,746 Other noncurrent assets c)
Total other assets 13,309,563 231,011 5,889,253 19,429,827 Total other assets
Total $ 774,264,942 $ 217,610 $ 5,068,263 $ 779,550,815 Total
Current liabilities
Short-term loans $ 25926,528 $ - $ - 25,926,528 Short-term loans
Financial liabilities at 13,742 - - 13,742 Financial liabilities at
fair value through fair value through
profit or loss profit or loss
Hedging derivative 232 - - 232 Hedging derivative
financial liabilities financial liabilities
Accounts payable 10,530,487 - - 10,530,487 Accounts payable
Payables to related parties 1,328,521 - - 1,328,521 Payables to related parties
Income tax payable 10,656,124 - - 10,656,124 Income tax payable
Salary and bonus payable 6,148,499 - - 6,148,499 Salary and bonus payable
Accrued profit sharing to 9,081,293 - - 9,081,293  Accrued profit sharing to
employees and bonus employees and bonus
to directors and to directors and
supervisors supervisors
Payables to contractors 35,540,526 - - 35,540,526 Payables to contractors
and equipment and equipment
suppliers suppliers
Accrued expenses and 13,218,235 - - 13,218,235 Accrued expenses and
other current liabilities other current liabilities
Current portion of bonds 4,562,500 - - 4,562,500 Current portion of bonds
payable and long-term payable and long-term
bank loans bank loans
- - - 5,068,263 5,068,263 Provisions a)
Total current liabilities 117,006,687 - 5,068,263 122,074,950 Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Bonds payable 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000 Bonds payable
Long-term bank loans 1,587,500 - - 1,587,500 Long-term bank loans
Obligations under capital 870,993 - - 870,993 Obligations under financ:
leases leases
Total long-term liabilities 20,458,493 - - 20,458,493
Other liabilities
Accrued pension cost 3,908,508 2,332,516 - 6,241,024 Accrued pension cost d)
Guarantee deposits 443,983 - - 443,983 Guarantee deposits
- - - 2,889 2,889  Provisions
Others 403,720 - (2,889) 400,831 Others
Total other liabilities 4,756,211 2,332,516 - 7,088,727
Total liabilities 142,221,391 2,332,516 5,068,263 149,622,170 Total liabilities
Equity attributable to
shareholders of the parent
Capital stock 259,162,226 - - 259,162,226 Capital stock
Capital surplus 55,846,357 (374,695) - 55,471,662 Capital surplus e)
(Continued)

71 -



4)

Effect of Transition to
Taiwan-IFRSs

Recognition and

R.O.C. GAAP Measurement Presentation Taiwan-IFRSs
Item Amount Difference Difference Amount Item Note
Retained earnings Retained earnings
Appropriated as legal $ 102,399,995 $ - $ - $ 102,399,995 Appropriated as legal
capital reserve capital reserve
Appropriated as 6,433,874 - - 6,433,874 Appropriated as
special capital special capital
reserve reserve
Unappropriated 213,357,286 (1,726,828) - 211,630,458 Unappropriated earnings d), e)
earnings
322,191,155 (1,726,828) - 320,464,327
Others
Cumulative translation (6,433,369) 5 - (6,433,364) Foreign currency e)
adjustments translation reserve
Unrealized gain/loss (1,172,855) - 93 (1,172,762) Unrealized gain/loss
on financial from available-for-
instruments sale financial assets
- - - (93) (93) Cash flow hedges
reserve
(7,606,224) 5 - (7,606,219)
Equity attributable to 629,593,514 (2,101,518) - 627,491,996 Equity attributable to
shareholders of the shareholders of the
parent parent
Minority interests 2,450,037 (13,388) - 2,436,649 Noncontrolling interests d)
Total shareholders’ equity 632,043,551 (2,114,906) - 629,928,645 Total equity
Total $ 774,264,942 $ 217,610 $ 5,068,263 $ 779,550,815 Total
(Concluded)

Reconciliation of consolidated statement of coghpnsive income for the three months ended

March 31, 2012

Effect of Transition to
Taiwan-IFRSs

Recognition and

R.O.C. GAAP Measurement Presentation Taiwan-IFRSs
Item Amount Difference Difference Amount Item Note
Net sales $ 105,507,675 - $ 107,156 $ 105,614,831 Net revenue f)
Cost of sales 55,221,092 (10,745) - 55,210,347 Cost of revenue d)
Gross profit before affiliates 50,286,583 10,745 107,156 50,404,484  Gross profit before
elimination associates elimination
Realized gross profit from 74,029 - - 74,029 Realized gross profit from
affiliates associates
Gross profit 50,360,612 10,745 107,156 50,478,513 Gross profit
Operating expenses
Research and 9,162,781 (4,929) - 9,157,852 Research and d)
development development
General and 4,659,024 (2,020) - 4,657,004 General and d)
administrative administrative
Marketing 1,100,839 (404) - 1,100,435 Marketing d)
Total operating expenses 14,922,644 (7,353) - 14,915,291
- - - (445,909) (445,909) Other income and f)
expenses, net
Income from operations 35,437,968 18,098 (338,753) 35,117,313 Income from operations
Non-operating income and
gains
Interest income 501,236 - (501,236) - - f)
Foreign exchange gain, 429,743 - - 429,743  Foreign exchange gain,
net net
Technical service income 107,156 - (107,156) - - f)
Gain on settlement and 73,591 - (73,591) - - f)
disposal of financial
assets, net
Equity in earnings of 20,952 1,252 - 22,204  Share of profits of e)
equity method associates and
investees, net joint venture
Gain on disposal of 2,235 - (2,235) - - f)
property, plant and
equipment and other
assets
Others 67,292 - (67,292) - - f)
- - - 501,236 501,236  Other income f)
R - - (179,75%) (179,75.)  Other gains anlosse f)
1,202,20! 1,252 (430,02%) 773,43:
(Continued)
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Effect of Transition to

Taiwan-IFRSs
Recognition and
R.O.C. GAAP Measurement Presentation Taiwan-IFRSs
Item Amount Difference Difference Amount Item Note
Non-operating expenses and
losses
Impairment loss on idle $ 442,312 $ - $ (442,312) $ - - f)
assets
Valuation loss on 245,005 - (245,005) - - f)
financial instruments,
net
Interest expense 217,691 - - 217,691 Finance costs
Impairment of financial 4,390 - (4,390) - - f)
assets
Loss on disposal of 3,730 - (3,730) - - f)
property, plant and
equipment
Others 73,341 - (73,341) - - f)
986,469 - (768,778) 217,691
Income before income tax 35,653,704 19,350 - 35,673,054 Income before income tax
Income tax expense 2,288,372 1,746 - 2,290,118 Income tax expense d)
Net income $ 33,365,332 $ 17,604 $ - 33,382,936 Netincome
(2,624,773) Exchange differences
arising on
translation of
foreign operations
280,172 Unrealized gain on
available-for-sale
financial assets
97  Cash flow hedges
42,708 Share of other
comprehensive
income of
associates and joint
venture
(152) Income tax expense
related to components
of other comprehensive
income
(2,301,948) Other comprehensive
income for the
period, net of income
tax
$ 31,080,988 Total comprehensive
income for the
period
(Concluded)

5) Reconciliation of consolidated statement of caghpnsive income for the year ended December 31,

2012
Effect of Transition to
Taiwan-IFRSs
Recognition and
R.O.C. GAAP Measurement Presentation Taiwan-IFRSs
Item Amount Difference Difference Amount Item Note

Net sales $ 506,248,580 $ - $ 496,654 $ 506,745,234 Net revenue f)
Cost of sales 262,628,681 (45,583) - 262,583,098 Cost of revenue d)
Gross profit before affiliates 243,619,899 45,583 496,654 244,162,136  Gross profit before

elimination associates elimination
Unrealized gross profit from (25,029) - - (25,029) Unrealized gross profit

affiliates from associates
Gross profit 243,594,870 45,583 496,654 244,137,107 Gross profit
Operating expenses

Research and 40,402,138 (18,943) - 40,383,195 Research and d)

development development
General and 17,638,088 (6,394) - 17,631,694 General and d)
administrative administrative

Marketing 4,497,451 (1,465) - 4,495,986 Marketing d)

Total operating expenses 62,537,677 (26,802) - 62,510,875
- - - (449,364) (449,364) Other income and f)
expenses, net
Income from operations 181,057,193 72,385 47,290 181,176,868 Income from operations
(Continued)
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Effect of Transition to

Taiwan-IFRSs
Recognition and
R.O.C. GAAP Measurement Presentation Taiwan-IFRSs
Item Amount Difference Difference Amount Item Note
Non-operating income and
gains
Equity in earnings of $ 2,028,611 $ 45,118 $ - $ 2,073,729 Share of profits of e)
equity method associates and
investees, net joint venture
Interest income 1,645,036 - (1,645,036) - - f)
Settlement income 883,845 - (883,845) - - f)
Foreign exchange gain, 582,498 - - 582,498 Foreign exchange gain,
net net
Gain on settlement and 541,089 - (541,089) - - f)
disposal of financial
assets, net
Technical service income 496,654 - (496,654) - - f)
Others 604,304 - (604,304) - - f)
- - - 1,715,824 1,715,824  Other income f)
- - 4,977 (2,857,018) (2,852,041) Other gains and losses e), f)
6,782,037 50,095 (5,312,122) 1,520,010
Non-operating expenses and
losses
Impairment of financial 4,231,602 - (4,231,602) - - f)
assets
Interest expense 1,020,422 - - 1,020,422 Finance costs
Impairment loss on idle 444,505 - (444,505) - - f)
assets
Loss on disposal of 31,816 - (31,816) - - f)
property, plant and
equipment
Others 556,909 - (556,909) - - f)
6,285,254 - (5,264,832) 1,020,422
Income before income tax 181,553,976 122,480 - 181,676,456 Income before income tax
Income tax expense 15,590,287 (37,633) - 15,552,654 Income tax expense d)
Net income $ 165,963,689 $ 160,113 3 - 166,123,802 Net income
(4,322,697) Exchange differences
arising on translation
of foreign operations
9,534,269 Unrealized gain on
available-for-sale
financial assets
232 Cash flow hedges
53,748 Share of other d)
comprehensive
income of
associates and joint
venture
(685,978) Actuarial loss from d)
defined beafit pension
(326,942) Income tax expense d)
relating to components
of other comprehensive
income
4,252,632 Other comprehensive
income for the
year, net of income
tax
$ 170,376,434 Total comprehensive
income for the year
(Concluded)

6) Reconciliation of equity

December 31,

Note
Equity under R.O.C. GAAP
Adjustments:
Defined benefit plans d)
Investments accounted for  e)

using the equity method

Equity under TaiwailFRSs

2012 March 31, 2012

$ 725,753,699 $ 663,582,409

January 1, 2012

$ 632,043,551

(2,590,691) (2,085,153) (2,101,505)
(69,102) (52,765) (13,401)
$ 723,093,906 $ 661,444,491 $ 629,928,645
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7)

Significant reconciliation differences in coridated statements of cash flows for the three nwonth
ended March 31, 2012 and the year ended Decemb2032

The Company prepared the statement of cash floimg tise indirect method under R.O.C. GAAP,
in which the interest received is not required ® disclosed separately; instead, the interest
received and the interest paid are categorizedmitie operating activities in the statement ohcas
flows. However, according to IAS No. 7, “StatemehCash Flows,” for the three months ended
March 31, 2012 and the year ended December 31,, 28&2interest received of NT$491,549
thousand and NT$1,719,026 thousand should be dextlseparately in the investing activities; and
the interest paid of NT$235,441 thousand and NT#&®6 thousand should be disclosed in the
financing activities based on their nature, respelt

Except for the above differences, there are nordatigmificant differences between R.O.C. GAAP
and Taiwan-IFRSs in the consolidated statemenasif lows.

d. Notes to the reconciliation of the significaiffetences:

a)

b)

Allowance for sales returns and others

Under R.O.C. GAAP, provisions for estimated saletuims and others are recognized as a
reduction in revenue in the period the related maees recognized based on historical experience.
Allowance for sales returns and others is reco®a@ deduction in accounts receivable. Under
Taiwan-IFRSs, the allowance for sales returns ahére is a present obligation with uncertain
timing and an amount that arises from past eventsia therefore reclassified as provisions in
accordance with IAS No. 37, “Provisions, Contingeiatbilities and Contingent Assets.”

As of December 31, 2012, March 31, 2012 and Jantiad012, the amounts reclassified from
allowance for sales returns and others to provisiware NT$6,038,003 thousand, NT$5,428,410
thousand and NT$5,068,263 thousand, respectively.

Classifications of deferred income tax assdiiliig and valuation allowance

Under R.O.C. GAAP, a deferred tax asset and lighifi classified as current or noncurrent in
accordance with the classification of its relateded or liability. However, if a deferred income
tax asset or liability does not relate to an aeséiability in the financial statements, it is sified

as either current or noncurrent based on the exgdength of time before it is realized or settled.
Under Taiwan-IFRSs, a deferred tax asset anditiaisl classified as noncurrent asset or liability.

In addition, under R.O.C. GAAP, valuation allowas@e provided to the extent, if any, that it is
more likely than not that deferred income tax asgell not be realized. In accordance with IAS

No. 12, “Income Taxes,” deferred tax assets arg m@dognized to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits and thduadion allowance account is no longer used.

As of December 31, 2012, March 31, 2012 and Jantia3d012, the amounts reclassified from

deferred income tax assets to noncurrent assets W&$8,001,202 thousand, NT$6,736,065
thousand and NT$5,936,490 thousand, respectively.
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c)

d)

The classification of assets leased to othedsdla assets

Under R.O.C. GAAP, assets leased to others andaséets are classified under other assets.
Under Taiwan-IFRSs, the aforementioned items aagsdied as property, plant and equipment
according to their nature. In accordance with IN8. 40, “Investment Property,” investment
properties are defined as properties held to eamtals or for capital appreciation; however, the
Company’s assets leased to others are mainly dmiestleased to employees and factories leased
to suppliers. The dormitories leased to employaesnot classified as investment properties;
factories leased to suppliers are not considerddva@stment properties since they cannot be sold
separately and comprise only an insignificant portf the plant.

As of December 31, 2012, March 31, 2012 and Jantia3d012, the amounts reclassified from
assets leased to others and idle assets to proptty and equipment were NT$32,742 thousand,
NT$37,042 thousand and NT$47,237 thousand, respécti

Employee benefits

The Company had previously applied an actuarialatadn on its defined benefit obligation and
recognized the related pension cost and retirerbengfit obligation in conformity with R.O.C.
GAAP. Under Taiwan-IFRSs, the Company should canoy actuarial valuation on defined
benefit obligation in accordance with IAS No. 1Byfiployee Benefits.”

In addition, under R.O.C. GAAP, it is not allowenl riecognize actuarial gains and losses from

defined benefit plans directly to equity; insteadfuarial gains and losses should be accounted for
under the corridor approach which resulted in tetewlal of gains and losses. When using the

corridor approach, actuarial gains and losses dhbel amortized over the expected average

remaining working lives of the participating empteg.

Under IAS No. 19, “Employee Benefits,” the Compaglgcts to recognize actuarial gains and
losses immediately in full in the period in whidtey occur, as other comprehensive income. The
subsequent reclassification to earnings is not b

At the transition date, the Company performed ttaaial valuation under IAS No. 19, “Employee

Benefits,” and recognized the valuation differendeectly to retained earnings under the

requirement of IFRS 1. For the year ended DecerBthe2012, total actuarial gains and losses
were also recognized to other comprehensive indaraecordance with actuarial valuation carried
out in 2012.

In addition, under R.O.C. GAAP, the minimum pensi@bility should be recognized in the
balance sheet. If the accrued pension cost ighassthe minimum amount, the difference should
be recognized as an additional liability. Underiwiam-IFRSs, there is no aforementioned
requirement of minimum pension liability.

As of December 31, 2012, March 31, 2012 and Jantar012, accrued pension cost of the
Company was adjusted for an increase of NT$2,981{66usand, NT$2,314,418 thousand and
NT$2,332,516 thousand, respectively; deferred irctax assets were adjusted for an increase of
NT$351,002 thousand, NT$229,265 thousand and NT®231 thousand, respectively;
noncontrolling interests were adjusted for a desges NT$12,759 thousand, NT$13,231 thousand
and NT$13,388 thousand, respectively. As of Deandi, 2012, net loss not recognized as
pension cost was adjusted for a decrease of NTé4Hdusand. For the three months ended
March 31, 2012, pension cost and income tax expeinge Company were adjusted for a decrease
of NT$18,098 thousand and an increase of NT$1,lidG6sand, respectively. For the year ended
December 31, 2012, pension cost and income taxnegpef the Company were adjusted for a
decrease of NT$72,385 thousand and NT$37,633 thdusaspectively; actuarial loss from defined
benefit plans and income tax benefit related tommments of other comprehensive income were
recognized in the amount of NT$685,978 thousand\arB2,358 thousand, respectively.
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e) Investments accounted for using the equity ntetho

f)

The Company has evaluated significant differencetvéen current accounting policies and
Taiwan-IFRSs for the Company’s associates and jeamtures accounted for using the equity
method. The significant difference is mainly doghe adjustment to employee benefits.

In addition, if the investing company subscribes ddditional investee’s shares at a percentage
different from its existing ownership percentagatthesults in a decrease in the investing
company’s holding percentage in the investee, ¢iselting carrying amount of the investment in
the investee differs from the amount of its sharthe investee’s equity. Under R.O.C. GAAP, the
investing company records such a difference as djstanent to investments with the
corresponding amount charged or credited to capmitaplus. Under Taiwan-IFRSs, such a
difference is still adjusted to investments anditehgurplus; however, if the investing company’s
ownership interest in an associate is reduced,ptbportionate amount of the gains or losses
previously recognized in other comprehensive incamerelation to that associate shall be
reclassified to profit or loss on the same basisvasld be required if the investee had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

As of December 31, 2012, March 31, 2012 and Jan@iai3012, as a result of the differences
mentioned above, investment accounted for using@duity method was adjusted for a decrease of
NT$69,102 thousand, NT$52,765 thousand and NT$13#usand, respectively; foreign
currency translation reserve was adjusted for aedse of NT$43 thousand, an increase of NT$16
thousand and NT$5 thousand, respectively; capitaplgs was adjusted for a decrease of
NT$462,469 thousand, NT$415,322 thousand and NT#$934thousand, respectively. As of
December 31, 2012, net loss not recognized as@ensst was adjusted for a decrease of NT$883
thousand. In addition, share of profits of asdesiand joint venture was adjusted for an increase
of NT$1,252 thousand and NT$45,118 thousand, réispgg for the three months ended March
31, 2012 and for the year ended December 31, 20085 gains and losses was adjusted for a gain
of NT$4,977 thousand due from the deemed disposahé year ended December 31, 2012.

The reclassification of line items in the condated statement of comprehensive income

In accordance with the Guidelines Governing thep®&m&tion of Financial Reports by Securities
Issuers before its amendment due to the adoptidraiséan-IFRSs, income from operations in the
consolidated income statement only includes netme®, cost of revenue and operating expenses.
Under Taiwan-IFRSs, based on the nature of operdtemsactions, technical service income is
reclassified under net revenue; rental revenueredegiion of rental assets, net gain or loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment and o#issets, and impairment loss on idle assets, are
reclassified under other income and expenses, vernicheflected in income from operations.

Under Taiwan-IFRSs, based on the nature of opegrdtansactions, for the three months ended
March 31, 2012, the Company reclassified techréeatice income of NT$107,156 thousand to net
revenue, rental revenue of NT$254 thousand, netdasdisposal of property, plant and equipment
and other assets of NT$1,495 thousand, depreciafioental assets of NT$2,356 thousand and
impairment loss on idle assets of NT$442,312 thodiseo other income and expenses. In
addition, interest income of NT$501,236 thousand alao reclassified to other income; net gain on
disposal of financial assets of NT$73,591 thousawmithers of NT$67,038 thousand (under
non-operating income and gains), net valuation lossfinancial instruments of NT$245,005
thousand, impairment of financial assets of NT$d,8%®usand as well as others of NT$70,985
thousand (under non-operating expenses and losses)reclassified to other gains and losses for
the three months ended March 31, 2012. For the ¢:eded December 31, 2012, the Company
also reclassified technical service income of NT8894 thousand to net revenue, rental revenue of
NT$808 thousand, net gain on disposal of propestgnt and equipment and other assets of
NT$103 thousand, other income of NT$886 thousaegyratiation of rental assets of NT$6,656
thousand and impairment loss on idle assets of MA$05 thousand to other income and expenses.
In addition, interest income of NT$1,645,036 thausaand dividend income of NT$70,788
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thousand were also reclassified to other incomtlesgent income of NT$883,845 thousand, net
gain on disposal of financial assets of NT$541,8®8usand, others of NT$499,903 thousand
(under non-operating income and gains), net valndtiss on financial instruments of NT$252,530
thousand, impairment of financial assets of NT$4,832 thousand as well as others of
NT$297,723 thousand (under non-operating expensgédosses) were reclassified to other gains
and losses for the year ended December 31, 2012.

43. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Following are the additional disclosures requirgdtibe SFB for TSMC and its investees in which all
significant intercompany balances and transactiwasliminated upon consolidation:

a.

b.

Financings provided: Please see Table 1 atfache
Endorsement/guarantee provided: Please see Zalitached;
Marketable securities held: Please see Taht@8hed;

Marketable securities acquired and disposed obsts or prices of at least NT$100 million or 26%6
the paid-in capital: Please see Table 4 attached,;

Acquisition of individual real estate propertascosts of at least NT$100 million or 20% of gaeéd-in
capital: Please see Table 5 attached;

Disposal of individual real estate propertiepates of at least NT$100 million or 20% of thedpe
capital: None;

Total purchases from or sales to related paofies least NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-iapétal:
Please see Table 6 attached;

Receivables from related parties amounting tieadt NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital
Please see Table 7 attached;

Information about the derivative instruments\gaction: Please see Notes 7 and 10;

Others: The business relationship between theermpp and the subsidiaries and between each
subsidiary, and significant transactions betweemth Please see Table 8 attached;

Names, locations, and related information ofestees over which TSMC exercises significant
influence: Please see Table 9 attached;

Information on investment in Mainland China

1) The name of the investee in Mainland China,nttaén businesses and products, its issued capital,
method of investment, information on inflow or datf of capital, percentage of ownership, equity
in the net gain or net loss, ending balance, ammgadived as dividends from the investee, and the
limitation on investee: Please see Table 10 atthch

2) Significant direct or indirect transactions withe investee, its prices and terms of payment,

unrealized gain or loss, and other related infolwnatvhich is helpful to understand the impact of
investment in Mainland China on financial report$lease see Table 8 attached.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

FINANCINGS PROVIDED
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

TABLE 1

Maximum . Collateral . . Financing
Ending Balance Amount Financing ;
Financing . . Balgnce for the (USs$in Actually Drawn . . Transaction . . Allowance for Limits for Each Companyg
No. Counter-party | Financial Statement Account Period (US$ in . Interest Rate | Nature for Financing Reason for Financing . Total Financing
Company Thousands) (US$ in Amounts Bad Debt Item Value Borrowing e
Thousands) (Note 4) Thousands) Compan Amount Limits
(Note 4) pany (Note 3)
1 |TSMC Partners|TSMC China | Other receivables from relate® 3,882,970 $ 2,389,520 $ 2,389,520, 0.25%-0.26%|The need for short-term $ Purchase equipment $ -1 $ $ 40,234,170 $ 40,234,170
parties (US$ 130,000)(UsS$ 80,000)(US$ 80,000 financing (Note 1
2 |TSMC TSMC Solar Other receivables from related 2,389,520 2,389,520 1,657,730| 0.21%-0.23%|The need for short-term Operating capital - 5,649,034 14,122,584
Development parties (US$ 80,000)(Us$ 80,000)(US$ 55,500 financing :L (Notes 2 and §) (Note 5
TSMC SSL Other receivables from related 2,688,210 2,688,210 746,725| 0.21%-0.24%|The need for short-ter Operating capital - 5,649,034 14,122,584
parties (US$ 90,000)(UsS$  90,000)(US$ 25,000 financing (Notes 2 and §) (Note 5
Note 1: The total amount for lending to a compasnyfiinding for a short-term period shall not excés percent (10%) of the net worth of TSMC Parnern addition, the total amount lendable to ang borrower shall be no more than thirty perce@®§Bof the borrower’s net worth. While
offshore subsidiaries whose voting shares are 100fed, directly or indirectly, by TSMC are not sedijto the above restrictions. However, the respetending limit for such borrower shall not erckethe net worth of TSMC Partners.
Note 2: The total amount for lending to a compamyféinding for a short-term period shall not excésnl percent (10%) of the net worth of TSMC Devatept. In addition, the total amount lendable tg ane borrower shall be no more than thirty per¢8026) of the borrower’s net worth.
While subsidiaries whose voting shares are 90%upnawned, directly or indirectly, by TSMC are nabgect to the above restrictions. However, theregate amounts lendable to all such borrowers laadotal amount lendable to one such borrower $leatio more than forty percent
(40%) of the net worth of TSMC Development.
Note 3: The total amount available for lending msg shall not exceed the net worth of TSMC PartaedsTSMC Development, respectively.
Note 4: The maximum balance for the period andrenbalance represents the amounts approved bydde Bf Directors.
Note 5: The amount was determined based on thewed financial statements in accordance with lacabunting principles.
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TABLE 2

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

ENDORSEMENTS/GUARANTEES PROVIDED
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified rwise)

Guaranteed Party Limits on . Amount of Ratio of Accumulated Maximum
Endorsement/ Maximum Balance .
: Ending Balance Endorsement/ Endorsement/ Endorsement/
Endorsement/ Guarantee Amount for the Period ; Amount Actually
No. ) Nature of . . (US$ in Thousands) Guarantee Guarantee to Net | Guarantee Amount
Guarantee Provider Name . . Provided to Each | (US$ in Thousands) Drawn . .
Relationship (Note 3) Collateralized by Equity per Latest Allowable
Guaranteed Party (Note 3) ) . .
Properties Financial Statements (Note 2)
(Notes 1 and 2)
0 |TSMC TSMC Global Subsidiary $ 191,532,817 $ 44,803,500 $ 44,803,500 $ - $ - 5.8% $ 191,532,817
(US$ 1,500,000) (US$ 1,500,000)

Note 1: The ceiling for guaranteed amount to a company shall nadete percent (10%) of the net worth of TSMC. In addition, theagteed amount shall not exceed net worth of the guarantegaiopm However, subsidiaries whose
voting shares are 100% owned, directly or indirectly, by TSMC are not stibjbet above restrictions after the approval of the Board of Directors.

Note 2: The ceiling for total guaranteed amount shall not exceed twemtyercent (25%) of the net worth of TSMC.

Note 3: The maximum balance for the period and ending balance representtimesaapproved by the Board of Directors.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD

MARCH 31, 2013

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

TABLE 3

-81 -

March 31, 2013
- , Lo ) . ) Carrying Value Market Value or Net
Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatememAccount Shares/Units (Foreign Currencies Percente_tge of A_sset Value _ Note
(In Thousands) . Ownership (%) (Foreign Currencies
in Thousands) .
in Thousands)
TSMC Corporate bond
Nan Ya Plastics Corporation - Held-to-maturity financial assets - $ 549,91 N/A $ 555,628
China Steel Corporation - " - 150,946 N/A 151,681
Stock
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corpiorat - Available-for-sale financial assets 42580 754,103 1 754,103
TSMC Global Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity 1 54,299,598 100 54,299,598
method
TSMC Partners Subsidiary ” 988,268 40,233,716 100 40,234,170
VIS Investee accounted for using equity methagd " 628,223 9,783,163 40 17,527,435
SSMC Investee accounted for using equity methagd " 314 7,292,694 39 7,078,710
TSMC Solar Subsidiary " 1,118,000 5,538,418 99 5,515,453
TSMC North America Subsidiary " 11,000 3,358,936 100 3,358,936
TSMC SSL Subsidiary ” 430,400 1,987,539 95 1,987,539
Xintec Subsidiary " 94,950 1,531,496 40 1,532,581
GUC Investee accounted for using equity methagd " 46,688 1,247,477 35 4,290,614
TSMC Europe Subsidiary " 243,852 100 243,852
TSMC Japan Subsidiary " 6 136,072 100 136,072
TSMC Korea Subsidiary " 80 26,903 100 26,903
United Industrial Gases Co., Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cost 19,300 , 5B 10 419,209
Shin-Etsu Handotai Taiwan Co., Ltd. - " 10,500 105,000 7 339,557
W.K. Technology Fund IV - " 4,000 39,280 2 34,442
Fund
Horizon Ventures Fund - Financial assets carried at cost 89,91 2 1 89,916
Crimson Asia Capital - " - 55,385 1 55,385
Capital
TSMC China Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity - 19,263,947 100 19,328,292
method
VTAF Il Subsidiary " - 1,057,677 50 1,035,577
VTAF Il Subsidiary " - 602,387 98 596,141
Emerging Alliance Subsidiary " - 173,517 99 173,517
TSMC GN Subsidiary ” - 63,861 100 63,861
TSMC Solar _Stock
Motech Investee accounted for using equity methagd  Investsneccounted for using equity 87,480 2,752,394 20 2,751,239
method
TSMC Solar Europe Subsidiary " - 145,184 100 145,184
TSMC Solar NA Subsidiary ” 1 32,802 100 32,802
Capital
VTAF 1l Investee accounted for using equity methagd  Investsneccounted for using equity - 1,359,854 49 1,359,854
method
(Continued)



March 31, 2013
Carrving Value Market Value or Net
Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatemerAccount Shares/Units (Forei yn gurrencies Percentage of Asset Value Note
(In Thousands) relg Ownership (%) (Foreign Currencies
in Thousands) in Thousands)
TSMC SSL Stock
TSMC Lighting NA Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity 1 $ 2,910 100 $ 2,910
method
TSMC GN Stock
TSMC Solar Investee accounted for using equity methgd  Investsngccounted for using equity 4,404 21,726 - 21,726
method
TSMC SSL Investee accounted for using equity methagd " 4,672 21,574 1 21,574
TSMC Partners Stock
TSMC Development Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity - US$ 618,942 100 US$ 618,942
method
VisEra Holding Company Investee accounted forgigiquity method " 43,000 US$ 106,342 49 US$ 106,342
TSMC Technology Subsidiary " - UsS$ 12,045 100 US$ 12,045
ISDF 1l Subsidiary " 14,153 uss$ 9,785 97 Uss$ 9,785
ISDF Subsidiary " 787 uUss$ 7,155 97 Us$ 7,155
TSMC Canada Subsidiary " 2,300 Uss$ 4,607 100 Us$ 4,607
Mcube Inc. Investee accounted for using equity methagd " 6,333 - 25 -
Fund
Shanghai Walden Venture Capital Enterprise - Financial assets carried at cost Us$ 5,000 6 uUss 5,000
TSMC North America Stock
Spansion Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 292 US$ 3,759 - US$ 3,759
TSMC Development Stock
WaferTech Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity 293,637 US$ 276,408 100 US$ 276,408
method
Emerging Alliance Common stock
Audience, Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 4 US$ 58 - Uss$ 58
Global Investment Holding Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 11,12 US$3,065 6 US$ 3,065
RichWave Technology Corp. - " 4,074 US$ 1,545 10 Uss$ 1,545
Preferred stock
Next 10, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost g US$ 500 - US$ 500
QST Holdings, LLC - " - uss$ 142 4 uUss$ 142
Capital
VTA Holdings Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity - - 7 -
method
VTAF I Common stock
Audience, Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 23 Us$ 553 - uUss$ 355
Sentelic - Financial assets carried at cost 1,806 US$ ,6072 9 US$ 2,607
Aether Systems, Inc. - " 2,600 US$ 2,243 28 Uss$ 2,243
Richwave Technology Corp. - " 1,267 Uss 1,036 3 Uss$ 1,036
(Continued)
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March 31, 2013
N _ o _ _ _ Carrying Value Market Value or Net
Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatemerAccount Shares/Units (Foreign Currencies Percentage of Asset Value Note
(In Thousands) . Ownership (%) (Foreign Currencies
in Thousands) .
in Thousands)
VTAF I Preferred stock
5V Technologies, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 2,890 Uss$ ,168 4 Uss 2,168
Agquantia - " 4,556 US$ 4,316 2 US$ 4,316
Cresta Technology Corporation - " 92 Uss 28 - Uss$ 28
Impinj, Inc. - " 711 Uss 1,100 - Uss 1,100
Next 10, Inc. - " 179 Uss$ 1,219 1 Uss$ 1,219
QST Holdings, LLC - " - uUss$ 593 13 uUss$ 593
Capital
VTA Holdings Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity - - 31 -
method
VTAF Il Common stock
Mutual-Pak Technology Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investits accounted for using equity 15,643 Uss$ 1,424 58 Us$ 1,424
method
InvenSense, Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 28 Us$ 033 - uUss 303
Accton Wireless Broadband Corp. - Financial assets carried at cost 2,249 Uss 15 3 6 uUss 315
Preferred stock
BridgeLux, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 7,522 US$ ,379 3 US$ 9,379
GTBF, Inc. - " 1,154 Uss$ 1,500 N/A uUss$ 1,500
LiquidLeds Lighting Corp. - ” 1,600 uss 800 11 uss 800
Neoconix, Inc. - " 4,147 US$ 4,842 4 US$ 4,842
Powervation, Ltd. - " 509 uUss 7,938 16 Uss 7,938
Stion Corp. - " 8,152 US$ 45,467 15 US$ 45,467
Tilera, Inc. - " 3,890 US$ 3,025 2 US$ 3,025
Validity Sensors, Inc. - " 11,192 US$ 4,197 4 USs$ 4,197
Capital
Growth Fund Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity - uss$ 340 100 uss$ 340
method
VTA Holdings Subsidiary n - - 62 -
ISDF Common stock
Integrated Memory Logic, Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 880 US$ 2,724 1 US$ 2,724
Memsic, Inc. - " 1,286 Uss 3,497 5 Uss$ 3,497
Preferred stock
Sonics, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 230 uUss 497 2 uUss 497
ISDF I Common stock
Memsic, Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 1,072 $US 2,916 5 Uss$ 2,916
Alchip Technologies Limited - Financial assets carried at cost 7,520 US$ ,6643 14 US$ 3,664
Sonics, Inc. - n 278 USs$ 10 3 US$ 10
Goyatek Technology, Corp. - " 745 Uss 163 6 Uss 163
Auden Technology MFG. Co., Ltd. - " 26 Uss 5 - Us$ 5
Preferred stock
Sonics, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cost 264 uUss 456 3 uUss 456
(Continued)

-83-



March 31, 2013
Carrving Value Market Value or Net
Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Nae Relationship with the Company Financial StatemerAccount Shares/Units (Forei yn gurrencies Percentage of Asset Value Note
(In Thousands) relg Ownership (%) (Foreign Currencies
in Thousands) in Thousands)
Xintec Capital
Compositech Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cost 587 $ 3 $ -
TSMC Solar Europe Stock
TSMC Solar Europe GmbH Subsidiary Investments actam for using equity - EUR 3,713 100 EUR 3,713
method
TSMC Global Stock
ASML - Available-for-sale financial assets 20,993 S#U1,409,075 5 US$ 1,409,075
Money market fund
Ssga Cash Mgmt Global Offshore - Available-for-sale financial assets 75 Us$ 57 N/A uss$ 75
Corporate bond
Westpac Banking Corp. - Held-to-maturity financial assets 25,000 US$25,000 N/A US$ 25,058
Aust + Nz Banking Group - " 20,000 US$ 19,995 N/A Us$ 20,020
(Concluded)
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TABLE 4

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

MARKETABLE SECURITIES ACQUIRED AND DISPOSED OF AT C OSTS OR PRICES OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposal Ending Balance
. Gain/Loss on
o . . Amount Amount Amount Carrying Value . Amount
Company Name Ma_rl_ket:kzilﬁ dSst;lrJrzgles Flnanzglcgj?]ttement Counter-party Rzlf;lij(;ﬁsogi Shares/Units (Foreign Shares/Units (Foreign Shares/Units (Foreign (Foreign I(?:'(S)E;Sil Shares/Units (Foreign
yp P (In Thousands)| Currencies in | (In Thousands)| Currencies in | (In Thousands)| Currenciesin | Currencies in C gn (In Thousands)| Currencies in
urrencies in
Thousands) Thousands) Thousands) Thousands) Thousands)
Thousands)
TSMC Stock
Semiconductor Manufacturing |Available-for-sale financial - - 1,277,958 $ 1,845,052 -1 % - 852,152| $ 1,533,105| $ 836,600| $ 696,505 425,806 | $ 754,103
International Corporation assets
TSMC Global Corporate bond
Commonwealth Bank of Australideld-to-maturity financial - - 25,000 US$ 25,000 - - 25,000 | US$ 25,000/ US$ 25,000 - - -
assets
Commonwealth Bank of Australia " - - 25,000| US$ 25,000 - - 25,000 | US$ 25,000f US$ 25,000 - - -
Deutsche Bank AG London ” - - 20,000 US$ 19,999 - - 20,000 | US$ 20,000| US$ 20,000 - - -
JP Morgan Chase + Co. " - - 35,000| US$ 35,006 - - 35,000 | US$ 35,0000 US$ 35,000 - - -
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

ACQUISITION OF INDIVIDUAL REAL ESTATE PROPERTIES AT COSTS OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 5

Company| Types of Transaction Date Transaction Payment Term Counter-party Nature of Prior Transaction of Related Counter-party Price Purpose of Other
Name | Property Amount Relationshipg Owner Relationships | Transfer Date | Amount Reference Acquisition Terms
TSMC Land January 3, 2013 $ 2,248,48Y the contract Miaoli County Government - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public bidding | Manufacturing None
purpose
Fab January 28, 2013 to 1,038,669|By the construction|Da Cin Construction Co., Ltd. - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public bidding Manufaing None
March 27, 2013 progress purpose
Fab January 28, 2013 to 642,147|By the construction|Fu Tsu Construction Co., Ltd. - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public bidding Manufaatgri None
March 26, 2013 progress purpose
Fab January 28, 2013 to 168,343 |By the construction|China Steel Structure Co., Ltd. - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public bidding M#éamturing None
March 26, 2013 progress purpose
Fab January 28, 2013 to 126,673 |By the construction|l Domain Industrial Co., Ltd. - N/A N/A N/A N/A Public bidding Manufadng None
March 26, 2013 progress purpose
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TABLE 6

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

TOTAL PURCHASES FROM OR SALES TO RELATED PARTIES OF AT LEAS T NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified rwise)

Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction Notes/ Accounts Payable or
Receivable
Company Name Related Party Nature of Relationships Purchases .Amount _ % to Unit Price | Payment Terms Enqllng Balancg % to Note
(Foreign Currencies Payment Terms (Foreign Currencies
Sales : Total (Note) (Note) : Total
in Thousands) in Thousands)
TSMC TSMC North America Subsidiary Sales $ 89,477,778 68 Net 30 daysaftice date - - $ 45,805,663 71
GUC Investee accounted for using |Sales 439,742 - | Net 30 days after monthly closing - - 310,318 -
equity method
TSMC China Subsidiary Purchases 4,156,107 28  Net 30 days after mdogiiy c - - (1,556,037) 10
WaferTech Indirect subsidiary Purchases 2,192,615 15 Net 30 daywaithly closing - - (715,699) 5
VIS Investee accounted for using |Purchases 1,448,995 10 Net 30 days after monthly clpsing - - (539,979) 4
equity method
SSMC Investee accounted for using |Purchases 647,559 4|  Net 30 days after monthly closing - - (251,508) 2
equity method
TSMC North America | GUC Investee accounted for using |Sales 143,362 - |Net 30 days after invoice date - - 87,781 -
equity method by TSMC (US$  4,869) (US$  2,939)
Xintec OmniVision Parent company of director Sales 370,953 47 | Net 30 days after monthly closing - - 229,699 51
(represented for Xintec)

Note: The sales prices and payment terms to related parties wengnifatesitly different from those of sales to third parties. For ailated party transactions, prices and terms were determined idaooemwith mutual agreements.
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TABLE 7

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTING TO AT LEAST NT$100 M ILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID-IN CAPITAL
MARCH 31, 2013
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified frwise)

Ending Balance Overdue Amounts Received

. . : . Turnover Days . Allowance for
Company Name Related Party Nature of Relationships |(Foreign Currencieg . in Subsequent
in Thousands) (Note 1) Amount Action Taken Period Bad Debts
TSMC TSMC North America Subsidiary $ 45,946,940 44 $ 16,534,096 - $ 20,428,825 $ -
GucC Investee accounted for using 310,318 57 - - - -
equity method
VIS Investee accounted for using 118,431 (Note 2) - - - -
equity method
TSMC Partners TSMC China The same parent company 2,402,513 (Note 2) - - - -
(US$ 80,435)
TSMC DevelopmentTSMC Solar The same parent company 1,659,334 (Note 2) - - - -
(US$ 55,554)
TSMC SSL The same parent company 747,058 (Note 2) - - - -
(US$ 25,011)
Xintec OmniVision Parent company of director 229,699 55 - - - -
(represented for Xintec)
TSMC China TSMC Parent company 1,556,037 29 - - - -
(RMB 268,891)
TSMC Technology | TSMC Parent company 140,936 (Note 2) - - - -
(US$ 4,718)
WaferTech TSMC Parent company 715,699 27 - - - -
(US$ 23,961)

Note 1: The calculation of turnover days excludes other receiviableselated parties.

Note 2: The ending balance is primarily consisted of other receivatitesh is not applicable for the calculation of turnover days.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

NAMES, LOCATIONS, AND RELATED INFORMATION OF INVEST EES OVER WHICH THE COMPANY EXERCISES SIGNIFICANT IN FLUENCE

MARCH 31, 2013

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, UnlesSpecified Otherwise)

TABLE 8

Original Investment Amount Balance as of March 31, 2013 N Equity in the
et Income Earnings
March 31, December 31, Carrying (Losses) of the
. o 2013 2012 Value Investee (Losses)
Investor Company Investee Company Location Main Bugesses and Products . . Shares (In | Percentage of - ) (Note 1) Note
(Foreign (Foreign Th ds Ownershi (Foreign (Foreign (Foreign
Currencies in | Currencies in ousands) P~ | currencies in | Currencies in gn
Thousands) | Thousands) Thousands) | Thousands) Currencies in
Thousands)
TSMC TSMC Global Tortola, British Virgin Islands nuestment activities $ 42,327,245 $ 42,327,245 1 100 $ 54,299,598 $ (80,759) $  (80,759)Subsidiary
TSMC Partners Tortola, British Virgin Islands Iistieg in companies involved in the design, 31,456,130 31,456,130 988,268 100 40,233,716 632,803 632,830 |Subsidiary
manufacture, and other related business in the
semiconductor industry
TSMC China Shanghai, China Manufacturing and selling of integrated circuit: 18,939,667 18,939,667 - 100 19,263,947 1,051,483 1,044,769 |Subsidiary
the order of and pursuant to product design
specifications provided by customers
VIS Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Research, design, developpmeanufacture, 13,232,288 13,232,288 628,223 40 9,783,163 880,588 353,823 |Investee accounted fpr
packaging, testing and sale of memory using equity methad
integrated circuits, LSI, VLSI and related parts
SSMC Singapore Fabrication and supply of integratecuits 5,120,028 5,120,028 314 39 7,292,694 989,660 390,191 |Investee accounted for
using equity methqgd
TSMC Solar Tai-Chung, Taiwan Engaged in reseag;tdeveloping, designing, 11,180,000 11,180,000 1,118,000 99 5,538,418 (519,316) (512,261)[Subsidiary
manufacturing and selling renewable energy
and saving related technologies and products
TSMC North America San Jose, California, U.S.A. llidg and marketing of integrated circuits and 333,718 333,718 11,000 100 3,358,936 65,477 65,477 |Subsidiary
semiconductor devices
TSMC SSL Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Engaged in researctdegeloping, designing, 4,304,000 4,304,000 430,400 95 1,987,539 (424,302) (403,134)|Subsidiary
manufacturing and selling solid state lighting
devices and related applications products and
systems
Xintec Taoyuan, Taiwan Wafer level chip size paikg service 1,357,89( 1,357,890 94,950 40 1,531,496 (25,632) (10,301)|Subsidiary
GUC Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Researching, developing, rferturing, testing 386,568 386,568 46,688 35 1,247,477 90,749 31,827 |Investee accounted fpr
and marketing of integrated circuits using equity methqad
VTAF llI Cayman Islands Investing in new start4gghnology companies 1,905,745 1,896,914 - 50 1,057,677 6,848 8,156 |Subsidiary
VTAF Il Cayman Islands Investing in new start-eptnology companies 710,334 704,447 - 98 602,387 38,693 37,919 |Subsidiary
TSMC Europe Amsterdam, the Netherlands Marketimdyengineering supporting activities 15,749 15,749 - 100 243,852 9,408 9,408 [Subsidiary
Emerging Alliance Cayman Islands Investing in retart-up technology companies 852,258 852,258 - 99 173,517 5,715 5,686 |Subsidiary
TSMC Japan Yokohama, Japan Marketing activities 83,760 83,760 6 100 136,072 1,678 1,678 |Subsidiary
TSMC GN Taipei, Taiwan Investment activities [e)((1)[0] 100,000 - 100 63,861 (6,393) (6,458)|Subsidiary
TSMC Korea Seoul, Korea Customer service and ieahsupporting 13,656 13,656 80 100 26,903 169 169 [Subsidiary
activities
TSMC Solar Motech Taipei, Taiwan Manufacturing &ates of solar cells, crystalline 6,228,661 6,228,661 87,480 20 2,752,394 (635,681) Note 2 |Investee accounted for
silicon solar cell, and test and measurement using equity methad
instruments and design and construction of
solar power systems
VTAF Il Cayman Islands Investing in new start4gghnology companies 1,803,405 1,801,918 - 49 1,359,854 6,848 Note 2 |Investee accounted for
using equity methqgd
TSMC Solar Europe Amsterdam, the Netherlands m@#n solar related business 504,107 504,107 - 100 145,184 (29,241) Note 2 |Subsidiary
TSMC Solar NA Delaware, U.S.A. Selling and mankgtof solar related products 205,772 205,772 1 100 32,802 (12,318) Note 2 |Subsidiary
TSMC SSL TSMC Lighting NA Delaware, U.S.A. Sellingd marketing of solid state lighting 3,133 3,133 1 100 2,910 (36) Note 2 |Subsidiary
related products
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Original Investment Amount Balance as of March 31, 2013 N Equity in the
et Income Earnings
March 31, | December 31, Carrying (Losses) of the (Losses)
| : : . 2013 2012 Value Investee
nvestor Company Investee Company Location Main Bugesses and Products . . Shares (In | Percentage of - ) (Note 1) Note
(Foreign (Foreign Thousands) | Ownership (Foreign (Foreign (Foreign
Currencies in | Currencies in Currencies in | Currencies in 2
Thousands) | Thousands) Thousands) | Thousands) Currencies in
Thousands)
TSMC Partners TSMC Development Delaware, U.S.A. Investment activities $ 0.03% 0.03 - 100 $ 18,487,183 $ 429,162 Note 2 |Subsidiary
(US$ 0.001) (US$ 0.001 (US$ 618,942) (US$ 14,575
VisEra Holding Company Cayman Islands Investingampanies involved in the design, 1,284,367 1,284,367 43,000 49 3,176,342 249,362 Note 2 |Investee accounted for
manufacturing, and other related businesses (WS$ 43,000) (US$ 43,000 (US$ 106,342) (US$ 8,469 using equity methqgd
the semiconductor industry
TSMC Technology Delaware, U.S.A. Engineering suppctivities 0.03 0.03 - 100 359,770 9,529 Note 2 |Subsidiary
(US$ 0.001) (Us$ 0.001 (US$ 12,045) (US$ 324)
ISDF Il Cayman Islands Investing in new start-eghinology companies 422,736 422,736 14,153 97 292,267 (1,459) Note 2 |Subsidiary
(US$ 14,153) (US$ 14,153 (US$ 9,785) (US$ (50))
ISDF Cayman Islands Investing in new start-up nedtgy companies 23,507 23,507 787 97 213,707 37,433 Note 2 |Subsidiary
(USs 787) (US$ 787) (US$ 7,155) (US$ 1,271
TSMC Canada Ontario, Canada Engineering supptivitaes 68,699 68,699 2,300 100 137,600 3,458 Note 2 |Subsidiary
(US$ 2,300) (US$ 2,300 (US$ 4,607) (US$ 117)
Mcube Inc. Delaware, U.S.A. Research, developnaard sale of 53,764 53,764 6,333 25 - (106,556) Note 2 |Investee accounted for
micro-semiconductor device (US$ 1,800) (US$ 1,800 - | (US$ (3,619) using equity methgd

TSMC Development WaferTech Washington, U.S.A. Mantifring, selling, testing and 8,363,320 8,363,320 293,637 100 8,256,041 423,515 Note 2 |Subsidiary
computer-aided designing of integrated circui(gS$ 280,000) (US$ 280,000 (US$ 276,408) (US$ 14,383
and other semiconductor devices

VTAF 1l Mutual-Pak Technology Co., Ltd. Taipei, i@an Manufacturing and selling of electronic patsl 155,677 155,677 15,643 58 42,527 (8,685) Note 2 |Subsidiary
researching, developing, and testing of RFID(US$ 5,212) (US$ 5,212 (US$ 1,424) (US$ (295))

Growth Fund Cayman Islands Investing in new siartechnology companies| 54,660 54,660 - 100 10,166 (830) Note 2 |Subsidiary
(US$ 1,830) (US$ 1,830 (USs$ 340)| (US$ (28))
VTA Holdings Delaware, U.S.A. Investing in newrstap technology companies| - - - 62 - - Note 2 |Subsidiary

VTAF I VTA Holdings Delaware, U.S.A. Investing imew start-up technology companies - - - 31 - - Note 2 |Subsidiary

Emerging Alliance VTA Holdings Delaware, U.S.A. BBting in new start-up technology companies - - - 7 - - Note 2 |Subsidiary

TSMC Solar Europe TSMC Solar Europe GmbH Hambuegn@ny Selling of solar related products and priogd 473,804 473,804 - 100 141,877 (29,166) Note 2 |Subsidiary
customer service (EUR 12,400) (EUR 12,400 (EUR 3,713) (EUR (746))

TSMC GN TSMC Solar Tai-Chung, Taiwan Engaged iragshing, developing, designing, 44,045 42,945 4,404 - 21,726 (519,316) Note 2 |Investee accounted for
manufacturing and selling renewable energy using equity methqgd
and saving related technologies and products

TSMC SSL Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Engaged in researctdegeloping, designing, 35,376 34,266 4,672 1 21,574 (424,302) Note 2 |Investee accounted for
manufacturing and selling solid state lighting using equity methqgd
devices and related applications products and
systems

Note 1: The share of profits/losses of investeekiites the effect of unrealized gross profit frdffiliates.

Note 2:
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The share of profits/losses of the investeapany is not reflected herein as such amouaitésady included in the share of profits/lossethefinvestor company.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

INFORMATION ON INVESTMENT IN MAINLAND CHINA
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified rwise)

TABLE 9

Accumulated Investment Flows Accumulated Carrying
Total Amount of Outflow of Outflow of Accumulated
o . Amount
Paid-in Capital Investment from Investment from Inward
. . : Method of . . Percentage of Share of as of :
Investee Company| Main Businesses and Products (Foreign Investment Taiwan as of Taiwan as of ownershi Profit/Losses | March 31. 2013 Remittance of
Currencies in January 1, 2013 Outflow Inflow March 31, 2013 P USS ' Earnings as of
Thousands) (USS$in (USS$in Th(ousarI::js) March 31, 2013
Thousands) Thousands)
TSMC China Manufacturing and selling of $ 18,939,667, (Note 1) $ 18,939,667 $ -1 $ $ 18,939,667 100% $ 1,044,769 $ 19,263,947 $ -
integrated circuits at the order| (RMB 4,502,080 (US$ 596,000 (US$ 596,000 (Note 3)
and pursuant to product design
specifications provided by
customers
Shanghai Walden |Investing in new start-up 2,324,062| (Note 2) 147,485 - 147,485 6% (Note 4 149,345 -
Venture Capital technology companies (Uss 78,791 (US$ 5,000 (USs$ 5,000 (USs$ 5,000
Enterprise
Accumulated Investment in Mainland China Investment Amounts Authorized by

as of March 31, 2013
(US$ in Thousands)

Investment Commission, MOEA
(US$ in Thousands)

Upper Limit on Investment
(US$ in Thousands)

$ 19,087,152
(US$ 601,000)

$ 19,087,152
(US$ 601,000)

$ 19,087,152
(US$ 601,000)

Note 1:
Note 2:
Note 3: Amount was recognized based on the re

Note 4:

TSMC directly invested US$596,000 thousand in TSMC China.

TSMC indirectly invested in China company through third region, TB&i®ers.

viewed financial statement

TSMC Partners invested in financial assets carriedtasbase of profits from which was not recognized.
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Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited and Subsidiaries

INTERCOMPANY RELATIONSHIPS AND SIGNIFICANT INTERCOMPANY  TRANSACTIONS
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 10

A. For the three months ended March 31, 2013
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Intercompany Transactions
Nature of
No. Company Name Counter Party Relationship . : Terms Rercentage of
Financial Statements Item Amount Consolidated Net Revenu
(Note 1) (Note 2)
or Total Assets
0 TSMC TSMC North America 1 Revenue from the sale of goods $ 89,477,718 67%
Receivables from related parties 45,805,663 4%
Other receivables from related parties 141,277 -
Payables to related parties 33,131 - -
TSMC China 1 Purchases 4,156,107 - 3%
Marketing expenses - commission 18,198 - -
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 31,045 -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 64,246 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,374 -
Other receivables from related parties 29,741 -
Payables to related parties 1,556,037 - -
Other noncurrent liabilities 38,753 - -
TSMC Japan 1 Marketing expenses - commission 58,903 - -
Payables to related parties 20,408 - -
TSMC Europe 1 Marketing expenses - commission 88,290 -
Research and development expenses 14,1p9 -
Payables to related parties 42,258 - -
TSMC Korea 1 Marketing expenses - commission 5,298 -
TSMC Technology 1 Research and development expenses 177,691 -
Payables to related parties 140,936 - -
Wafer Tech 1 Purchases 2,192,615 - 2%
Other receivables from related parties 2,380 -
Payables to related parties 715,699 - -
TSMC Canada 1 Research and development expenses 50,634 - -
Payables to related parties 16,471 - -
Xintec 1 Manufacturing expenses 49,464 - -
Payables to related parties 33,275 - -
TSMC SSL 1 Other gains and losses 2,250 -
Other receivables from related parties 2,250 -
TSMC Solar 1 Other gains and losses 2,634 -
Other receivables from related parties 2,634 -
(Continued)




Intercompany Transactions
Nature of
No Company Name Counter Party Relationship Terms percentage of
' Financial Statements Item Amount Consdidated Net Revenug
(Note 1) (Note 2)
or Total Assets
1 TSMC Partners TSMC China 3 Other receivables from relateiégpart $ 2,402,513 - -
2 TSMC Development WaferTech 1 Other receivables from reladigp 48,846 - -
3 TSMC SSL TSMC Development 3 Other payables to related parties 747,058 - -
4 TSMC Solar TSMC Solar Europe GmbH 1 Revenue from the sale of goods 11}500 - -
Receivables from related parties 5,670 - -
TSMC Development 3 Other payables to related parties 1,659,334 - -

Note 1: No. 1 represents the transactions from parent company to sybsidiar
No. 3 represents the transactions between subsidiaries.

Note 2: The sales prices and payment terms of intercompany sales sighificaintly different from those to third parties. For otherroampany transactions, prices and terms are determined in accordédmeritual agreements.

(Continued)
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B. For the three months ended March 31, 2012

Intercompany Transactions
Nature of
No. Company Name Counter Party Relationship . : Terms Eercentage of
Financial Statements Item Amount Consolidated Net Revenu
(Note 1) (Note 2)
or Total Assets
0 TSMC TSMC North America 1 Revenue from the sale of goods $ 64,861,377 61%
Receivables from related parties 32,359,734 4%
Other receivables from related parties 19,399 -
Payables to related parties 49,582 - -
TSMC China 1 Purchases 3,192,921 - 3%
Marketing expenses - commission 16,450 - -
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 41,011 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4,675 -
Other receivables from related parties 43,296 -
Payables to related parties 1,137,485 - -
Other noncurrent liabilities 3,182 - -
TSMC Japan 1 Marketing expenses - commission 71,086 -
Payables to related parties 52,540 - -
TSMC Europe 1 Marketing expenses - commission 82,247 -
Research and development expenses 13,513 -
Payables to related parties 35,760 - -
TSMC Korea 1 Marketing expenses - commission 5,190 -
Payables to related parties 1,308 - -
TSMC Technology 1 Research and development expenses 148,681 -
Payables to related parties 99,495 - -
WaferTech 1 Revenue from the sale of goods 10,389 -
Purchases 1,623,602 - 2%
Other receivables from related parties 3,298 -
Payables to related parties 576,902 - -
TSMC Canada 1 Research and development expenses 52,350 -
Payables to related parties 17,122 - -
Xintec 1 Manufacturing expenses 23,487 - -
Payables to related parties 16,628 - -
TSMC SSL 1 Other gains and losses 1,575 -
Other receivables from related parties 2,26 -
TSMC Solar 1 Other gains and losses 1,575 -
Other receivables from related parties 2,045 -
1 TSMC Partners TSMC China 3 Long-term receivables from relatddga 7,405,970 - 1%
Other income 4,816 - -
TSMC Solar 3 Other receivables from related parties 724,489 -
2 TSMC Solar TSMC Solar NA 3 Other payables to related parties 3,373 - -

Note 1: No. 1 represents the transactions from parent company to subsidiary

Note 2: The sales prices and payment terms of intercompany sated significantly different from those to third parties.

No. 3 represents the transactions between subsidiaries.
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For othargampany transactions, prices and terms are determined in accosithnoeitual agreements.
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